Illinois Finance Authority

Tuesday, July 13, 2004
2:00 p.m. |
Board Meeting
Sears Tower Conference Center
233 S. Wacker, Suite 3350
Chicago, Illinois

Ali D. Ata

TABLE OF CONTENTS




PJ!\):—‘..>...

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
BOARD MEETING

July 13, 2004
Chicago, Illinois

Executive Committee
IFA Office, Sears Tower, Suite 4000 — 40" Floor
8:30 a.m.

Opening Remarks — Chairman Gustman

Director’s Report — Ali D. Ata

Loan Participation

Reports

Administrative - Mike Pisarcik

« Office Space

Legal Matters/Legislation — Anthony D’ Amato
Opportunity Home Mortgage — Townsend Albright
Local Government — Eric Watson

Project Presentations — Marketers

Board Meeting
Sears Tower Conference Center
233 S. Wacker Drive, 33rd Floor
2:00 P.M.

Call to Order — Chairman Gustman
Roll Call
Chairman’s Report

. Director’s Report

Consent Agenda for Financing Projects
Other Business

June 2004 Preliminary Financial Staternents
Acceptance of June 2004 Minutes

Fee Schedule Amendment



Board Meeting Agenda - Revised
July 13, 2004
Page 2

10.

11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.

20.
21.

22.
23,

Number

E-PC-TE-CD-410
E-PC-TE-CD-407

L-GO-TE-CD-406
N-NP-TE-CD-411

N-NP-TE-CD-412
I-ID-TE-CD-411

A-FB-TE-CD-432

Number
B-LL-TX-408
E-PC-TE-CD-409
B-LL-TX-409
I-ID-TE-CD-407
H-SL-NH-TE-CD-415
N-NP-TE-CD-408
M-MH-TE-CD-406
P-SW-TE-CD-405

M-MH-TE-CD-405

V-TD-405
A-AD-GT-TX-431

A-DR-GT-TX-433
A-FB-TE-CD-418
A-FB-TE-CD-421
A-FB-TE-CD-429

Initial Project Considerations

New Const
Project Location Amount Jobs Jobs Mkter
The University of Chicago Chicago $200,000,000 100 150 RF
MJH Education Assistance IV Chicago $80,000,000 22 150 RF
LLC (Fullerton Residential Village Project)
City of Sparta Sparta $14,000,000 150 TBD MC
Englewood Cooperative Chicago $6,500,000 N/A 15 TA/S
Apartments, Inc.
Featherfist and Featherfist Chicago $1,500,000 25 N/A ST
Development Corporation
CVT Acquistion, Inc. Belvidere $2,400,000 20 15 RF
(d/b/a Cherry Valley Tool & Machine)
Jay A. Todd and Christina Thompsonville $125,000 N/A N/A KK
Diane Todd
Final Project Considerations
New Const
Project Location Amount Jobs Jobs Mkter
Frank and Donna Abdnour Peoria $300,000 10 19 JS
(The Spotted Cow, Inc.)
OT Research Institute (“IITRT”)  Chicago - $18,820,000 60 150 TA
Uresil Acquisition Group, LLC  Skokie $300,000 N/A NA SCM
Transparent Container Co., Inc.  Addison, $6,000,000 37 20 SCM
Berkeley, Bensenville
Fairview Obligated Group Downers Grove $50,000,000 N/A N/A PL
& Rockford
Hispanic Housing Development  Chicago $2,400,000 21 0 ST
Corporation
Hinsdale Mirabel Limited Unincorporated  $45,000,000 N/A 20 RF
Partnership (Hinsdale Lake Willowbrook
Terrace Apartments Project)
Recycling Systems, Inc. Chicago $11,000,000 30 60 RF
Waterton Vistas I, L.L.C. Chicago $8,500,000 N/A 10 RF
(New Vistas II Apartments Project)
Mobitrac, Inc. Series C $100,000 N/A N/A cv
Paul D. Schneider and Flanagan $500,000 N/A N/A KK
Lynn R. Schneider
Weidner, Allen and Marilyn Marengo $500,000 N/A NA DW
Jeremiah D. Fleming Olney $165,150 N/A  NA KK
Scott Lucas Aledo $137,700 N/A NA KK
Kyle Kiefer Belle Rive $132,300 N/A  N/A KK



Board Meeting Agenda - Revised
July 13, 2004
Page 3

A-FB-TE-CD-427 Brandon Niekamp Coatsburg $108,000 N/A N/A KK
A-FB-TE-CD-428 Chad S. Weaver Erie $50,000 N/A N/A KK

Project Revisions/Amendatory Resolutions

24. Amendatory Changes

Request approval to convert Mode of Bonds to
Auction Rate

Request approval of Fourth Amendment

+ Little Company of Mary Hospital
and-Health Centers

+ Acme Finishing Company, Inc.

o Orchard Village Request approval of First Amendment

Other Business

25. Glossary of Acronyms and Terms
26. Market and Product Codes
27. Newspaper Clippings

Adjournment




To:

Illinois Finance Authority — Director’s Report
July 13, 2004

IFA Board of Directors and Govérnor’s Office

From: Director Ata

L

IL.

Sales Activity:

>

>

We are pleased to submit for your approval 24 proposals.

Total fees, paid at closing, to IFA for these transactions are estimated to be
$932,484, consisting of $372,955 for preliminaries, and $559,529 for the
finals.

The attached project summary titled “IFA Opportunity Returns” is a list of
100 IFA projects since the inception of the IFA in January, 2004 in 6 market

segments totaling $2.6 billion.

Marketing:

1) Health Care:

> In June, there was one healthcare closing, generating $97,855 in fee
income. There are 7 new hospital transactions awaiting review and
approval before they come to the IFA.

> We have 4 excellent candidates for the small hospital program that we
identified from the 19 surveys that have been returned to date. Working
with our partner, GE Healthcare Financial Services, we will be contacting
these hospitals to determine their financial needs, their debt capacity,
and their willingness to be initial participants in the Program, while at the
same time finalizing the costs for each bond transaction. We are still on
target for closing 2-3 private placement bond transactions by Labor Day.
Then we can announce, publicize, and market the Program.



Director's Report

June 22, 2004
Page 2

2) Education:

>

The Pooled Bond Program which the Village of Norris City, Village of
Williamsville, and the City of Farmington participated, is scheduled to
close the second week of August, 2004. The original closing delay was a
result of final review by the Office of Management and Budget. No

further delays are anticipated.

3) Housing:

> Statewide marketing meetings attended by program sponsors, builders,

mortgage bankers, lenders, and IFA marketers held in economically
distressed targeted cities were well attended. Technical issues regarding
the swap, and legal issues regarding copyright and disclosure are at the
final stages of resolution. The program will tentatively close on July 15.
The program will be ready to launch after the bonds close and after the

Governor’s announcement.

4) Local Government:

> Eric Watson will present on Local Government at the July 13 Board

Meeting.

5) Agricultural:

> In an effort to expand the use of the Beginning Farmer Bond program,

IFA recommends eliminating the current $250,000 net worth limitation.
The net worth limit has not been increased since the program began in

1982.

The Micro Loan concept, introduced at the June 22 meeting, would invest
money in local non-profit business development agencies that would,
inturn, make low interest direct loans in their communities. IFA’s
investment would be in the form of a grant to the local agency with the
loan amount restricted to $10,000.

6) Industrial:

» Our team continues to aggressively call on underwriters, bond counsel

and lenders to keep them aware of our very competitive financing
opportunities. In addition to calling on individual underwriters, attorneys
and lenders, presentations have been made to law firms, banks,

securities firms and industry groups.



Director’s Report
June 22, 2004

Page 3

I11.

V.

> In addition, IFA continues to enhance relationships with other public
development agencies throughout Illinois. Meetings with the Illinois
Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity have resulted in the
opportunity to work with companies that desire to expand and/or relocate
to Tllinois. Recently, we met with the newly appointed commissioner of
Chicago’s Department of Planning and Development to explore the
possibility of collaborating to encourage projects that will create jobs and
quality of life in Chicago.

> Steven Trout continues to meet with officials from DCEO, State
Treasurer's Office and Northwest Illinois regional development agencies
concerning the old Motorola facility in Harvard that has been proposed as
a major site for recreation and tourism. In addition, Steven Trout and
Patrick McGee are working with officials from the South Suburban Airport
Commission to determine how IFA might assist in financing a third

airport.

Financial:

1)
>

2)

Profit and Loss:

The income statement and balance sheet for June 2004 is attached. IFA
reports a net loss of ($122,570) for the period, and a net income of $451,430
for the period of January —June, 2004, and a net loss of $1,404,023 for
fiscal year 2004.

We are happy to report a successful consolidation process, albeit still
underway, and start of the first full fiscal year for IFA with a strong balance

sheet.

IFA drafted formal accounting policies and procedures based on best
practices of predecessor authorities and improved practices important to IFA.
IFA will implement a database for tracking important details associated with
outstanding bond issue, and for use in reporting to the Office of the

Comptroller.

Financial Audits:

Exit conference for the IDFA stub period audit is scheduled for July 28, 2004.
The entrance conference for the first IFA audit (for the period January —
June, 2004) was held by McGladry & Pullen on July 12, 2004.

Volume Cap:

On June 9, 2004, the office of the Governor allocated $90 million in Volume Cap
to IFA. $90,995,800 was allocated for manufacturing and/or housing projects
and $9,004,200 for agricultural projects. Approximately $1 million in agricultural



Director's Report
June 22, 2004

Page 4

projects have been financed and six offer letters will go out to manufacturers
who expect to issue approximately $35 million in Industrial Revenue Bonds.

Projects will continue to be funded on a first come first serve basis until all
Volume Cap has been subscribed at which time, Staff will request an additional
allocation of Volume Cap from the Office of the Governor.



¥0/9/L )

VIN VIN ‘Ayiioey 000'005'8$ "ouj ‘sapisnpu) pood eldwik|lo
Buumoenueis Y "bs 00o‘Zs Bulsxa
dinba pue uoneaouss ‘eseyaind esueuty

0 a4 "gouenssl Jo SIS0 000°00€°L$ Auedwo) 66o4-uesoep
Aed pue uejd Buunjoenuew e ajejlliqeyss
quswdinba pue Aisuiyoew mau ainboe
‘spuog anuaaay [eusnpuj Buipuejsino
aoueUlal 0} Pasn a( ||Im spaadoid
0 €6 ‘8}S00 20uBNSS| pue uohisinboe juadinb3 000'002'¢ JaisedIA1S/SoNISeld Hr

00l b ‘s)s00 @ouenss! 000'008't2 £uedwo?) |8saipoig Sioujit
puoq Aed pue juawdinba mau sseyoind
‘BuIp|ing MBU E JONJISU0D ‘pue| 8inboy

asi VIN 'spol  000'000°02 971 ‘Auedwo) uoyeIsua uoex3
{an} Jeajonu 10§ A)jioe) JUBWIqUIoiUS ue
j0 Buoueut) al 8oueUY 0} Pasn spaadtld

V/N € ‘uonsinboe ewdinba pue Asuioe 000°00€ ‘U] ‘aulyoep pue Aipunod [99x3

VIN o€ 's}s02  000'000°C “uf |euoneuwisiul 940
souenss| ulepan Aed pue juswdinbe
‘fseuiyoew ‘Buipiing jo aseyound asueuly

Gl 02 -aseyaind  000'00V'2 auyoeW g [00] AsjleA Ay
wswdinbe pue ‘uoyippe Buipiing
10 uononusuod ‘Ajioe) Bulnjoenuew
BunSIXa JO UOIBAOUBIUOHISINDIY

asl VIN *§)S00 92UBNSS| puoq UeYad 00000V, “OU| ‘@ousIsoIg UBdLIBLIY
£ed pue swdinba pue Asulyoew
‘suoneaoual ‘Buipiing e Jo uolisinboe
ay) 9ouBUY O} Pasn &q Him spuog

0z S "uolippe  000°004 "ouj “JeAly
Buipjing Y "bs 00G°01 JO UOHINLSUOD

IVIYLSNANI
SNUNLIY ALINNLAOAdO
Vil
- T N N AN S BN BN G U En I AR TR O E aE =N .



¥0/9/L 4
6.1 . we 000°00Z°86% 'STVLO0L IVIYLSNANI
VIN VIN -fiaBins aaiseAul Ajlewiusw pue  000°00€ 977 ‘dnosg) uoisinbay |isaln

ABojoipes jeuoyuansiul jo Spfey pazijeads
10} S@9IASP |E0IpaLL Sonpold IS8 'S}asse
ssausng jo uolsinboy -ueoj uogedonied

0z 1€ ‘51500 aauensst 000'000°9 Jaulejuon yuaiedsuel |
puog Aed pue ‘suoljeAocusy 1uawdinba
pue Asujyoew ‘uonisinboe Bupjing soueuly

6 ol Buiping  000'00€ ‘au] ‘moQ) penods 8y |
(B10JBWIWO02 Y ‘bs QOG'Y JO uolONIISucD
pue uopisinboe puet ‘ueo| uoliedidiued

Gl vl -Bugpunyal juand pue juswdinba 000°000'8} ‘ou| 9218 g dignday

aseyoind ‘sjuswanoidwi jjypue| soueul

VIN 0 ‘9pIMPlIOM JBINjoBINUEW  000'00€ "ou| ‘oyoy
uolysno-Jle [ealpaw Jaiwaid ey}
sjoyoy ‘wewdinba uononpold 8seydInd

V/N gl -uawdinbs uoonpoid aseydind 000°00€ ‘U] ‘|ose0y

(panunuod) TVIH1SNANI

SNJUNLIAY ALINNLYOddO
vil



$0/9/L €

0se 0s *§]500 8oUBNss! puoq (euolssajoid puny 000'000°GY1 AjIsIaalun) UI9)SeMULON
“uswdinbe ‘uoreAousls ‘uoloNIIsu0D

0S1 (44 "sndwed ed ujooult SANSIaAUN  000'000'4 2 aoue)sissy uoneonp3 HIFW

0S4 09 *§150930UBNSs]  000°028'8} ABojouyoa JO sInisu SIOUk)|

puoq [euo)ssajoid punj pue }sassiul
azijeydeo uswdinba ‘suoyercusy .

VIN VIN

nHioe)  000'000°9S Aissenun (ne4aq
|enuapisal Jo Bujoueuy uonisINboy

VIN VIN "20UeNss} JO §3S00  000°000'01$ 869/j00 BIqWIN|0D
uleuad Aed pue ‘punj 8AIasal BOIAISS

19ep ojul spuny jisodap ‘spuoq anuaAs.l
(v431) v4di g3V 2661 seuag Buipueisino
punysl 0} pasn a8q |jiM Spaadoid

A} 124 "S}s02 82uUeNnss|  000°000°01 siout||| 40 *"ouj ‘endsy
puoq pue ‘jsassjul azijejdes ‘uswdinbe
pue sainjxy ‘asnuiny aseyoind
‘Buipjing Bunsixa ajeaous. pue aseyoind

9 S "s1s02  000'059°G uoieanpy Ul JajoRIBYD 10) BIUEIYY
22UBNSS! PuUOq pue |euoissajold puny pue
jsaJeju) azijepdes jqap Bugsixe soueuysl
‘wniseuwAB mau Jo uolonysucd

NOilvOoNna3

SNYNLIY ALINNLYOddO
| V4l



$0/9/L v
99 (Wk4 000°0.L'8VES :$7VLOL NOlLvONa3
0z VIN "s}s00 aouenss! 000°000°Y1 8631100 SLIOW Haqoy

puoq ulepss Aed pue ‘jsaseul pazieyded
£ed ‘an1as51 80IAIAS 18P € pun; ‘saiijioe)
sndwes |eseass Jo uoisuedxa ay}

aoueUlY 0} pasn aq |jim spaadod puog

(NIN00ES) S6# QS Paleplosuo) Ajunwwo) abphy pueio
(W1$)1# asnD Awno Jessep
(wez$) za as yuisiaddiN
(WS1$) 981L# AS 2liand pieybuuds
"yseo Bupjiom 000°00E'8Y v-b00Z SIoLSIQ |00YDS sioulfj] J0j welbold Juenem pajood
Ul Sjjej-HOoYS J8AQD 0} SJUE]SISSE 8piroid :

(panuguod) NOILYONA3A

SNAINLIY ALINNLIOddO
Vil



¥0/9/L S

VIN VIN ‘uopey(elsu) pue uopisinboe  000°009°C o) yiesH Ajwed su3
wawdinba aoueuy ‘Ayyioey Bupsixe soueuyay

0C 2 ‘uetudinbe |y suawalg jo uomsinboy  000°299°} {eNdsoH |eLowap e v Piemp3

YIN VIN -§]S09 8ouensst puoq uiepsd Aed  000°000'C SBIIUNWIWIOYD) JuswWalldy JUBUSACD

puE ‘puny BAI9S21 9OIAISS (qop ozifeided
‘Spuoq /66| SOUOS punjal SOUBAPY

VIN . ¥IN ‘suBO| pue Spuoq soueuYey 000'000°C ‘ouj ‘seaiag Aousbiawg g yiesy Ajunwiwo)

(00)74 FA 43 “Ajunwiwod Juaweindl 000°000°62Z$ JBMO] 18)EM 1B 8JB|D 8yl
a1ed Buinuuod mau jo Buiddinba
pue uoloONJISU0I ‘awdojaAsp adueuld

V/IN VIN '8]509  000'000°95 18jua) [edipaN [BUOWBN SU3JPIYD
JUSWIAOUEBLUS pUB 8JUEBNSS| ‘spuog
V6661 SOUS BqE||ED PUNJBI 9OUBAPY *

L 9 UOJJONIISUOD MON 000'000'Y 181uaQ yyeaH Ajwe obeoyd

ast aal "aJowepuim  000°000°0%2 wiieeH abedng (esued
Aq panssy Ajsnowaid spuoq jduiaxe-xe}

Bunsixe eduBUYS) ‘SDNIIOE) U}ESY LIEUED
JO UOljEZILIBPOW pue uoisuedxs soueuld

VIN VIN ‘1500 @ouenss) Aed pue 000°'000'GS aJjedyjesH uusiyo.ig
‘sal)jioe} Je sainypuadxs |eyded ‘spuog
Z00Z pue 2661 ‘Y0661 ‘5861 @dueuyay

00c VIN "sen|ioe} [epdsoy puedxa pue aziuispoy  000°000'08 walsAg YlesH sisyioig uemxsly

FHVYOHLTVIH

SNYNLIY ALINNLYOLdO

V4l
I DN I B T BE S U G0 G GE AR WE U oh W e S &



- .
N S SN BN AR A OGN AN BN SR A T AN A e A ae
9

$0/9/L

002 VIN ‘oJogsAydiniy  000'000°GE sasudielug aJedy)ies sioulj) uaynog
pue uiIaH ‘ojepuoyle) ui pajedo)
sonyoe; |eydsoy puedxe pue aziu1spo

VIN VIN *S]S00 JUBLLIBOUBYUS JIPBIO pUE 000°000°0S wa)sAg Yl eaH apisiaAy
aouenss| puoq Aed ‘pun) aAlasal 8IAISS
1qap azijeded ‘sajelijje/seLelpIsans sy
puUE apISIoAlY JO Spuog 000Z SeUaS pue
8661 saLeg o uojuod e Jo |je punyey

VIN YIN -gouenss) Jo s)s02 Aed pue ‘pury  000°000°0S S80IAIDS UBHSUYD UBABH 1S9y
SAIoSD) B0IAIBS 1qop e azjjepden ‘Aupinby
aoueyua ‘ssaupajgapul Bupsixa soueuyey

VIN VIN *$)S00  000°000°00} wa)sAg siedyjiesH 4SO
aouenss| Aed pue spuoqg £661 SoLU8S

(v4H1) v4i @1qelieD jo punjay waund

00S°€ 009 "ssaupejqapul 000'000°05S [EHASOH |ELOWaN UIDISEMUHON
Buipue}sino Jayjo pue ‘viH|
£q passt 1qap puoq jdwaxa-xe} Buiisixe
soueulal 0} spaadold puog "saijiioe)
4O UoHEZILIBPOW PUE Usisuedxa asueui

VIN 4 ‘pue| 000°00€ Jonod usiy

JO Sai0e GZ'| Jo uolsinboe pue Buipjing
leuoissajoid '} "bs (9L’ JO UOIONIISUCD

VIN ol “18UUEdg |0 SUOWaIS JO osInboy  000°00%*| xa|dwog [edpa eepadoH

ool VIN "¥4H! 000°000°12 "ouj ‘sefjiunwwo) ueodsioueld
£q penss) uonebiigo puoq ydwexa-xe}
Bunsixe $,/amo1i0q 8oUBUYS] ‘BAIBSsal
2218 1q8p puny ‘Aupioe) Buiall pasisse
pue BuISINU JO UOHINASUDD BdUBUL

<+BdALL03CONd]

(Q3INNILNOD) FUVOHLIVIH

SNAUNLIY ALINNLYOddO
Vil



_W
|
m
W

:

]

y0/9/L

L9%¥ [A:73 000°zve‘8Z9'L$ :$IVLO0L JUVIHLIV3H
VIN VIN ‘ueo |00d 6861  000'000'Y {E}IASOH Yaloy}
adl VIN ‘sajioe) YiEsy Bunsixs jo saunjpuadxe 000'000°6Z}H wajsAS yjleaH UBDLIBLIVYSIPEMS
{eydes sunnos pue snduwes jepdsoy jo
UOHEZILIBPOLL PUEB UONHONIISUOD Boueul
0e 9 ‘Buip|ing 8oyjo pug uomsinboe pue 000'08E Buia juapuadapul 10 J8jua) plaYybuldg

HCOE x3dAL 103roYd;

vdl

.
—
B
;
R
A
| .
—
-
-
S
e
[—
—



¥0/9/L

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

V/IN

VIN

VIN

VIN

VIN

V/N

VIN

‘ueo| paajueient uo jgap ainjonnsay 000'00¢

‘ueoj puoq Jauuey Buluuibeg 00E'ZEL
‘ueo] puoq Jauwej BuiuuiBeg 005'202
‘ueo| peajuesens v4| Bunsixe pusix3 000'S0C
‘son0ALIBD  (000°00S
ueo| Buijesado pue 1gep Aeuyoew
‘sej0U 9je)sa |es. Bulisixa ssueuysy
‘ueoy puog Joeuwey Buluuibag 000051
‘ueo| puoq Jowsej Buiuuibeg 000421
‘ueo] puoq Jauue) Buuuibag 0G1°G91
‘ueoy puoq seunej Bujuuibeg 000052
‘ueoj puoq Joauwuey Buluwbag 000°052
‘ueo| puoq Jouuey BuuuiBeq 006202

‘ueoj puoq Jewue) buuuibeg 000°201

‘ueo| puoq seuuey BuuuiBeg 000°00}

juswdinbe 000°682
pajejal pue ‘asnoyusalb Jonisuod

SNUNLIY ALINNLIOddO

vil

UOSMET (0480 PUE 82Lg

SETETNEETTAY]

SHOOH BloWed pue jned

ysiH ejawed pue |siueq

seep Alenag pue HEMBIS

8eppoo BN pue Uaqoy

UoEaD) APUIAA PUB US|

Buiwa)4 @ yeiwaisl

191zoQ 18X PUE HIeN

13141010 WEIIM

Bunyo BYs!| PUB Jspuexaly

wnig Maynen

sighag ‘W ume() pue "A\ ou3

uojsIeH SOIAW @ SalIsSNpu) youeyenby

43dAL 103r0Nd.
FUNLINDIYOV



$0/9/L 6

0 b 058'052'9% 'STIVLOL UNLINONHOY

VIN VIN ‘ueo) peajuesend ya4| Bugsixe 000°00S UOSSOAN JUBH
pue JaAoAued ueo| Bujjesado asueuyey ;
VIN VIN -ueoj Bupnjonysal jqad 00000 Jauplap uAjliey pue us|ly
VIN VIN ‘ueoy puoq Jowiey BujuuiBeg 000°0S i8ABBM 'S PEYD
VN VIN ‘ueoj puoq seuney Buiuuibag 000801 UJSACHUEBA BLIAY pue juaig
VIN VIN "1onokueo Bunesedo pue 000061 oIS Apul) pue piaeq
sajou Alsuyoew Bugsixa Bupueuyay

aat asL 000°00€ ou| ‘suopnjhos
VIN VIN ‘Ueoj puoq Jauwuej Buwuibeg  000°052 Biaqog 1098
VIN VIN ‘ueo] puoq Jauuey Buluuibeg 000°0YL$ aNYS uss|jieNg pue pleucy
VIN VIN junowe ueoj pesjuelenb asealoul pue 000'00S 1op1Buyods Y UUAT pue Qg |ned

Janokuen Bunesado Bujsixe aoueuley

0 Vi ‘lended Buyiom pue sjuswaposdwi 000°06€ (-ouy ‘Auedwon asaay) AsjleA Hedd) peay M [1eueq
1uawdinba *sBuipjing Joj asjuesent ueon

VIN VIN "ueo| puoq Jauwiiej BuluuiBeg  000°804 dweyaiN uopuelg
VIN VIN ‘ueoj puoq Jowuej Buluuibag 000'2E Jassapy uesng pue Aue
VIN VIN ‘ueo] puoq Jeuwej BuiuuiBeg 000°2SH NS BJIBYDIN PuE Maylew

AdALA03C0Yd]
(PenuRUO) TUNLINDIIOV
SNAJNLIY ALINNLIOddO
vil



¥0/9/.L 0}
oL 08l ooo‘ovo°’csL$ '$TIV101 TVANINNOUIANIT
VIN VIN "§)S00 8OUBNSS| puny pue ‘spuog 000°005'91$ a||1n0aWwOY Jo abeyliA

anusAay ajewssliy 84002 pue v1002
selIag JO SonuNjew a|qejies punjey

VIN VIN "spund Buinjoasy aiels sejepm Bunjuilg 000°000°0€} 44S
pue Jajepn ues|) S,Yd3l 0} pajedipap
sjesse wesboid y43| Buysixe abesana

0l 0o ‘swdinba Jajsuel} pue Bulos 000°000'4 b ‘ou| ‘swe)shg BuljoAosy
jesodsip 9)SEm pI|OS Jaylo pue Siaulejuod
aseyoind pue sjusweaoidwl 91e)ss |eay

<\.z VIN *SjuBLWIBA0IdWI WBYSAS JOMASs Jajep (000'sZ1‘2$) uoibulwied jo A
VIN V/N ‘SjuaLuaAoidul) WaysAs Jomas JSIEM (000°0P¥$) altAswelipA Jo abeqia
VIN V/N "sjuswiencldwl Wa)sAs Jamas JBJeM {000°G25$) AnD suIoN jo abefia
VIN VIN ‘Bupped pue peol ssedde (000°006$) 10111810 Nied diysumo] steuuoginog
‘Jojue2 aAnasdisiul ‘sjien ainjeu dopasQ
000'0V0‘'y v-#00Z weiboid puog psjood 91
umouun V/N -s)oofoid ainjonselUl pUe LORONIISUCd 0000062 00z weiboid BudueUl4 WBU| UBOT UOHONNISUOD
10} 8)e1S 3y} Jo Juswuianob |eoof Jo spun
UIBUaD 0} SUBO| LWLISIUY JO) SpUN) 8pIAOId
asL 051 ‘ginjonuisesjul Jamas ple Jajem Jonisuo)d 000°000'v epeds jo AD

3dALILO3CONd]
TVANIWNOUIANT

SNUNLIY ALINNLYOAdO
Vil



¥0/9/L 3

0 oL 000°050'}$ :$TVLOL TW1idvO FHUNLINIA
agal adal asl 000'052 weyonz
VIN VIN ‘onposd Bupjoes pue Bugnol 000°05€$ 2eNGOIN
e yim Auedwon alemyos esudioug

aal a8l adl 000°00} sjouo) Bunwioyelen
VIN 0l kBojouyoe) Aiepeq peoueApy 000°0S€E Ayauid
FAALLoAr0Nd|

IVLIdVYD UNLNIA

SN3N13A ALINNLIOddO
Vil



$0/9/L . . cl
0z VIN sojjile) awooul-moj J0y Buipling Jun Zgs  000°000°SY$ d1 12qesiy sjepsuiH

Buljsixa UB JO UOHBAOUSI pue aseyoind

agl VIN ‘SUOIJBAQUSS PUB UOHINIISUOD 000°0S291$ Awapeoy uelsuy) iseney
aoueul} 0) pasn aq |jiim spaasold puog

0 12 *s}s09 aouenss) Aed  000'00¥°2$ uonelodio) wawdojaasq buisnoH osedsiy
Ajlenyed pue ‘uoyjesodion juswdolpasq
BuisnoH owedsiH ayy Aq pazyyn aq o}
Bulpjing 32O SIHND dus|SH JouLoy 8y}
Ul Joo}} BUO JO uoiEeAOuUS! pue uoljisinboy

VIN 0 *s}s09 souenss! 000'000'05$ dnoig pajebdiigo mainiie
Aed ‘aniasal a0IAIeS 1gop az|ejided
‘Auptnby @duBYUS ‘Spuoq 666 ‘SPUOY
G661 SauUag V4HI punjal aoueApy

Gy VIN ‘suoljeaousl Buipjing aoueuy pue 000'005'9% , "ou| ‘sjuswpedy aayeladoo) poomajbul
‘J9ep 202 1094Q aNH Bufisixe asueuijey

G¢ 0 ‘asjeay} 000'00€$ uoyjesodio aleay ] s(bel
BIAOW JESS 009 USSIIS-9Al B SB 9SN 10}
‘uosuqoy ui Buipying j004 asenbs 00002
Buiddinba pue uogeAoual ‘uoisinboy

oyl vl '5)S00 gouenssi Jo uojod pue jsaisiul 000°0SE’L Aunog axe Jo diysisuped uondy Apunwiwio)
aziended ‘yuaswdinba aseyosnd ‘xajdwod
Buip|ing ¢ pasodo.d jo Butpjing 1S5y Jonysuo)

14 5104 "$)s00 [euoissajoid pue [efa) punj 000'000°62$ 271 ‘soipms A jenus)
‘uoRanusuod ‘uewdinbe ‘puej aseyoing

oz Vv/IN 1uawdinba jo aseyoind pue ‘Buip|ing 000'008'Z1$ sjuawedy ejsiA eusng
Bunsixa jo uoijeacual pue uoysinboy

S8 VIN "Apedoid  000°'005°'9$ "ou| ‘Q8INPRIIYDIY
Buisnoy Jouas Auojs g1 ‘Wun 624
Bunsixo Ue JO uoieAcUal pue uolIsiNboy

3411 40 ALIVND
SNAINLIY ALINNLIOddO
Vil



$0/9/L €l

81Z'9 119'C 058°26£'809'C$ 'SIVLOL ONVYHD
958 (44N} 000°00L'Z¥E$ :§7VLOL 34117 40 ALITVND
ol VIN -Auadoud |ejuas Apweymnw  000°005°8$ 0717 Il SBISIA UOLIBIEA

awodau-mo| Buipiing g ‘A10}s ¢ ‘Hun
G| BunsIxe JO UOHEAOUS. pue 3seydind

VIN VIN ‘s1afngawoy payljenb awooul sjesspow 000°000°0S $00¢ s8uas
pue mo| 0} @oue}sisse Juawledumop ‘weiboly puog anuasay abebuop Awe- a|bulg 1dwax3-xe|
o,y pue sojel abeblow moj apIrosd

YIN VIN ‘§)500 @ouenss} puoq 000'009'G Jea) juswdolsaaq yoiess
urepao Aed o} pue 1qap [euonuaAuoo Bupsixa
aoueuyel 0} pasn aq |m spaadosd puog

YIN VIN *s1aAngawioy awoou| ajesepow 000'000°'05$ aswoy Apunpoddo
pue moj 0} 8ouejsisse juawiedumop
%y pue sajes abebuow mo| apinoid

ool 114 ‘§}S00 @3UENSS] puoq  000'000°%1$ WwNasny SUsIpiIYD S,|IUOM
pue jeuoissajoid puny ‘}saisiul ezieydeo
4uawdinba ‘uononssuod Ajjioe) MeN

0sS g4 -abebpow Bunsixe soueUYd) PUB UORINISUOD 000°000°L UOIBId0SSY uelisuy)d s,usiy Buno Ajwe aaynemysiy
MBU B0UBUY O} pasn aq [iim spaaooid puog

VIN VIN ‘sajeljiye o} pepiaoid seoinsas puedxa 000°000'SE$ obeoly) uepjodosa JO UONEBISPS ] USIMaTP
0} pasn sbuiaes Juswabeuew Yses

0sSi ol a|jIA0aWOY Ul BUBJE 30} JO UORINASUGT 000°000°E} "ou| Qi) AS%00H SapisnH

mmﬁﬁomﬁ%
SNUNLAY >._.HZ—._._.~_On_n_O (penuuod) 341 40 ALINTVAD
V4l



TLLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

JUNE, 2004 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE/EXPENSES

Revenue

1.

Interest on Loans, Administrations & Applications fees, Annual issuance & Loan
Fees are the revenues that are associated with the Program Administrators

incentive compensation program.

Expenses

1. Benefits — Reflect payments for May and June. June is payable in July.

2. Travel & Auto — increase due to the Board Meeting held in Springfield.

3. Consulting, Legal & Admin. - $60,000 is for Consolidation expense incurred, but
not yet billed.

4. Accounting & Auditing - $20,000 to Velma Butler & Company for services
rendered from November 2003 — January 2004.

5. Marketing General — $100,000 for marketing material / Printing not yet billed.

6. Data Processing — increase due to the purchase of computers and other related
services.

BALANCE SHEET

7. Prepaid Expenses — increase of $85,000 due to the deposit for the new Chicago
Office Location.

8. The Illinois Farmer Agribusiness and The Illinois Agricultural Loan Funds are

off the Balance Sheet in Illinois Treasury Account.



lllinois Finance Authority

Balance Sheet -
IFA Consolidated

For the Twelve Months Ending June 30, 2004

ASSETS
CASH & INVESTMENTS, UNRESTRICTED

RECEIVABLES, NET
OTHER RECEIVABLES
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS, NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
DEFERRED ISSUANCE COSTS

OTHER ASSETS - RESTRICTED
CASH, INVESTMENTS & RESERVES
VENTURE CAPITAL INVESTMENTS
OTHER

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
RETAINED EARNINGS
NET INCOME / (LOSS)
RESERVED/RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE
UNRESERVED FUND BALANCE

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

May June
2004 2004
YTD YTD
28,207,435 27,440,151
6,977,159 7,022,450
1,229,630 1,231,424
149,195 219,714
36,563,420 35,913,739
28,291 27,488
1,151,982 1,151,982
9,872,878 9,880,063
5,002,897 5,572,097
3,700,000 3,700,000
18,575,775 19,152,160
56,319,468 56,245,369
609,941 658,412
3,295,186 3,295,186
3,905,127 3,953,598
23,828,249 23,828,249
9,899,852 9,899,852
574,000 451,430
5,956,301 5,956,301
12,155,938 12,155,938
52,414,341 52,291,771
56,319,468 56,245,369




REVENUE
INTEREST ON LOANS
INVESTMENT INTEREST & GAIN(LOSS)
ADMINISTRATIONS & APPLICATION FEES
ANNUAL ISSUANCE & LOAN FEES
OTHER INCOME

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES
EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES
COMPENSATION & TAXES
BENEFITS
TEMPORARY HELP
TRAVEL & AUTO
MISCELLANECUS
TOTAL EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
CONSULTING, LEGAL & ADMIN
LOAN EXPENSE & BANK FEE
ACCOUNTING & AUDITING
MARKETING GENERAL
MARKETING-STAFF
FINANCIAL ADVISORY & LEGAL COUNCEL
LITIGATION
VENTURE CAPITAL CONFERENCE/TRAINING
MISCELLANEOUS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
DATA PROCESSING

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

OCCUPANCY COSTS
OFFICE RENT
SECURITY
EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PURCHASES
TELECOMMUNICATIONS
UTILITIES
DEPRECIATION
REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
INSURANCE
TOTAL OCCUPANCY COSTS

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATION
OFFICE SUPPLIES
BOARD BOOK-PRINTING - EXPENSES
PRINTING
POSTAGE & FREIGHT
MEMBERSHIP & DUES
PUBLICATIONS
OFFICERS & DIRECTORS INSURANCE
MISCELLANEOQUS

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
OTHER

INTEREST EXPENSE

UNCLASSIFIED EXPENSE
TOTAL OTHER

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE UNREALIZED GAIN/(LOSS)
NET UNREALIZED GAIN/(LOSS) ON INVESTMENT

NET INCOME/(LOSS)

NET INCOME/(LOSS) JULY 1, 2003 - DECEMBER 31, 2003

NET INCOME/LOSS) FISCAL YEAR 2003

Illinois Finance Authority
IFA Consolidated
For the Six Months Ending June 30, 2004

June YTD Revised Interim
2004 2004 Expense Budget Variance
Jan - June 2004
29,133 175,362
41,029 351,543
228,661 1,786,244
164,844 538,400
131 17,908
463,798 2,869,457
157,162 908,270 748,476 (157,794)
30,815 130,942 200,859 69,917
11,995 71,630 28,913 (42,717)
14,418 35,436 20,899 (14,537)
- - 1,500 1,500
214,390 1,144,279 1,000,647 (143,632)
90,865 328,591 184,942 (143,649)
3,196 20,067 18,286 (1,781)
26,998 196,089 172,854 (23,235)
138,131 154,031 303,801 149,770
879 2,190 (2,190)
- 75,000 75,000
- 50,000 50,000
5,270 8,133 (8,133)
7,500 39,850 11,000 (28,850)
33,187 53,715 21,260 (32,455)
306,026 802,666 837,143 34,477
23,676 162,535 187,110 24,575
75 300 (300)
2,704 . 25417 12,872 (12,545)
8,675 31,584 25,979 (5.605)
1,739 8,445 8,609 164
804 4,018 5412 1,394
2,000 2,000
- - 3,000 3,000
37,673 232,299 244,982 12,683
2,681 20,243 13,443 (6,800)
2,007 3,825 (3,825)
148 584 3,803 3,219
1,539 10,527 14,013 3,486
2,213 12,138 9,561 (2,577)
1,428 2,982 3,705 723
16,087 83,608 74,306 (9,302)
253 4,872 9,440 4568
26,356 138,779 128,271 (10,508)
826 4,955 3,152 (1,803)
- - 75 75
826 4,955 3,227 (1,728)
585,271 2,322,978 2,214,270 (108,708)
(121,473) 546,479
(1,096) (95,051)
(122,569) 451,428
(1,855,451)
(1,404,023)




AfD
Wd 1Tv v0/90/L0

(o€ aunp Buipua) Jeaj |essiy
G002 A4 002 Ad €002 Ad 2002 Ad 1002 Ad 0002 A4 6661 Ad

| _ | %\I\\\* s

000°000°}$

T~ e e 000'000'2$

LS 000°000°'c$

jueg puog jeiny —x— s 000°000'v$
Auoyiny senioed yjesH —x— //\

Auoyiny juswdojarag wie

sonuaAay

Auoyiny sanjioed [euoneonp3 —— 000°000'$
Aoyiny asueul awdoAsq —e—
Auoyny aoueulq siouljjj —— 2K 000°000°9%
000'000°'2$
7 /\\\ 000'000'8$
000°000'6$
000°000°04$

Ajuoyiny Aq sanuanay



ALD
Wd 1Z¥ +¥0/90/L0

(o€ aung Buipus) Jea |essi4

S00¢C Ad ¥00Z Ad €002 Ad 200C A 100C A4 000¢ A4 6661 Ad

Il ! Il ] 1 ] |w
—X

e —X— == F=——

- 000°000°}$

000°000°2$

Aoyiny Juawdojarsg wie4
Auoyiny sanijioe [euoyeonp3 ——
Ajuoyiny asueul juswdojprsq —e—
Auoyiny aoueut4 sioui||| ——

sasuadx3y

000°000°'G$

000°000'9%

N 000°000°€$
SUeg puog [einy —w— \\t\l
AOYINY SaIoe ] UesH —— 000°000P%
\lT

\/ o
\/ \V4

000°000°6$

Auoyiny Aq sesuadxy



ALD
Wd 1T:¥ $0/90/L0

(o€ aunp Buipua) Jea, eosid

(000'000'2)$
\/ (000°000°1)$
S00¢C A4 00C Ad €0 Ad
1 1 M\’ 4 —_— Il .. i Iw
% -3¢ / / 3¢ J,T\\\um
jueg puog [edny —¥— / /
Auoyiny wm%___omu_ UlesH —¢— / / \ M
Auoyiny Juswidojaraq wiey 000'000' 1 M
Ajoyiny sanijioe jeuoieonp3 —— ©
Aoyiny aoueui{ juswdojpraq —e— w
Ajoyiny aoueuld sioul||| —e—
000°000°2$
~
L 000°000°c$
000°'000'v'$

Auoyiny Aq sawosuj }aN



Minutes of the Executive Committee Meeting

The Executive Committee (the “Committee”) of the lllinois Finance Authority (the “IFA"),
pursuant to notice duly given, held a regularly scheduled meeting at 8:30 A.M., on June
22,2004 in the lllinois State Library Room 103 located at 300 South Second Street in

Springfield, llinois.

MEMBERS PRESENT: MEMBERS ABSENT:
Joseph Alford Martin Nesbitt
Natalia Delgado Terrence O’'Brien
Demetris Giannoulias

David Gustman STAFF PRESENT:
Michael Goetz Director Ata
Edward Leonard M. Pisarcik
Timothy Ozark N. Kyros

Jill Rendleman A. D’Amato
Andrew Rice S. Trout

Joseph Valenti D. Wirth

C. Vandenberg

Call to Order '
The meeting was called to order by Chairman Gustman at 8:35 a.m.

Director’s Report
Director Ata gave an overview of the status of the business. He pointed out that the

Authority has had a strong deal-flow from the Health and Education sectors and stated
his next major focus will be the industrial sector.

Closed Session
Upon a motion by Chairman Gustman, the committee entered closed session to discuss

employee compensation issues. The motion was seconded by Mr. Rice and
unanimously approved.

The regular session was reconvened at approximately 9:00 and resumed following the
published agenda.

Administrative Report
Mr. Pisarcik gave an overview of the new lease at 2 Prudential Plaza. In particular, he

noted that the move to Prudential has enabled the Authority to terminate the previous
[llinois Health Facilities Authority’s lease. Mr. Pisarcik also gave an update on the
outsourcing of the Human Resources to ADP TotalSource in order to provide cost
savings to the Authority. Finally, Mr. Pisarcik gave an overview of the budget, noting
_that the consolidation is expected to provide approximately $1.5 million in savings over
the next year. Director Ata and Chairman Gustman noted that the savings have placed




the Authority in a position to return $3 to $5 million to the General Fund of the State.
Discussion ensued.

Legal Matters/Legislation
Mr. D'’Amato gave the Committee an overview of legislative and other legal matters

pertaining to the Authority. Specifically, he discussed the ongoing IRS audit and
legislation pertaining to the Authority's bond authorization. Mr. D'Amato also reminded
the Committee of the need to establish Board and Committee meeting dates, times and
locations for the Fiscal Year 2005. Discussion ensued.

Sales Forecast and Organization
Mr. Kyros gave an overview of the sales forecast for the Authority.

Pricing
Mr. Trout gave an overview of the proposed fee schedule that the Board would consider

adopting at its afternoon meeting. Discussion ensued.

Agriculture
Mr. Wirth gave the members an overview of the Authority’s agriculture programs.

Discussion ensued.

Project Presentations |
The marketing staff gave presentations of the projects as listed on the Board's public

meeting agenda, to be considered by the Board for approval at its afternoon meeting.

In particular, representatives of Transparent Container Co., Inc. and 15t Farm Credit
Services (on behalf of David Thompson, Thompson Pearl Valley Eggs) were also .
present and spoke before the Committee regarding their projects. Staff (and
representatives of the present companies) answered various questions of the members.

Venture Capital
Mr. Vandenberg gave the members an overview of the Authority's venture capital

program. Following the presentation and discussion among the members, the
Committee indicated a general preference for staff seeking out and presenting equity
funding proposals, in the aggregate, of up to approximately $2 million through the end of
the calendar year. The Committee reiterated that any particular proposal would have to

be presented to, and approved by, the full Board.

The Chairman asked if there was any other business to come before the Board or if any
member of the pubic wished to address the Board. There being no further business and
no one seeking to address the Board, Chairman Gustman adjourned the meeting at

approximately 1:30 P.M.

A N BN EE S By IS BN B S ..



MINUTES OF THE REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORTY

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the lllinois Finance Authority (the “IFA"),
pursuant to notice duly given, held a regularty scheduled meeting at 2:00 P.M.,
on June 22, 2004 in the lllinois State Library Room 403 located at 300 South
Second Street in Springfield, Illinois.

MEMBERS PRESENT: MEMBERS ABSENT:
Joseph Alford Martin Nesbitt
Natalia Delgado Terrence O'Brien

Demetris Giannoulias
David Gustman
Michael Goetz
Edward Leonard
Timothy Ozark

Jill Rendleman
Andrew Rice

Joseph Valenti

GENERAL BUSINESS ITEMS

Call to Order

Chairman Gustman called the meeting to order at approximately 2:00 P.M., with
the above members present.

Roll Call

Chairman Gustman asked Secretary Pisarcik to call the roll. Having ten
members present, a quorum was declared.

Resolution 2004-10 — Establishment of the Fee Schedule of the lllinois
Finance Authority

Upon a motion by Mr. Leonard and seconded by Ms. Delgado, Chairman
Gustman requested a roll call vote. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, 0
nays, and 0 abstentions/present.

Resolution 2004-11 — Adoption of the Budget of the {llinois Finance
Authority for Fiscal Year 2005

Upon a motion by Mr. Leonard and seconded by Ms. Delgado, Chairman
Gustman requested a roll call vote. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, O
nays, and O abstentions/present.



Resolution 2004-12 — Establish the Meeting Schedule of the lllinois Finance
~ Authority for Fiscal Year 2005

Upon a motion by Mr. Leonard and seconded by Ms. Deigado, Chairman
Gustman requested a roll call vote. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, 0
nays, and O abstentions/present. '

Resolution 2004-13 - Establishment of the Employee Incentive-based
Compensation Plan

Upon a motion by Mr. Leonard and seconded by Ms. Delgado, Chairman
Gustman requested a roll call vote. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, 0
nays, and 0 abstentions/present.

Initial Project Considerations

Item-03 E-PC-TE-CD-408: Northwestern University
This applicant requests preliminary approval of $145,000,000 in
conduit 501(c)(3), Revenue Bonds to finance a project located in
Chicago, lllinois.

Upon a motion by Mr. Valenti and seconded by Ms. Rendleman,
Chairman Gustman requested a roll call vote. The motion was
approved with 10 ayes, 0 nays, and O abstentions/present (04-06-
03).

Item-04 E-PC-TE-CD-407: MJH Education Assistance IV, LLC (Fullerton
Residential Village Project)
This application was withdrawn at the request of the borrower.

Item-05 |-ID-TE-CD-410: Central City Studies, LLC
This applicant requests preliminary approval of $25,100,000 in
conduit Tax-Exempt Industrial Revenue Bonds to finance a project
located in Chicago, Hllinois. This project is expected to create 1015
new jobs and 235 construction jobs. Approval of this project will
be contingent on the execution of an intergovernmental agreement
with the City of Chicago.

The Chairman requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote.
Leave was granted. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, O
nays, and O abstentions/present (04-06-05).

Item-06 J-ID-TE-CD-408: NVL, LLC (Olympia Foods Industries, Inc.
Project
This applicant requests preliminary approval of $8,500,000 in
conduit Tax-Exempt Industrial Revenue Bonds to finance a project




Item-07

Item-08

Item-09

Item-10

located in Chicago Heights, lllinois. This project is expected to
create 35 new jobs and 60 construction jobs.

The Chairman requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote.
Leave was granted. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, 0
nays, and 0 abstentions/present (04-06-06).

|-ID-TE-CD-407: Transparent Container Co., Inc.

This applicant requests preliminary approval of $6,000,000 in
conduit Tax-Exempt Industrial Revenue Bonds to finance projects
located in Addison, lilinois, Berkley, lilinois and Bensonville,
Ilinois. This project is expected to create 37 new jobs and 20
construction jobs.

The Chairman requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote.
Leave was granted. The motion was approved, subject to
legislative changes to the Authority's statute, with 10 ayes, 0 nays,
and 0 abstentions/present. (04-06-07)

M-MH-TE-CD-406: Laramar Group, LLC and its Affiliates
(Hinsdale Lake Terrace Apartments Project)

This applicant requests preliminary approval of $45,000,000 in
conduit Tax-Exempt Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds to finance
a project located in unincorporated Willowbrook, Illinois. This
project is expected to create 20 construction jobs.

The Chairman requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote.
Leave was granted. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, 0
nays, and 0 abstentions/present (04-06-08).

N-NP-TE-CD-408: Hispanic Housing Development Corporation
This applicant request preliminary approval of $2,400,000 in

~ conduit Tax-Exempt 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds to finance a project

located in Chicago, lllinois. Itis expected that this project will
create 21 new jobs.

The Chairman requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote.
Leave was granted. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, O
nays, and 0 abstentions/present (04-06-09).

N-NP-TE-CD-416: Edward A. Utlat Memorial Hospital, Inc.
These applicants request preliminary approval of $1,662,000 in a
conduit, Tax-Exempt 501(c)(3) Lease to finance a project located in
Greenville, lllinois. It is expected that this project will create 11 '
new jobs and 20 construction jobs.



Item-11

The Chairman requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote.
Leave was granted. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, 0

nays, and O abstentions/present (04-06-10).

A-FB-TE-CD-427: Brandon Niekamp

A-FB-TE-CD-428: Chad S. Weaver

‘A-FB-TE-CD-429: Kyle Kiefer

These applicants request preliminary approval for Beginning

Farmer Bond Loans for the amounts and locations listed below:
Brandon Niekamp - $108,000 (Coatsburg, lllinois)
Chad S. Weaver - $50,000 (Erie, lllinois)
Kyle Kiefer - $132,300 (Belle Rive, Illinois)

The Chairman requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote.
Leave was granted. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, O
nays, and O abstentions/present (04-06-11).

Final Project Considerations

Item-12

Item-13

Item-14

H-SL-NH-TE-CD-415: Fairview Obligated Group

This applicant requests a bond purchase resolution for $50,000,000
in conduit Tax-Exempt 501(c)(3) Refunding Revenue Bonds to
finance projects located in Downers Grove, lllinois and Rockford,

lllinois.

The Chairman requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote.
Leave was granted. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, 0

nays, and O abstentions/present (04-06-12).

N-NP-TE-CD-409: Jewish Federation of Metropolitan Chicago
Jewish Charities RAN Program, Series 2004 and 2005-A

This applicant requests final approval of $35,000,000 in conduit,
Tax-Exempt Revenue Anticipation Notes to finance projects located
in multiple locations across the State.

The Chairman requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote.
Leave was granted. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, 0

nays, and O abstentions/present (04-06-13).

E-PC-TE-CD-406: Robert Morris College

This applicant requests final approval of $14,000,000 in conduit
501(c)3), Revenue Bonds to finance projects located in multiple
locations across the State. This project is expected to create 20

construction jobs.




Item-15

Item-16

Item-17

Item-18

The Chairman requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote.
Leave was granted. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, O
nays, and 0 abstentions/present (04-06-14).

M-MH-TE-CD-403: Buena Vista Apartments, L.P (Buena Vista
Apartments Project)

This applicant requests final approval of $12,800,000 in conduit,
Tax-Exempt Multi-family Housing Revenue Bonds to finance a
project located in Elgin, Illinois. This project is expected to create
20 construction jobs.

The Chairman requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote.
Leave was granted. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, 0
nays, and 0 abstentions/present (04-06-15).

N-NP-TE-CD-410: Kohl Children’s Museum of Greater Chicago,
Inc. '

This applicant requests final approval of $14,000,000 in conduit,
Tax-Exempt, 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds to finance a project located
Glenview, lllinois. This project is expected to create 46 new jobs
and 100 construction jobs.

The Chairman requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote.
Leave was granted. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, 0
nays, and O abstentions/present (04-06-16).

N-NP-TE-CD-407: Springfield Center for Independent Living
This applicant requests final approval of $380,000 in a conduit,
Tax-Exempt, 501(c)(3) Lease to finance a project located in
Springfield, lllinois. This project is expected to create 6 new jobs
and 30 construction jobs.

The Chairman requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote.
Leave was granted. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, 0
nays, and 0 abstentions/present (04-06-17).

B-LL-TX-406: Roesch, Inc.
This applicant requests final approval of $300,000 in Participation
Loans for a project located in Belleville, lllinois. This project is

expected to create 16 new jobs.

The Chairman requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote.
Leave was granted. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, O
nays, and 0 abstentions/present (04-06-18).



Item-19 B-LL-TX-407: Excel Foundry and Machine, Inc.
This applicant requests final approval of $300,000 in Participation
Loans for a project located in Pekin, Illinois. This project is
expected to create 3 new jobs.

The Chairman requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote.
Leave was granted. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, 0
nays, and 0 abstentions/present (04-06-19).

Item 20 A-Al-GT-TX-416: David Thompson, Thompson Pearl Valley

Eqgs
This applicant is requesting final approval for $6,618,000 in Agri-

Industries Loan Guarantees to finance a project located in Kent,
Illinois.

The Chairman requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote.
Leave was granted. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, O
nays, and O abstentions/present (04-06-20).

Item 21 A-AD-GT-TX-TX-425: Kevin Burgener and Donald Burgener
This applicant is requesting final approval for $314,000 in
Agricultural Debt Restructuring Loan Guarantees to finance a
project located in Dundas, lllinois.

Chairman Gustman requested a motion to approve. There being
no motion made, the applicant was not approved.

Item 22 A-DR-GT-TX-426: Hish, Daniel and Pamela
This applicant is requesting final approval for $205,000 extension in
existing Agricultural Debt Restructuring Loan Guarantees for a
project located in Ridgway, lllinois.

~The Chairman requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote.
Leave was granted. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, 0
nays, and 0 abstentions/present (04-06-22).

Item-23 A-FB-TE-CD-417: Scott Soberg
A-FB-TE-CD-419: Eric W. Beyers and Dawn M. Beyers
A-FB-TE-CD-422: Marc P. Duffy and Allison M. Duffy
These applicants request final approval for Beginning Farmer Bond
Loans for amounts listed below: :
Scott Soberg- $250,000 (Chrisman, llinois)
Eric W. Beyers and Dawn M. Beyers - $100,000
(Rosamond, linois)
Marc P. Duffy and Allison M. Duffy - $242,500 (Pontiac,
lllinois)



The Chairman requested leave to apply the last unanimous vote.
Leave was granted. The motion was approved with 10 ayes, O
nays, and 0 abstentions/present (04-06-23).

Jtem 1 - Acceptance of May 2004 Preliminary Financial Statements

Upon a motion by Ms. Delgado and seconded by Mr. Rice, Chairman Gustman
d the last unanimous vote. Leave was granted. The

requested leave to recor
motion was approved with 10 ayes, 0 nays, and O abstentions/present. (04-06-

01)
Item 2 — Acceptance of the May 30, 2004 Minutes

Delgado and seconded by Mr. Rice, Chairman Gustman

ord the last unanimous vote. Leave was granted. The
ys, and O abstentions/present (04-06-

Upon a motion by Ms.
requested leave to rec
motion was approved with 10 ayes, 0 na

02).

was any other business to come before the Board

or if any member of the pubic wished to address the Board. There being no
further business and no one seeking to address the Board, Chairman Gustman

adjourned the meeting at approximately 2:27 P.M.

ctfully ¥ ad,
é ael Pis? rcikecre ary

The Chairman asked if there




Resolution Number 2004-14
Resolution Establishing a Fee Schedule
of the Illinois Finance Authority for Amendments and Other Matters

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) is empowered by
Section 801-30(e) of the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seg. (the
“Act”), to “adopt all needful ordinances, resolutions, by-laws, rules and regulations for
the conduct of its business and affairs and for the management and use of the projects
developed, constructed, acquired and improved in furtherance of its purposes”; and

WHEREAS, Section 801-40(j) of the Act grants the Authority the explicit power
to “fix, determine, charge and collect any premiums, fees, charges, costs and expenses. . .
from any person in connection with its activities under the Act”; and

WHEREAS, the Executive Director and staff of the Authority have undertaken a
review and analysis to determine the fees that the Authority should charge in connection
with its activities as they relate to pre-existing/pre-approved Authority transactions that
may require additional or subsequent action of the Authority so as to defer the operating
expenses of the Authority and to enable it to pursue its various purposes as set forth in the

Act; and

WHEREAS, the fee schedule established by this Resolution supplements and is
in addition to the fee schedule approved by the Board of the Authority at its June 22,

2004 meeting as Resolution 2004-10; and

WHEREAS, the Board of the Authority has the power to adopt this Resolution
pursuant to Section 801-25 of the Act, and it has determined that the adoption of the

attached fee schedule is in the best interest of the Authority; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ILLINOIS FINANCE
AUTHORITY, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Recitals. The recitals set forth above are hereby found to be true and
correct and are incorporated into this Resolution as if fully set forth herein.

Section 2. Fees. The following fee schedule is hereby adopted:

Amendatory Action Related to a Pre-Existing or
Pre-Approved Authority Financing that Necessitates
the Issuance of an Issuer’s Counsel Opinion, that
Results in the Issuance of a New, Modified or
Updated Official Statement, or that Requires a
TEFRA Hearing, If the Underlying Financing Is

Less than $5,000,000 . ..« $ 5,000
$5,000,001 to $50,000,000 . . . ..o $10,000
More than $50,000,001 . .. .. covvvva e $15,000



Amendatory Action Related to an Escrow Restructuring,

If the Underlying Financing Is
Less than $25,000,000 . .. ..o oiiin i $2,500
More than $25,000,001 .. .. ..ot $ 5,000

Other Amendatory Action That Is More Than
Ministerial But Does Not Fall Into One of the

Above Categories . . . ..o $ 1,000
The Authority shall not charge a fee for amendatory action that is ministerial in nature.

Section 3. The Executive Director or his designee may take all action consistent
with this Resolution that is necessary to implement this Resolution.

Section 4. Enactment. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. If any
section, paragraph or provision of this Resolution shall be held to be invalid or
unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section,
paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of the Resolution.

This Resolution 2004-14 is adopted this 13" day of July 2004 by roll vote as
follows:

Ayes:
Nays:
Abstain:

Absent:

Chairman

Attested to:

Secretary



To:

From:

Date:

Re:

JLLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM
IFA Board of Directors

Rich Frampton

July 13, 2004

Overview Memo for The University of Chicago /
E-PC-TE-CD-410

Borrower/Project Name: The University of Chicago

Location: Chicago (Cook County) [Hyde Park neighborhood]

. Principal Project Contact: Bill Hogan, Comptroller

‘Board Action Requested: Preliminary Bond Resolution

Amount: not to exceed $200 million
e Uses:
e This project will involve various capital construction and renovation
projects to be financed campus-wide. A detailed listing is contained on

Page 4 of the attached Board Summary report.
Project Type: 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds

IFA Benefits:

_  Conduit Tax-Exempt and Taxable Bonds — no direct IFA or State funds at
risk

— New Money Bonds:
— Series 2004A Bonds: convey tax-exempt status

o IFA Fees:

One-time, upfront closing fee estimated at $163,000

¢ Structure/Ratings:

Bonds to be sold directly based on the University’s credit rating

Long-Term Ratings for IFA (IEFA) Series 2003A Bonds (expected to be

reaffirmed prior to closing with same ratings applied to Series 2004A Bonds)

e Aal (Stable)/AA- (Stable)/ AA+ (Stable) by Moody’s/S&P/Fitch

o Long-Term Ratings recently affirmed by Moody’s (6/3/04), S&P (6/15/04),
and Fitch (6/15/04); ratings should be reaffirmed on the proposed bonds

Short-Term Ratings: VMIG1/A-1+/F1+ (Moody’s/S&P/Fitch)



e Current and estimated rates: Bonds will be sold with term and serial bonds
and/or variable rate bonds maturing over 20 years. The final structure will depend

on prevailing market rates at pricing.

Recommendations/Conditions:
Staff recommends approval — there will be no extraordinary conditions since the

Bonds will be sold with high investment grade credit ratings from all three rating

agencies.

Page 2



JILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

BOARD SUMMARY
Project: The University of Chicago
STATISTICS
IFA Project #:  E-PC-TE-CD-410 Amount: $200,000,000 (not-to-exceed
amount)
Type: Not-for-Profit IFA Staff: Rich Frampton
Locations: Chicago Est. fee: $163,000
SIC Code: 8221 —_—
BOARD ACTION
Preliminary Bond Resolution No IFA funds at risk
Conduit 501(c)(3) Tax-Exempt Revenue Bonds No extraordinary conditions
Staff recommends approval
PURPOSE

This project will involve various capital construction and renovation projects to be financed campus-wide. A
detailed listing is contained under the Project Summary section of this report (see Page 4).

IFA CONTRIBUTION

IFA will convey federal tax exemption on these Bonds. No Volume Cap is required for 501(c)(3) financings.

VOTING RECORD

None. This is the first time this project has been presented to the IFA Board.

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Sources: IFA Bonds $200,000,000/ Uses: Project Costs $280,000,000 L
Equity 84,000,000
. Issuance Costs 4,000,000 ¢~
Total $284.000,000 Total $284,000,000 «

Sources of Equity: The University of Chicago had total endowment fund balances totaling approximately $3.1
billion as of 6/30/2003. Additionally, the University has a $65 million unsecured operating cash line of credit with
the Northern Trust Company that will be drawn as needed to pay costs of issuance for this bond issue. The
University had no draws outstanding against this credit line as of 6/30/2003. Donations from the University’s
annual capital campaign may also be used to pay issuance costs.

JOBS
Current employment: 11,300 Projected new jobs: 100-200
- Jobs retained: N/A Construction jobs: 150-200 est.

average (3 years)



The University of Chicago

Page 2

Background:

Description:

Financials:

BUSINESS SUMMARY

The University of Chicago (the “University”) is a 501(c)(3) organization incorporated under Iilinois
law. The University is a private, non-sectarian, co-educational educational and research founded by
John D. Rockefeller in 1890.

The University’s mission is to provide education in liberal and professional studies. The University
consists of an undergraduate College, and six professional schools (Business, Divinity, Law, Medicine,
Public Policy Studies, and Social Service Administration). Additionally, the University also operates
the Graham School of General Studies (continuing education for adults) and the Laboratory Schools
(K-12 primary and secondary education). The University of Chicago Press is an academic unit of the
University and is the largest academic press in the nation.

The University has 2,135 full-time faculty and 638 part-time faculty. The University’s support staff
total approximately 8,500 full-time and part-time employees, approximately 1,775 of whom are
represented by labor unions.

Since 1998-99, applications to the University have increased 47%. The University’s admissions rate
was 42% in 2002-2003. From 1998-99 to 2002-03, undergraduate enrollment increased from 3,852 to
4,216. This growth reflects the University’s policy of controlled growth. The University plans to
enroll a maximum of 4,500 undergraduate students in 2006-07.

Combined undergraduate and professional enrollment has increased from 12,441 in 1998-99 to 13,234
in 2002-2003. ’

The University has an extensive financial aid program designed to enable the most qualified student to
attend the University regardless of their financial circumstances. For the 2001-02 academic year,
approximately 70% of all students received financial aid.

All payments relating to the approximately $783 million of outstanding IFA (IEFA) Bonds issued on
behalf of the University of Chicago as of 6/30/04 are current.

Audited Financial Statements, 2001-2003 (University only -- excludes University of Chicago
Hospitals from Consolidated Results).

(Dollars in Thousands)
Year Ended June 30
2001 2002 2003

Income Statement: _
Revenues/Support $968,067 $1,088,167 $1,127,529

Change in Net Assets 14,137 58,930 51,130
* EBIDA 87,686 137,323 133,876
Balance sheet:

Current assets $1,033,056 $930,966 $680,639
Net PP&E 702,076 829,204 942,402
Investments 3,778,903 3,605,852 3.477.946
Total assets 5,514,335 5,366,022 5,100,987
Current liabilities 903,120 849,837 661,591
Long Term Debt &

Capital Leases 515,660 662,283 665,177
Other LT Liabilities 38,010 38,538 38,970
Net Assets 4,057,545 3,815,364 3,735,249
Total Liabilities & '

Net Assets 5,514,335 5,366,022 5.100,987




The University of Chicago

Page 3

Discussion:

Ratios:
Scheduled Debt Service 3.52x 5.39x 5.07x
Current Ratio 1.14 1.10 1.03
LT Debt/Net Assets 0.15 0.21 0.22

* EBIDA = Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation and Amortization

The University’s major revenue sources for fiscal year 2003 were net tuition and fees (19%; after
deducting student aid), auxiliary income [i.e., room, dining, parking, entertainment and other
services] (13%), government grants and contracts (23%), private grants (8%), and investment
income (16%). Revenues increased at a compound growth rate of approximately 7.9% per from
2001 to 2003. The two primary sources of revenue growth from 2001 to 2003 were tuition/fees
and government grants/contracts.

The University’s operating expenses consist of compensation (64%), supplies and services (25%),
and utilities/alterations/repairs (3%).

The University of Chicago’s balance sheet reflects investment and endowment balances totaling
approximately $3.48 billion as of 6/30/2003 which represents reflects one of the largest
endowments of any academic institution in the nation. The University’s investment balances as of
6/30/03 represented 523% of total indebtedness. These investments are allocated in a diversified
portfolio across several asset classes including: fixed income, equities, real estate, high yield
funds, real estate, and cash.

As of 6/30/03, the University had outstanding general obligations indebtedness totaling $667.7 .
million (including current portions), evidenced by bonds and notes.

The University’s cash flows have been sufficient to generate operating cash flow sufficient to
cover scheduled debt service payments on existing indebtedness by multiples of 3.52 times or
better over the last 3 years. Liquidity has been excellent and has enabled the University to prepay
an average of $88 million of debt annually since 2001.

Structure:

Term/
Interest Rate:

Security:

FINANCING SUMMARY

Bonds to besold in a corhbination of Fixed and Variable Rate Modes to be determined by the
University and its financing team based on market conditions prior to closing

The Underwriter expects to structure the issue with Bonds maturing in 30 to 40 years. The
final configuration of the Bonds will depend on prevailing market conditions at pricing.

The Bonds will be secured by a general obligation of the University. The Bonds will not be
secured by a mortgage or security interest on any of the University’s assets, properties, or funds.
The University’s Long-Term Debt is currently rated Aal (Stable)/AA- (Stable)/AA+ (Stable)
by Moody’s/S&P/Fitch. The University’s ratings were affirmed by all three rating agencies in
June 2003. The University anticipates the proposed bonds will be rated similarly by all three

rating agencies.



The University of Chicago

Page 4

PROJECT SUMMARY

Bond proceeds will be used by the University to finance, refinance, or be reimbursed for all or a portion of the costs
of the acquisition, construction, renovation, and equipping of certain of its educational facilities, and to pay costs of

issuance on the Bonds.

Cost estimates for

the various capital construction and renovation projects to be financed are ($280M total):

 Planning, design, and construction (§166M total): Graduate School of Business (320M),

Interdivisional Research Building ($60M) , New Research Building ($65M) , Steam Plant
Expansion ($7M), Residence Halls ($14M)

e Renovation and repairs ($28M total): International House, Law School Classrooms,

Residence Halls

e Electrical and HVAC improvements ($11M total): electrical replacement/upgrades; campus

chilled water cooling projects

e Bond proceeds will also finance various campus safety and infrastructure improvements,

chilled water cooling system, laboratory and office renovations, and purchase of scientific
equipment ($75M total)

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

The University of Chicago, 1225 E. 60" St., Chicago; IL, 60637; web site: www.uchicago.edu

Applicant:

Contact: William J. (“Bill”’) Hogan, Jr., Comptroller, Ph.: 773/702-1940;

Project name:  Series 2004A Capital Construction and Renovation Projects

Locations: The University of Chicago’s Hyde Park Campus, 1225 E. 60" St., Chicago, IL 60637
Organization:  Illinois 501(c)(3) Corporation

Board

Membership: See attached list of Board of Trustees

Current Land

Owner: The University of Chicago

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL

Borrower’s Counsel: Schiff Hardin LLP v Chicago, IL Bruce Weisenthal
Borrower’s Financial

Consultant: Public Financial Management, Inc. « Boston, MA June Matte

Bond Counsel: Chapman and Cutler, LLP -~ Chicago, IL Nancy Burke
Senior Manager: Morgan Stanley & Co. -~ - New York, NY Matthew Pearson

Co-Managers:

To be determined

Underwriter Counsel: Foley & Lardner Chicago, IL Chris Knight
Trustee: US Bank — Corporate Trust Services .~ Chicago, IL Grace Gorka

. Escrow Agent: LaSalle Bank National Association *~ ,Chicago, IL Alvita Griffin
General Contractor/Architect: Multiple general contractors.véisting to be available at time of Board Meeting
Accountant: KPMGLLP Chicago, IL Stuart Miller

Rating Agencies: Moody’s/S&P/Fitch

IFA Counsel:

To be determined



The University of Chicago

Page 5
LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS
Congressional: 1
State Senate: 13
State House: 25

iArich\0 IFA 2004 Board Summaries\07-July\07-04 Final UofC PBR
- 7/1/04 8:35 AM
RKF



Trustees of the University

Andrew M. Alper
David G. Booth
John H. Bryan
Thomas A. Cole

E. David Coolidge I11*
Jon S. Corzine

James S. Crown
Katharine P. Darrow
Anthony T. Dean
Jamie Dimon*
Strachan Donnelley
Craig J. Duchossois
James S. Frank

Jack W. Fuller

James J. Glasser
Eric J. Gleacher
Stanford J. Goldblatt
Katherine C. Gould
Sanford J. Grossman
‘Rajat K. Gupta

J. Parker Hall 111

President. NYC Economic Development Corporation
Chairman and CEO. Dimensional Fund Advisors. Inc.
Retired Chairman and CEO. Sara Lee Corporation
Chairman of the Executive Committee and Partner.
Sidley Austin Brown and Wood
President and CEO. William Blair & Company. L.L.C.
United States Senator, State of New Jersey
General Partner. Henry Crown and Company
Retired Senior Vice President. The New York Times Company
Retired President & COO, The John Nuveen Company
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Bank One Corporation
Director, The Humans and Nature Program, The Hastings Center
Chief Executive Officer, Duchossois Industries
President and CEO, Wheels, Inc.
President, Tribune Publishing Company
Chairman Emeritus, GATX Corporation
Chairman, Gleacher Partners, L.L.C.
Partner, Winston & Strawn
Founder and General Partner, Foundation Capital
Chairman, Quantitative Financial Strategies, Inc.
Managing Director, McKinsey & Company, Inc.
Managing Director, New Salem Capital, L.L.C.

King W. Harris

Valerie B. Jarrett

Ann Dibble Jordan
Karen L. Katen

Dennis J. Keller

Arthur L. Kelly

Michae! J. Klingensmith
Michael L. Klowden
Lien Chan

Walter E. Massey
Peter W. May

John W. McCarter. Jr.
Joseph Neubauer
Harvey B. Plotnick
Thomas Jay Pritzker
Don Michael Randel
George A. Ranney, Jr.
John W. Rogers, Jr.

Andrew M. Rosenfield
Steven G. Rothmeier
Richard P. Strubel
- Byron D. Trott*
Marshall I. Wais, Jr.
-Paula Wolff
Francis T. F. Yuen

' Chairman, Harris Holdings, Inc
‘Executive Vice President, The Habitat Company

Director, Johnson & Johnson .

President, Pfizer Global Pharmaceuticals

Chairman and CEO, DeVry Inc.

Managing Partner, KEL Enterprises, L.P.

Executive Vice President, Time, Inc.

President and Chief Executive Officer Milken Institute

Chairman, Central Committee of the Kuomintang,
Republic of China

President, Morehouse College

President and COO, Triarc Companies, Inc.

President and CEO, The Field Museum

Chairman and CEO, ARAMARK

President, Paradigm Holdings Inc.

President, Hyatt Corporation

President, The University of Chicago

President, Chicago Metropolis 2020

Chairman and CEO, Ariel Capital Management, Inc.,
Ariel Mutual Funds :

Chairman and CEO, UNext, Inc.

Chairman and CEOQ, Great Northern Capital

President and COO, UNext, Inc.

Managing Director and Partner, Goldman, Sachs & Company

Chief Executive Officer, Marwais International L.L.C

Senior Executive, Chicago Metropolis 2020

Deputy Chairman, Pacific Century CyberWorks Limited



To:

From:

Date:

Re:

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM
IFA Board of Directors
Rich Frampton
July 13, 2004

Overview Memo for MJH Education Assistance IV LLC
(Fullerton Residential Village Project)

E-PC-TE-CD-407

Borrower/Project Name: MJH Education Assistance IV LLC
Location: 1257 W. Fullerton Ave., Chicago (Cook County), IL 60657

Principal Project Contact: Benjamin Noble, President, MJH Education
Foundation, Philadelphia, PA

Board Action Requested: Preliminary Bond Resolution

Amount: not to exceed $80.0 million (anticipated amount $72.8 million)
e Uses: ) -

e Finance the acquisition of land and the construction and equipping ofa
new 169-unit/626-bed student dormitory facility at DePaul’s Lincoln Park
campus.

e Project will provide campus housing designed primarily for
upperclassmen.

Project Type: 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds

IF A Benefits:
— Conduit Tax-Exempt Bonds — no direct IFA or State funds at risk

— New Money Bonds:
— Series 2004A-D Bonds: convey tax-exempt status

IFA Fees:
e One-time, upfront closing fee estimated at $127,800



e Structure/Ratings:

Structured, non-recourse, project financing
Bonds will be rated by at least two of the three major credit rating agencies

Bonds will be secured solely by:
1. Project revenues
2. First Mortgage and First Security Interest in project assets

e The Bonds will not be secured by DePaul University or MJH Education
Foundation

Expected Ratings for the proposed 3-Series Structure Senior Bonds:

e Series 2004A (2.25x coverage): AA/AA (S&P/Fitch)

e Series 2004B (1.50x coverage): A/A (S&P/F itch)

e Series 2004C (1.20x coverage): BBB/BBB- (S&P/Fitch)

e Subordinate Series 2004D: non-rated (must be privately placed — see
condition below) :

Current and estimated rates: Bonds will be sold with term and serial bonds

~ maturing over 30 years. The final structure and pricing will depend on

prevailing market rates at pricing and negotiations with prospective
bondholders. '

e Recommendations/Conditions:
« Staff recommends approval — subject to the following extraordinary conditions:

Extraordinary Conditions:

1. Subordinate Series 2004 D Bonds must be privately placed and sold to
Accredited Investors (i.¢., in minimum denominations of $100,000).

Page 2



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
BOARD SUMMARY

Project: MJH Education Assistance IV LLC
(Fullerton Residential Village Project)

STATISTICS
Project Number: E-PC-TE-CD-407 Amount: $80,000,000 (not-to-exceed amount)
Type: Not-for-Profit Bonds IFA Staff: Rich Frampton
Location: Chicago Est. fee: $127,800 (assumes $72.8 million issue)
BOARD ACTION

Preliminary Bond Resolution
Conduit 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds

No [FA funds at risk
Staff recommends approval subject to the following condition:

Extraordinary condition:

1. The non-rated Subordinate Series 2004D Bonds must be sold in minimum denominations of $100,000
and be privately placed (initially the Series 2004D Bonds will be purchased by Smithfield Properties,

the “Developer™).

Comment: Project financing commitment from bond purchasers will be contingent on rezonmg of 1257 W.
Fullerton to Residential/Institutional Planned Unit Development.

PURPOSE

Construction of a new, 169 unit/626-bed student dormitory facility at DePaul University’s Lincoln Park campus.

IFA CONTRIBUTION

Conveyance of federal tax-exempt status on Bonds. 501(c)(3) bond issues do not require Volume Cap.

VOTING RECORD

None. This is the first time this project has been reviewed by the IFA Board.

PRELIMINARY SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Sources: IFA Senior A-C Bonds $71,000,000 . Uses: Project Costs $65,647,927 v
IFA Series D Sub. Bds. 1,830,000~ Debt Svc. Reserves 5,136,113 «
Forward Invest. Contr. 900.000 Working Capital
Operating Reserve 550,000
Capital Reserves 135,000 «~
Development Fee 1,804,360
Issuance Costs 1,456,600, -
Total $73.730,000 Total $73.730,000



MIJH Education Assistance [V LLC
(Fullerton Residential Village Project)

Page 2
JOBS
Current employment: 0 Projected new jobs: 22
Jobs retained: N/A Construction jobs: 150 (16 months)
BUSINESS SUMMARY

Background:

Description:

Development

Team:

MJH Education Assistance IV LLC (the “Borrower” and “Obligor”) is a to-be-formed Illinois
limited liability company. The sole member of the Borrower will be MJH Education & Healthcare
Assistance Foundation (the “Foundation™), a California 501(c)(3) not-for-profit corporation. The
Foundation is governed by a three-member Board of Directors (see Economic Disclosure Statement

section on Page 5 of this report).

The Obligor is being established by the Foundation solely for the purpose of developing the subject
project (Fullerton Residential Village) for lease to DePaul University.

In early 2002, the Foundation terminated its private foundation status and became a “supporting
organization” of DePaul University under Section 509(a)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

As a “supporting organization” to DePaul, the Foundation has previously established three separate

single-member limited liability companies to develop and finance various facilities for lease to DePaul.

These facilities have included dormitories and parking facilities on DePaul’s Lincoln Park campus
(including a dormitory facility that DePaul will be purchasing from MJH with IFA Bond Financing
approved by the IFA Board at the May 2004 Board Meeting).

The Foundation has built or substantiaily renovated approximately 1,000 student housing beds for
DePaul over the last five years.

The proposed project involves construction of a new 620-bed apartment-style student housing facility
with 100% single occupancy bedrooms, and 80 indoor, on-grade parking spaces. Additionally, the
facility will also have 5,000 to 10,000 feet of ground floor retail space. These non-qualified uses will
represent less than 3.7% of space and less than 5% of revenues, thereby allowing the facility to be
100% financed with tax-exempt bonds.

The new facility will help address the current housing shortage for students, particularly
upperclassmen, at DePaul’s Lincoln Park campus. DePaul has had ongoing waiting list of several
hundred students for on-campus housing. This project will serve those students (i.e., 3" and 4" year
undergraduates) who have the most difficulty obtaining affordable housing close to the campus.
DePaul is hopeful that the proposed facility will reduce its transfer rate by upperclassmen.

According to the Foundation, the proposed tax-exempt bond issue will enable MJH to construct a
high-quality hybrid dormitory facility that will provide amenities typically found in apartments but in
an on-campus facility. The anticipated per-bed cost to students will be approximately $990/month for

a four-bedroom, four-student unit.

The site of the project is currently the site of a functionally obsolete trade school facility (Coyne
American Institute) that will be relocating to the West Side of Chicago in December 2004.

All payments relating to the $50.88 million of outstanding IFA/IEFA Bonds previously issued on .

behalf of MJH Educational Foundation have been current.

Smithfield Properties, LLC, (“Smithfield”) of Chicago will construct the project on behalf of the
Borrower. Smithfield has purchased the subject property and will be the initial purchaser of the




MJH Education Assistance [V LLC
(Fullerton Residential Village Project)
Page 3

$1,830,000 SubordinateSeries 2004D Bonds. The anticipated project completion date is August 2006.
Smithfield has successfully developed more than 700 student housing units on behalf of the School of

the Art Institute.

The Scion Group LLC of Chicago will be the Development Consultant and Property Manager. Scion
has previously managed two properties for DePaul and has also served as Development Consultant and
Property Manager for the new University Center dormitory opening in the South Loop in August 2004
to serve students of DePaul, Roosevelt University, and Columbia College.

Financials: Projected financials for fiscal years ended 7/31/2007 through 7/31/2011 as prepared by the Applicant.

(Dollars in $ 000’s)

Year Ended July 31
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Revenue Stabilized
Gross Rent $7,982 $8,302 $8,634 $8979 $9,338
Less Vacancy Loss (1,197) (415) (432) (449) 467)
Less 1.5% Bad Debt (102) (118) (123) (128) (133)
Less Staff Housing (128) (134 (139) (145) (150)

Ancil.Rev.(laundry, vending, etc.) 136 158 164 171 177
Retail Space Net Rent ($7.50/SF Net;

75% Occupied) 84 88 91 95 99
Parking Revenue 50 52 55 37 59
Projected Total Revenue 6,825 7,933 8,250 8,580 8,923

Operating Expenses:
Utilities 460 479 497 518 538
Maintenance 595 697 806 838 871
Management Fee (4.5%) 305 317 330 343 357
Residence Life Expenses 326 339 352 366 381
Insurance 205 213 221 230 240
Maintenance Reserve ($0.60/SF) 166 172 179 187 194
Project Total Oper. Exp. 2,057 2217 2,385 2,482 2,581
| Net Operating Income: 4,768 5,716 5,865 6,098 6,342
Series 2004A Net Debt Service: - 2,435 2,608 2,606 2,607
Series 2004A Debt Service Coverage: - 2.35 2.25 2.34 2.43
Series 2004B Net Debt Service: - 1219 1,304 1,306 1,306
Series 20048 Debt Service Coverage: - 1.56 1.50 1.56 1.62
Series 2004C Net Debt Service: - 892 956 957 961
Series 2004C Debt Service Coverage: - 1.26 1.20 1.25 1.30
|* Project Income After Sr. Debt Sve.: 4,768 1,170 997 1,229 1,468
Subordinate Series 2004D Net D.S.: - 166 178 182 180
Series 2004D Debt Service Coverage: - 1.21 1.16 1.21 1.25

Asset Mgmt. Fee (0.50%Gross Rev.): 34 40 41 43 45

Excess Funds after D.S. and
Mgmt Fee: 4,734 964 778 1,004 1,243




MJH Education Assistance [V LLC
(Fullerton Residential Village Project)

Page 4
Discussion: These projections were prepared by the Borrower.
Key projection assumptions include the following:
e Bonds issued as of 12/1/2004
e Construction will be completed in July 2006
e The property will commence occupancy in August 2006
e Vacancy assumptions: Year 1(2007): 15%; Ongoing: 5% (stabilized in Year 2 —
2008) _
e Rent Escalation: 4% per annum
e Expense Escalation: 4% per annum
e Monthly rental rates identical to University Center project in South Loop for each
respective unit size (University Center was 85% pre-leased as of 5/1/04, in advance
of 8/04 initial occupancy)
e Debt service payments begin as of 8/1/2007
Flow of Funds Assumptions (3-Series Structure — Preliminary Subject to Change as
proposed by Borrower):
e  Student Rents first applied to make required deposits to Operations & Maintenance Reserves
e Rents then applied to service debt service payments under 4-Tranche Structure
e  4-Tranche Structure (with the 3 senior tranches sold and rated based on projected
debt service coverage as necessary to achieve the benchmark ratings; one non-rated,
subordinate tranche)
e Series 2004A: 2.25x coverage (AA Rated)
e Series 2004B: 1.50x coverage (A Rated)
e  Series 2004C: 1.20x coverage (BBB Rated)
e Subordinate Series 2004D: 1.00x (Non-rated)
e Payments Subordinated to all Bonds:
e Capital Maintenance Reserves
e Debt Service Reserve
e  Developer Payments Subordinated to Capital and Debt Service Reserves
e  Excess Funds after Developer Fees distributed to MJH with excess cash
Sflow gifted to DePaul University
The MJH-prepared forecasts project stabilization beginning with the 2007-2008 academic year.
Based on the foregoing assumptions, the Fullerton Residential Village will generate Net Operating
Income sufficient to attain debt service coverage benchmarks required to attain the projected
ratings.
Upon repayment of the proposed Bonds in 2034, MJH will donate Fullerton Residential Village to
DePaul University.
FINANCING SUMMARY
Bonds: Fixed rate bonds to be sold without credit enhancement with a maturity of 30 years.
The Bonds will be issued as multiple series of one issue, with differing levels of debt service
coverage to take advantage of lower rates associated with the more highly rated portions of the
transaction (as noted in the preceding section of this report). Minimum coverage is anticipated at
1.20x for the lowest rated senior portion (Series 2004C currently assumed to be rated
“BBB”/BBB” (S&P/Fitch)).
Subordinate



MJH Education Assistance [V LLC
(Fullerton Residential Village Project)

Page 5

Bonds:

Payments:

Security:

Debt
Svc. Reserves:

The Subordinate Series 2004D Bonds will partially finance the acquisition of the subject land and
will be privately placed.

Level annual debt service payments. Final maturity date: 1/1/2034
The Bonds will be solely secured by (i) project revenues and (ii) a First Mortgage on Project

Assets. The Bonds will not be guaranteed by DePaul University.

Funded for all four subseries and capitalized at levels sufficient to cover 1 year of Maximum
Annual Debt Service payments.

PROJECT SUMMARY

Bond proceeds will finance the acquisition of land, site improvements (including the demolition of existing
improvements located thereon), and the construction and equipping of a new 626-bed, 6-story student residential
facility with 70 indoor parking spaces and approximately 15,000 square feet of ground floor retail space to be
located at 1257 W. Fullerton Ave., Chicago (Cook County), IL 60614-2102. The facility will be commonly known
as Fullerton Residential Village and will serve students of DePaul University’s Lincoln Park campus.

A summary of preliminary estimated project costs follow:

Land Acquisition: $13,750,000
Construction/Equipping 42,240,123
Capitalized Interest 9.657.804
Total $65,647,927

Applicant:

Project name:
Location:
Organizations:

Board
Membership:

Current
Property
Owner:

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

MJH Education Assistance IV LLC, (c/o Mr. Benjamin Noble, President, Civic Finance
Associates, Inc., 603 Great Springs Road, Bryn Mawr, PA 19010-1701; Tel.: 610-525-8185; e-
mail: blnoble@cfainc.pet)

Fullerton Residential Village

1257 W. Fullerton Avenue, Chicago (Cook County), IL 60614-2102

MJH Education Assistance IV LLC, an Illinois Limited Liability Company to be formed

MJH Education Assistance Foundation: a California 501(c)(3) Corporation

David L. Horne
Sheri Lynn Jensen
Dennis E. Howarth, Independent Director, National Registered Agents, Inc.

Coyne American Institute. Contact: Mr. R. T. Freeman, President, Coyne American Institute,
1235-57 W. Fullerton Ave., Chicago, IL 60614; Ph.: 800-999-5220. This property may be
purchased by Smithfield Properties, LLC for an interim period in order to expedite relocation of
Coyne American Institute prior to closing of the proposed Bonds. (Upon closing of the Bonds,
MJH Education Assistance IV LLC will purchase the subject property.)



MJH Education Assistance [V LLC
(Fullerton Residential Village Project)

Page 6
PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL
Borrower’s Counsel: Davis Wright Tremaine LLP v Los Angeles, CA Steve Hazen
Bond Counsel: Chapman and Cutler, LLP Chicago, IL Jim Luebchow
Senior Manager: Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. v~ Philadelphia, PA Chris McNichol
Chicago, IL Ray Kljajic
Co-Senior Manager: Lehman Brothers, Inc. £ New York, NY John Augustine,
Jim Costello
Chicago, IL Carole Brown

Underwriter’s /

Counsel: Orrick Herrington New York, NY

Trustee: TBD v~

Accountant: Isdaner & Co. v~ Bala Cywnyd, PA Gene Ristaino
Development

Consultant: Smithfield Properties, LLC v Chicago, IL Robert Buono
Architect: Antunovich Associates v e Chicago, IL Joseph Antunovich
General Contractor: Wooton Construciton Ltd. Chicago, IL W. Harris Smith
Student Housing

Consultant/Prop.Mgr.:The Scion Group LLC Chicago, IL Robert Bronstein
IFA Counsel: TBD

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS

Congressional: 5 Rahm Emanuel

State Senate: 6 John J. Cullerton

State House: 11 John A. Fritchey

i\rich\0 IFA 2004 Board Summaries\07-July\07-04 Updated MJH Educational Assistance IV PBR

6/26/04 7:41 AM
RKF



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Memorandum

Marcia L. Cochran, Program Administrator

To: IF A Board of Directors
From:

Date: July 13, 2004

Re: City of Sparta

Borrower/Project Name:

Location:

Principal Project Contact:

Board Action Requested:
Amount:

Project Type:

IFA Benefits:

IFA Fees:

Rating:

City of Sparta
Sparta (Randolph County)

Mary Kane, Stifel Nicolaus & Company, Inc.
(Underwriter)

Approval of an Initial Bond Resolution

$14,000,000

Local Government Alternate Revenue Bonds

Conduit tax-exempt — no direct IFA or State Funds at risk
$21,000

Municipal bond insurance required on this project



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
BOARD SUMMARY
July 13, 2004

Project: City of Sparta

STATISTICS
Project Number: L-GO-TE-CD-406 Amount: Not to exceed $14,000,000
Type: Local Government PA: Marcia Cochran
Location: Sparta Est fee: $21,000

BOARD ACTION
Inital Bond Resolution Staff recommends approval
Conduit Local Government Bonds No extraordinary conditions
No IDFA funds at risk
PURPOSE

To construct water and sewer infrastructure.

VOLUME CAP

Local government bonds - no volume cap required.

VOTING RECORD

This is the first time this project has been presented to the Board.

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Sources: IFA Bonds $14.,000,000 Uses: Project Costs $13,712,600
Issuance Costs 287.400
Total $14,000,000 Total $14,000,000
JOBS
Current employment: 43 Projected new jobs: 150*
Jobs retained: N/A Construction jobs: TBD

*Estimated 150 new full-time jobs created at the site of the World Shooting Complex, owned by Illinois Department
" of Natural Resources. However, these are not City jobs. '

R



City of Sparta
Page 2

Background:

Description:

Remarks:

MUNICIPAL SUMMARY

The City of Sparta (the “City”) was founded in 1829, and has a population of 4,486. The City is
located in Randolph County, approximately 50 miles from the cities of St. Louis and Carbondale.
The City is bordered predominantly by farming communities. Chester is the county seat,
approximately 15 miles to the southwest. Three interstate highways, [-55, I-57 and 1-64, and a
regional airport serve the City’s transportation needs. Also, Kaskaskia River is nearby, and the
Mlinois Central Gulf and Union Pacific Railways make daily stops in the region. One elementary
school, junior high school and high school serve the residents of the City, with 1,500 students from
many outlying areas. The City as a 39-bed hospital and two nursing homes.

The City operates under a Commission form of Government, with a mayor and six commissioners.
The City’s median home value is $43,600, and the median family income is $25,859 as of the 1990
census. The City’s unemployment rate is 6.1% (as of 2000) compared to the county rate of 5.4%
and the State rate of 4.4%.

The Illinois Department of Natural Resources (“IDNR”) owns the 1,200 acres of land on which
the World Shooting Complex will be constructed. A contract has been signed with the Amateur
Trapshooting Association (“ATA”), for shooting competition scheduled to commence in
August of 2006, with 10,000 persons anticipated to attend the event. Other camping and
shooting events are planned throughout the year. The site is owned by IDNR and will employ
between 130 - 150 full-time employees. IDRN will be responsible for all costs, including the
following key features: construction of the roads, buildings, trap and archery shooting facilities,
5,000 parking spaces, campground featuring 1,000 campsites and many other amenities. The
site must be available for ATA inspection by November 2005, and there are tentative plans to
have minor events on the grounds in July 2005. A certified Feasibility Study is also being
prepared to verify the financial projections prepared for the Sparta facility, which are based on
the ATA’s performance over the last twenty years in Ohio. '

Project: IDNR has asked the City of Sparta to construct the water and sewer infrastructure to
the site of the World Shooting Complex and also to construct the water distribution and sewage
collection system within the boundaries of the site. The City passed a Resolution to issue
Alternate Revenue Bonds for this project. Current negotiations are underway for the City of
Sparta to annex the site to the City as well as to enter into certain Intergovernmental
Agreements with both IDNR and the County of Randolph to assist in the financing of the

project.

The City’s 6 major employers are as follows:

Spartan Light Metal Products 550
Wal-Mart 280
Sparta Community Hospital 250
Peabody Coal Company 200
Zeigler Coal Company 150
Diamond Comic Distributor 130

Major ta){payers in the City with their corresponding E.A.V.’s are as follows:

Wal-Mart 2,138,180
Grupo Serla 868,025
Spartan Aluminum 456,650
Kroger 367,725
Illinois Power 336,500



City of Sparta
Page 3
Financials: Statement of Long-Term Bonded Indebtedness:
Ratio to: Per Capita
EAV Actual  (Current est. 4,486)
Assessed Valuation: 2003 $ 36,420,909 100.00% 33.33% § 8,119
Est. Actual Value: 2003 $109,262,727 300.00%  100.00% $24,356
Direct Bonded Debt: $ 4,370,000 12.00% 400% § 974
Less: Self-Supporting Debt* § 4,370,000 12.00% 400% $ 974
Total Overlapping Debt: $ 4,704,682 12.92% 431% $1,049
Total Dir. And OL Debt: $ 4,704,682 12.92% 431% $1,049
Discussion: *Under 65 ILCS 5/8-5-1, the City may incur indebtedness not to exceed 8.625% of the assessed
value of taxable property therein. The City’s equalized assessed valuation as of January 1, 2003, is
$36,420,909. Accordingly, the City’s legal debt limit is $3,141,303. This figure excludes the
valuation associated with the City’s two tax increment redevelopment areas and also the Alternate
Revenue Bonds to be issued with this project.
Pursuant to Section 15 of the Local Government Debt Reform Act, Alternate Revenue Bonds are
payable from the pledged revenue with general obligation of the City as back-up security.
Alternate revenue bonds do not count toward this City’s debt limit unless the ad valorem taxes are
extended to pay this indebtedness. The City’s tax base is growing and the rates have gradually
"been falling. The City currently has no General Obligation debt.
The role of Alternate Revenue Bonds strengthen the creditworthiness of revenue backed
projects.
FINANCING SUMMARY
Security: Alternate Revenue Bonds secured by : 1) Sales tax and infrastructure tax from the project site,
2) Remaining revenue funds after the City’s TIF bond indebtedness, 3) Water and sewer fees,
4) The City’s General Obligation as back-up security. Municipal bond insurance will be
required.
Structure: Fixed rate serial bonds.

Serial Maturity: Thirty years.

PROJECT SUMMARY

Proceeds of the bond issue will be used to construct water and sewer infrastructure to the site of the World Shooting
Complex and also to construct the water distribution and sewage collection system within the boundaries of the site.

Projects Costs:  $13,712,600



Borrower Auditor:

City of Sparta
Page 4
ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

Applicant: City of Sparta

Project Name: City of Sparta World Shooting Complex

Location Sparta (Randolph County)

Organization: Non-home rule city

State: Illinois

Officials: Mayor - Randy Bertetto

Commissioners — Richard T. Cavalier Lyndon Thies
Jason Schlumme Marsha Schwartz
Shirley A. Reimer Brenda Sullivan
PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL
Borrower: City of Sparta -~ Sparta, IL Alan P. Dyke
Borrower Counsel: ~ Alan R. Farris t/ Sparta, IL

J. W. Boyle & Co., Ltd. / S‘/élolurnbia, IL Keith G. Brinkmann

Complex Owner: IL Dept. of Natural Resource ringfield, IL  Joel Brunsvold, Director
Complex Counsel:  IL Dept. of Natural Resources8pringfield, IL  Jonathan Furr
Underwriter: _ # Stifel Nicolaus & Co., Inc. v~ Edwardsville, IL Mary Kane
Bond Counsel: %«;H Chapman & Cutler v~ Chicago, IL Kelly K. Kost
Disclosure Counsel: Chapman & Cutler - Chicago, IL William M. Libit

A / Issuer’s Counsel: To Be Determined 4

W /.y Trustee: To Be Determined

?N Project Architect: AAIC Incorporated 4 Collinsville, I Calvin C. Morris

@ Project Engineer: Knight Engineers/Architects ~Chicago, IL Daniel G. Kavanaugh
Water/Sewer Henry, Meisenheimer/Gende -’ Carlyle, IL David W. Rodden
Engineer: Harold Palmer
Printer: To Be Determined
Bond Insurer: To Be Determined
Rating Agency: To Be Determined

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS
Congressional: 12 Jerry Costello
State Senate: 58 David Luechtefeld
State House: 116 Dan Reitz
City Clerk: Shirley A. Reimer
114 West Jackson

Sparta, IL 62286-1606
(618)443-2917



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
Memorandum

To: IFA Board of Directors

From : Townsend Albright, Senior Program Administrator
Jim Senica, Senior Program Administrator

Date: July 13, 2004

Re: Overview memo for Englewood Cooperative Apartments, Inc.

e Borrower/Project Name: Englewood Cooperative Apartments, Inc. v

e Location: Chicago (Cook County)

e Principal Project Contact: Marvin Husby, Director c/o Englewood Cooperative Apartments, Inc.
900 W. 63“‘ Parkway Chicago, IL 60621

e Board Action Requested: Preliminary approval to issue not-for-profit bonds
e Amount: $6,500,000 (not-to-exceed amount) -~

Refinancing Money: $5,830,068
New Money: $970,282 for building renovation

o Project Type: Other Not-for-Profit

e IFA Benefits:

- Conduit Tax-Exempt Bonds — no direct IFA or State funds at risk
- New Money Bonds: Convey tax-exempt status 4
- Refunding Bonds: Lower interest costs

e IFA Fees:

- Application fee: $1,000
- Closing fee: $33,000

e Structure:

Not-for-profit tax-exempt bond issued by IFA will be placed by
Ziegler Capital Markets Group

- Maturity — 30 years
- Fixed-rate tax-exempt bonds



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

BOARD SUMMARY

July 13, 2004

Deal: Englewood Cooperative Apartments, Inc.
STATISTICS
Deal Number: N-NP-TE-CD-411 Amount: $6,500,000 (not-to-exceed amount)
Type: Not-for-Profit Bond PA: Townsend Albright & Jim Senica
Location: Chicago Tax ID: 36-3286008
Est fee: $33,800

BOARD ACTION
Preliminary Bond Resolution , Staff recommends approval
Conduit 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds No extraordinary conditions
No IFA funds at risk

PURPOSE

Bond proceeds will be used to refinance an existing HUD Direct Section 202 loan and to finance renovations of the
building including replacement of windows and installation of sprinklers in existing units.

VOLUME CAP

No Volume Cap is required for 501(c)(3) Bond financing.

VOTING RECORD

Initial Board consideration, no previous voting record.

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Sources: Revenue Bonds $6,500,000 Uses: Refinancing $5,830,068
Replacement Reserves 400,000 Project Costs 970,282
Residual Receipts 297.000 Issuance Costs 396,650
Total $7.197,000 Total $7,197,000
JOBS
. Current employment: 11 Projected new jobs:  N/A
Jobs retained: 11 Construction jobs: 15



Englewood Cooperative Apartments, Inc.
Page 2

BUSINESS SUMMARY

Background: Englewood Cooperative Apartments, Inc. was incorporated in 1981 and was organized for
the sole purpose of constructing and owning the Bethel Terrace Apartments affordable
housing development located at 900 West 63" Parkway in Chicago. Englewood
Cooperative Apartments, Inc. is a 501(c)(3) corporation.

Description: Bethel Terrace Apartments has 122 apartments occupied by approximately 130 low
income elderly residents, the majority of which come from the economically disadvantaged
Englewood neighborhood on Chicago’s south side. The property is 100% section 8
subsidized with no residents ever evicted for their inability to pay rent. To allow these
elderly residents to maintain their independence as long as possible, the building does
employ a Social Service Coordinator who maintains an extensive program of social services.

Remarks: Bethel Terrace Apartments was one of the initial lynchpins for revitalization of the
Englewood neighborhood. Again, with the majority of its residents coming from the
neighborhood, the project has had a positive effect on the overall surrounding community
over the last 20 years. Bethel Terrace Apartments utilizes neighborhood vendors whenever
possible and its well-maintained building is prominent in an area having many abandoned
and dilapidated properties.

Financials: Audited Financial Statements of Englewood Cooperative Apartments, Inc. for 2002 and 2003

Year Ended June 30
2002 2003
(Dollars in 000’s)

Income statement

Revenues/Support 1,185 1,230
Net Rev. over Exp. (54) (56)
Balance Sheet
Current assets 166 50
PP&E 3,440 3,435
Other assets 997 997
Total assets 4,603 4,482
Current liabilities 245 262
LT Debt 5,233 5,150
Net assets (875) (930)
Total liab. & net assets 4,603 4,482
Ratios
Debt Service Coverage 1.15 1.17
Current Ratio 0.68 0.19
Debt/Net Assets (6.07) (5.63)



Englewood Cooperative Apartments, Inc.
Page 3

Discussion: While Englewood Cooperative Apartments, Inc. has reported net operating
losses in both fiscal years 2002 and 2003, the Company actually generated a
profit of $172,338 before depreciation in FY 2003 and a profit of $164,635
before depreciation in FY 2002. Revenues are projected to be $1.20 million
in FY 2004 and $1.27 million in FY 2005.

The development is presently under an original HUD Project Based Section 8
Rental Assistance Program contract until 2008. Scheduled for renewal in 2008,
the development will continue to be eligible for extension of the contract every
5 years thereafter. All of the units are designated as Low Income Units and will
be reserved by the Borrower for rent to Section 8 eligible tenants who receive
rental assistance under HUD’s Section 8 Program.

In exchange for HUD allowing the Englewood Cooperative Apartments, Inc. to refinance
the Section 202 loan, the development owners must sign a use agreement agreeing to
maintain the property as a low income for the remaining life of the original Section 202

40-year loan.

In the last several years, the property has consistently scored very high on its annual
HUD audits and has retained excellent managerial team.

Monthly rents currently in effect are $728 for a studio apartment and $931
for a one bedroom apartment.

FINANCING SUMMARY

Structure: Fixed Rate tax-exempt Bonds

Maturity: 30 Years
Rating: Bonds will be rated through Moody’s 202 Rating Program

PROJECT SUMMARY

The proposed project entails the refinancing of an existing HUD Direct section 202 loan as well as the financing
of renovations to the real estate located at 900 W 63 Parkway in Chicago (Cook County) and additionally will
be used to pay costs of issuance. Renovations will primarily entail replacement of windows in the building

and the installation of sprinklers in existing units.

Proceeds will be used as follows:

Refinancing $5,830,068
Renovations 970,282
Issuance Costs 396,650
Total $7.197,000

Refinancing the existing debt will lower interest costs enabling the Company to use funds saved to make needed
repairs and maintain viability of the development.



Englewood Cooperative Apartments, Inc.

Page 4
ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
Applicant: Englewood Cooperative Apartments, Inc.
Project name:  Bethel Terrace
Location: 900 W. 63 Parkway Chicago, Illinois (Cook County)
Organization: 501 (c)(3) Not-for-Profit Corporation
State: Illinois
Board: List of Bethel Terrace Board attached

Property Owner: Englewood Cooperative Apartments, Inc.

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL

Borrower’s Counsel: Applegate Thorne Thompson «~ Chicago, IL Mark Burns
Accountant: ling and Associates* “Indianapolis, IN Rob Ford
Bond Counsel: To be determine

Underwriter: Ziegler Capital Markets Group + Milwaukee, WI  Miriam R. Simon
Trustee: To be determined >

IDFA Counsel: (Tobe determined—>

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS

Congressional: 1 - Bobby L. Rush

State Senate: 3 — Mattie Hunter

State House: 6 — Patricia Bailey

Bethel Terrace Board

Veronica Payne, President 900 West 63™ Parkway, #1003 Chicago, IL 60621
Earlye Myers, Treasurer 900 West 63" Parkway, #704 Chicago, IL 60621
Florence Heron, Vice President 900 West 63 Parkway, #506 Chicago, IL 60621
Florence Garrison, Secretary 900 West 63" Parkway, #703 Chicago, IL 60621
Doris Arrington 900 West 63™ Parkway, #601 Chicago, IL 60621
Marvin Husby III 852 West Armitage Chicago, IL 60614
Carolyn Stewart 6120 S. Peoria Chicago, IL 60621

The Rev. Dr. Raymond Legania, Pastor
- Bethel — Imani Lutheran Church 6201 S. Sangamon Street Chicago, IL 60621



»

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Memorandum

To: IFA Board of Directors

From: Steven Trout, Marketer

Date: July 13, 2004

Re: Overview Memo for Featherfist and Featherfist Development Corporation

N-NP-TE-CD-412

Borrower/Project Name: Featherfist and Featherfist Development Corporation

Locations: Chicago (Cook Co.)
Principal Project Contact: Dr. Melanie Anewishki, Director/President (773) 721-7088

Board Action Requested: Preliminary Bond Resolution

Amount: Not to exceed $1,500,000

= Uses:
= Partially finance the construction of a commercial office building a 1E. 75"

Street, Chicago and refinance indebtedness on property located at 5714-16 S.
Calumet Avenue, Chicago S—

Project Type: Not-for-Profit 501(c)(3) Bonds

IFA Benefits:
= Convey federal tax-exempt status
» No IFA or State funds at risk

IFA Fees:
= $7,000

Structure:
» Fixed rate bonds (initial rate of 5.3% for the first 5 years; to be reset every 5 years)

= 20 year amortization and maturity
= To be purchased directly by First American Bank as a direct investment to be held to

maturity



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

BOARD SUMMARY
Deal: Featherfist and Featherfist Development Corporation
STATISTICS
Deal Number: N-NP-TE-CD-412 Amount: $1,500,000 (not-to-exceed amount)
Type: Not-for-Profit Marketer: Steve Trout
Location: Chicago Tax ID: 05-0577776
Est. fee: $7,000
BOARD ACTION
Preliminary Bond Resolution Staff recommends approval
Conduit 501(c)(3) Bond Financing
No IFA funds at risk No Extraordinary Conditions
PURPOSE

Finance the construction of a commercial office building at 2301 E 75™ Street, Chicago and refinance indebtedness
on property located at 5714-6 S. Calumet Avenue, Chicago

VOLUME CAP

No Volume Caia is required for 501(c)(3) Bond Financing.

VOTING RECORD

This is the first time that this project has been presented to the IFA Board.

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Sources: IFA Bonds $1,400,000 Uses: Project Costs $2,153,239
IL Facilities Fund Loan 790,000 Refinance Indebtedness 104,400

Equity 139,386 Costs of Issuance 45,000

Capitalized Interest 26,747

Total $2,329,386 Total $2,329.386

JOBS
Current employment: 39 Projected new jobs: 25
Jobs retained: N/A Construction jobs: NA
BUSINESS SUMMARY

Background: Featherfist is a not-for-profit 501(c)3 organization founded by Dr. Me
formally incorporated in 1990 to give power and purpose to individual
supportive services that promote re-entry into the mainstream.

own property for Featherfist. Featherfist and FDC will be co-borrowers for this project.

Featherfist based in the South Shore community area on Chicago’s south side and provides
services citywide. Featherfist’s services extend beyond shelter to include a full range of
meet the myriad demands of retraining, rehabilitating and re-entry
er, directors and staff share the belief that individuals requiring

supportive service networks to
into the mainstream. Its found

lanie Anewishki in 1984 and
s who are homeless and seek
Featherfist Development

Corporation (“FDC”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Featherfist that was created to develop and




Featherfist and Featherfist Development Corporation

Page 2

Description:

Financials:

assistance to be self-reliant - whether mentally or physically exceptional — should have the
opportunity to function as independent and productive members of society.

Featherfist provides emergency outreach and comprehensive case management services 1o
homeless and at-risk homeless individuals in Chicago. Featherfist serves 600 homeless individuals
annually and 300 at any point in time through placement in transitional living apartments
throughout Chicago. Essentially all of its enrollees are low income and 39% are veterans. Its
enrollees are 85% African-American, 9% Caucasian, and 5% Hispanic and 60% male.

The primary barrier to employment for all Featherfist enrollees is homelessness, with the attendant
issues of weak job search skills and low vocational skills/education. Most enrollees have one or
more of the following problems: economic dislocation, domestic violence, criminal records, mental
illness and substance abuse.

The City of Chicago and HUD have recognized Featherfist’s comprehensive case management
approach as a key strategy in serving the homeless. Its services include street outreach, general
case management and specialists for veterans, domestic abuse victims, HIV/AID clients, large
families, and hard-core homeless and for employment and training needs. Annual funding from
these sources has grown from $100,000 in 1994 to $1,975,000 in 2003.

The City of Chicago’s Department of Human Services recently awarded Featherfist a grant from
the acquisition of a 35-bed facility for the hard-core homeless. The Mayor’s Office of Workforce
Development recently awarded Featherfist a WIA grant to expand its direct employment and
training services for the homeless.

Featherfist currently leases space at 2255 East 75% Street but has outgrown that facility. The
organization is building a new office building to house its administrative functions and provide
space for program and service expansion. Featherfist will conduct on-site training for program
participants, i.e. life skills training, financial literacy, GED classes, etc., within the new facility.
The proposed site will include a state-of-the-art telecommunication center for up to 120 people,
which will be the first of its kind within ‘the South Shore community area and neighboring
communities. The facility will also house a Conference Center for 100 people and dialogue room
designed specifically for conflict resolutions sessions. That site is located directly across the
street from the existing office space at 2301 E. 75" street.

The new facility will more than double the amount of office and conference space available and
provided space for training and conferences, which is not available in the current space.
Management plans to host an annual national conference on homeless intervention strategies,
supportive services, housing for the homeless and other poverty related issues for national
practitioners, government officials and educational institutions. Featherfist will seek corporate and
foundation sponsors with the goal of raising at least $50,000 per year annually through this event.

Management hopes that the project will spur a revitalization of the 75" street commercial corridor,
an area that has had no construction in over 30 years. Management will offer meeting and training
space and state-of-the-art telecommunication facilities to community residents and other not-for-
profit organizations.

Financial summary prepared from audited financial statements for 2001, 2002 and 2003.
Projections for 2004 through 2007 prepared by staff. (Figures in $000s.)

Year Ended December 31 Year Ending December 31 -
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Income Statement
Revenues & Support  $2,180 $2.471 $2.692 $3.164 $3,196 $3.305 $3.373
Change in Net Assets 90 230 44 178 30 54 il
Earnings Before Interest
Deprec. & Amortization 112 215 130 271 252 309 323



Featherfist and Featherfist Development Corporation

Page 3

Discussion:

Balance sheet:
Current assets 135
Net PP&E
Other Assets
Total assets

320 380 419 444
2,418 2,392 2,354 2,342
0 45 43 40 38

2.824

139 141 203 211 217
104 2,190 2,130 2,066 1,999
0
608

2,824

W) —
~J OO
W O
W N
[N
W A

e
2
:
e
e

Current liabilities
Long-term Debt 106
Other Long-term Liabilities 0
Net Assets 90
Tot Liabs & Net Assets 454

— D
o N
S O
o O©
I
00
N O
N
"l
N O

[N
{934
NS
~J
S O
PN
L

q
|
q
B
E|

Ratios:
Fixed Charge Coverage 2.51x  3.53x 2.34x 3.50x 1.85x 1.74x 1.82x
Current Ratio 052 0.83 1.54 2.27 1.87 1.99 2.04
Days Cash on Hand 33 44 1.6 13.8 198 228 248
LT Debt/Net Assets 1.18 046 0.38 485 442 385 329

Featherfist was founded in 1984 to combat homelessness by providing emergency shelter and
facilitating health care services to qualified participants. Featherfist relies on funds passed through
the City of Chicago from the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) to
provide mobile outreach that works with the City of Chicago’s Department of Health and Human
Services to render crises intervention when the City is unable to do so. Featherfist also receives

. funds from the Mayor’s Department of Workforce training to assist homeless and at-risk

individuals return to the workforce. Featherfist also receives funds directly from US HUD to
develop new needs assessment programs for the unemployed. Featherfist also actively solicits
contributions and grants from individuals and foundations.

Featherfist’s primary revenues sources were US HUD (64%), City of Chicago (12%), Illinois
Department of Human Services (5%), Habitat Corporation, a private foundation (5%), Donations
(5%) and other (9%). Revenues have steadily increased over the period reviewed and are expected
to reach a record level by the end of the year. Featherfist currently has limited liquidity and
modest indebtedness. Cashflows have been sufficient to cover operating costs, debt services and
lease payments for the current office space.

Liquidity has been modest. Featherfist currently has a $150,000 line of credit from Bridgeview
Bank. First American Bank will refinance that facility plus a note secured by a building located at
5714-1616 E Calumet Avenue when it closes on the Bonds for this project.

The forecast assumes that the Bonds and loan from IFF close on September 1 and that the project
is completed by July 1, 2005. The forecast assumes that $26,700 in interest is capitalized in 2004.
Management expects to generate $42,500 in income in 2005 and $85,000 in income in 2006 from
seminars and leasing space to area organizations. The forecast for 2005 incorporates six months of
depreciation expense, a full year’s interest expense and termination of an office lease at midyear.

Principal payments begin amortizing in 2006.

Bonds:

Obligors:

FINANCING SUMMARY

Tax-exempt 501(c)(3) bonds amortizing over 20 years. The bonds will be purchased by First
American Bank and will pay interest at 5.3% each year for the first 5 years. Repayment terms are
12 monthly interest payments followed by 48 monthly payments of principal and interest, with put
options at 60%, 120 and 180" month..

Featherfist and Featherfist Development Corporation, as Co-Borrowers



Featherfist and Featherfist Development Corporation
Page 4

Bond Security: A first lien and security interest in all of the assets of Featherfist Development Corporation,
including first mortgages and assignments of rents on the buildings and properties located at 2301

E. 75% Street, Chicago, IL 60649 and 5714-16 S. Calumet Avenue, Chicago, IL 60637.

A first lien and security interest in all assets of Featherfist, including a second mortgage on the
building and property located at 5714-16 S. Calumet Avenue, Chicago, IL 60637.

Subordinate

Financing: The Illinois Facilities Fund will provide a subordinate loan that is secured by a second mortgage
interest in the building and property located at 2301 E. 75" Street, Chicago, IL. The loan will
amortize over 20 years and carry a 5.8% interest rate.

PROJECT SUMMARY

The proposed site is being developed on vacant land acquired from the City of Chicago for $100,000, pursuant to an
executed redevelopment agreement between Featherfist and the City of Chicago. The proposed development will be
a 130,000 square-foot brick-masonry building that will include administrative offices, a state-of-the-art conference
room/telecommunication center, computer room, training room, kitchen and a conflict resolution room. Brook
Architecture, a minority-owned architectural firm, has uniquely designed the facility.

Bond proceeds, together with a loan from the IFF and equity from the borrower, will be used to finance the 1)
acquisition of land, 2) refinancing of existing debt, 3) development, construction and partial furnishing of the
building, 4) capitalized interest and 5) costs of issuance. Project costs are estimated as follows:

Land Acquisition $100,000
Construction 1,690,000
Architectural and Engineering 126,750
Legal and Professional 39,250
Furnishings 15,000
Contingency 182,239

Total $2,153.239

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

Applicant: Featherfist Development Corporation, 2255 E. 75% Street, Chicago, Illinois 60649 (Contact: Dr.
Melanie Anewishki, Director/President, Phone: (773) 721-7088)

Project name:  Featherfist and Featherfist Development Corporation

Location: 2301 E. 75" Street Chicago (Cook County), IL 60649 and 5714-16 S. Calumet Avenue, Chicago
(Cook County), IL 60637

Organization: Illinois 501(c¢)(3) organization

Land Owner: City of Chicago Department of Planning and Development

Board Members: Doris Bailey, Chairperson Chicago, IL
Audrey Banker, Vice-Chairperson Chicago, IL
Virginia Mitchell, Secretary Chicago, IL
Wilhemina Bryd Chicago, IL
Tesa Anewishki-Pittman Chicago, IL
Delores Dotson Chicago, IL
Andrea Goode Chicago, IL
Kimberly Mallard Chicago, IL
Roelean Watts Chicago, IL
Rev. Stanley O’Conner Chicago, IL
Chandra Smith Chicago, IL



Featherfist and Featherfist Development Corporation

Page S

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL

Borrower’s Counsel: Applegate & Thorne-Thomsen Chicago, IL

Nicole Jackson

Bond Counsel: Chapman and Cutler Chicago, IL Matt Lewin
Bond Purchaser First American Bank Lisle, IL Mark Kroenke
Bank Counsel: To be determined

Issuer’s Counsel: To be determined

Financial Advisor:  Total Capital Solutions Oak Park, IL Tony Grant
Accountant Omotosho & Associates Chicago, IL Akin Omotosho
Development

Consultant Prim Lawrence Corporation Chicago, IL Teresa Prim
Architect Brook Architecture Chicago, IL Ramona Westbrook
General Contractor Power & Sons Chicago, IL

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS

Congressional: 1

State Senate: 25

State House: 13

HE N B N AN BN BN BE BN BE 2B AT D B B T e



To:

From:

Date:

Re:

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM
IFA Board of Directors
Rich Frampton
July 13, 2004
Overview Memo for CVT Acquisition, Inc. (d/b/a Cherry Valley Tool &

Machine)
I-ID-TE-CD-411

Borrower/Project Name: CVT Acquisition, Inc. (d/b/a Cherry Valley Tool &
Machine)

Location: Belvidere (Boone County), Illinois
Principal Projeét Contact: Duane Wingate, President
Board Action Requested: Preliminary Bond Resolution

Amount: not to exceed $2.4 million

e Uses:
e Finance the acquisition of land, renovation of existing facilities,
construction of a building addition, and purchase of equipment
e Project located in the DCEO-designated Belvidere/Boone County
Enterprise Zone

Project Type: Industrial Revenue Bonds

IFA Benefits:
e Conduit Tax-Exempt Bonds - no direct IFA or State funds at risk

e IFA will convey federal tax-exempt status

IFA Fees:
e One-time, upfront closing fee estimated at $18,480 (for an estimated $2.4

million transaction) —_—



e Structure/Ratings:
e Company is negotiating with several banks regarding (1) a direct purchase

bond issue to be purchased by the Bank as Lender/Investor and (2) a
Direct Pay Letter of Credit. ~

e Depending on structure, the Bonds will be sold either as (1) fixed rate
bonds with an annual interest rate reset provision (if purchased directly by
a Bank, rate would priced at approximately 85% of Prime, as proposed) or
(2) as 7-day floating rate bonds (if secured by a Bank Letter of Credit;
estimated initial effective interest rate of 2.40% based on market rates as
of 6/30/2004).

e Bond will carry a high investment grade credit rating if structured with a
Bank Letter of Credit.

e Recommendations/Conditions:
e Staff recommends approval — no extraordinary conditions. Staff reserves the

right to impose additional conditions based on the final transaction structure.

Page 2



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

BOARD SUMMARY
Deal: CVT Acquisition, Inc. (d/b/a Cherry Valley Tool & Machine)
STATISTICS
Project Number: [-ID-TE-CD-411 Amount: $2,400,000 (not-to-exceed amount)
Type: Industrial Revenue Bonds PPA: Rich Frampton
Location: Belvidere Tax ID: 54-2129386
SIC Code: 3599 Est. fee: $18,480 (based on $2.4 mm amount)
BOARD ACTION
Preliminary Bond Resolution No IFA funds at risk.
Conduit Industrial Revenue Bonds Staff recommends approval
No extraordinary conditions
PURPOSE

Acquisition/renovation of an existing manufacturing facility, construction of a building addition thereon, and the
purchase of equipment for use therein.

IFA CONTRIBUTION

This project will require up to $2.4 million of IFA Volume Cap.

VOTING RECORD

This is the first time this project has been reviewed by the IFA Board.

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Sources:  IFA Bonds  $2,300,000 5 Uses: Project Costs $2,550,ooo;
*Equity 305,000 Bond Issuance Costs 55,000
Total $2.605.000 — Total $2.605.000

*Sources of Equity: Cash equity will be provided by CVT’s principals from personal funds, as necessary for the
Bank.



CVT Acquisition, Inc. (d/b/a Cherry Valley Tool & Machine)

page 2
JOBS
Current employment: 40 Projected new jobs: 20
Jobs retained: Not applicable Construction jobs: 15 (3-6 months)
BUSINESS SUMMARY

Background: CVT Acquisition, Inc. d/b/a “Cherry Valley Tool & Machine” (“CVT” or the “Applicant”) was
established on October 31, 2003 when CVT Acquisitions, Inc. purchased the Company’s assets
from the Merchants and Manufacturers Bank of Joliet, [llinois. The purchase agreement included
a one-year lease of the facility, through 10/3 1/2004.
The Company is 50%-owned by Mr. Duane Wingate, Principal, Ingenium Technologies, an
engineering services firm based in Rockford, IL, and is 50%-owned by David Cassaza,
Chairman/CEL of Roper Whitney of Rockford, Inc.

Description: CVT is a contract machining company that custom designs and machines cast iron and steel parts

to OEM manufacturers of heavy duty truck, agricultural equipment, construction equipment, and
off-the-road vehicles. (Confidential: Key CVT customers include Case New Holland (CNH),

Gunite, Webb Wheel, and Rockford Drop Forge.)

CVT’s predecessor company, Cherry Valley Tool & Machine, Inc. (the “Predecessor Company”)

_was established in 1960. Beginning in 1999, the Predecessor Company experienced four

consecutive years of declining sales and increased employee layoffs, culminating in a bank
foreclosure in September 2003.

Subsequent to CVT’s acquisition, the Operations Consulting Division of Ingenium Technologies,
Inc. (as of 10/31/2003, a company affiliated under common ownership) completed a
comprehensive review of operations and developed a turnaround plan to improve production flow
and overhaul the existing plant layout. This expansion plan required significant capital investment
in new production equipment and required significant increases in working capital.

To date, CVT Acquisition’s efforts have resulted in annual revenues increasing from $1.8 million
to $3.8 million (annualized) as of 6/15/2004. During the same period, shop employment has

increased from 15 to 37.

The proposed project will enable CVT to continue its effort to upgrade and increase production at
the Belvidere facility. As a result of the proposed project, CVT will purchase the leased facility
and approximately 5 acres of vacant adjacent property. The facility will then be substantially
renovated with increased electrical capacity, installation of a new HVAC system for the shop
floor, the addition of two new truck docks, the purchase of approximately five new CNC
(computerized numerical control) machining centers and related equipment, and the construction
of a building addition to the existing 55,000 SF facility (exact size of addition to be determined).

According to the Applicant, the proposed project site is located in the DCEO-designated
Belvidere-Boone County Enterprise Zone. This project has strong support from the City of
Belvidere and Growth Dimensions, Inc. of Belvidere/Boone County, the 501(c)(3) economic
development organization in Boone County.



CVT Acquisition, Inc. (d/b/a Cherry Valley Tool & Machine)

Page 3

Financials:

Discussion:

Compiled financial statements for 7-month period ended 5/31/04 (initial 7 months of operation).
Annualized forecast for 12 months ended 10/31/04. Projections for fiscal years 2005-2007.

Year Ended Oct. 31 Year Ended Oct. 31
Prior 3/31/04 2004 2005 2006 2007
Owner 7 mo’s. 12 mo’s. (Dollars in 000's)

Income statement:

Sales $1,800 $1,627  $2,789 $3,662 $4930  $5,915

Net income 118 (pre-tax) 133 282 291 298

EBITDA 40 271 596 795 358
Balance sheet:

Current Assets 876 901 1,073 1,113 1,310

Net PP&E 422 1,109 2,692 2,564 2,619

QOther Assets 34 34 26 363 363

Total 1,332 2,044 3,791 4,040 4,292

Current Liabilities 219 419 781 955 1,039

Long Term Liab. 772 1,418 2,521 2,304 2,174

Other Non-Cur. Liab. 149 - - - -

Equity 192 207 439 781 1,079

Total 1,332 2,044 3,79 4,040 4,292
Ratios:

Debt/Fixed Oblig.

Coverage 1.32x 1.32x 1.56x 1.54x 1.67x

**Pro Forma Debt Coverage **1.10x

Current ratio 4.00 2.15 1.37 1.17 1.26

Debt/equity 4.02 7.48 542 3.2 214

CVT has only reported 7 months of activity from inception (11/1/03) to 5/31/04. CVT
Acquisition, Inc. purchased the assets of the predecessor company out of foreclosure from
Merchants & Manufacturers Bank of Joliet.

On an annualized basis CVT’s new ownership has recorded sales of $1.6 million for the initial 7
months ended 5/31/04. CVT’s management and accountant have projected annualized sales of
approximately $2.8 million for the fiscal year ended 10/31/04.

CVT’s management has effectively managed the growth of the Company as evidenced by the
Company’s $118,000 of pre-tax net income as of 5/31/04. Based on the Company’s operating
history to date, the Company projects $133,000 of Net Income after taxes for the year ended
10/31/04. CVT projects to generate sufficient cash flow from operations (EBITDA) to cover the
company’s fixed (rent) obligations by a multiple of 1.32 times in 2004.

CVT is currently paying $144,000 per annum to rent its current facility. This project would
finance the acquisition of the building is currently leasing. Projected debt service on the proposed
bonds (which includes both the acquisition of equipment and the purchase and renovation/addition
to the existing building will result in projected annual debt service payments of $206,000 per
annum, thereby increasing the Company’s occupancy costs/equipment costs by $62,000 per
annum.

CVT’s management has assumed aggressive 31% sales growth in 2005, 35% sales growth in 2006
and 20% sales growth in 2007. Additionally, the forecast assumes that the proposed bond issue
closes as of 4/30/05. Based on the Applicant’s assumptions, the Company should generate
sufficient cash flow to cover its fixed obligations by multiples of 1.54 times or better beginning in
2005, the first full year following project completion.



CVT Acquisition, Inc. (d/b/a Cherry Valley Tool & Machine)

Page 4

**Given the strong reported net profit margins to for the initial year of annualized results, CVT
will generated sufficient EBITDA to cover proposed debt service on these bonds by a multiple of
1.10 times for the year ended 10/31/04.

Security:

Structure:

Maturity:

FINANCING SUMMARY

Bonds will either be (1) purchased directly by a Bank and held until maturity as a direct
investment or (2) secured by a Direct Pay Bank LOC. The Borrower is currently negotiating with
the following banks: First National Bank of Beloit (WI), Amcore Bank (Rockford, IL), LaSalle
Bank, NA (Rockford, IL), and Harris Bank, NA (Marengo, IL).

Bonds will be sold on a variable rate basis with either (1) 5-year interest rate resets or (2) as 7-day
variable rate demand bonds.

20 years

PROJECT SUMMARY

Bond proceeds will be used to finance the acquisition of approximately 2.0 acres of land, finance the acquisition and
renovation of an approximately 55,000 SF building located thereon, construct a building addition thereon located at
6871 Belford Industrial Drive, Belvidere (Boone County), Illinois 61008. Bond proceeds will also be used to (1)
approximately 5.0 acres of vacant land located adjacent to the current site at 6871 Belford Industrial Drive,
Belvidere (Boone County), Ilinois 61008. Additionally, bond proceeds will be used to finance the purchase of
machinery and equipment for use therein and to refinance certain capital expenditures incurred within 60 days of
approval of the IFA Preliminary Bond Resolution for this project. The project will be used as a manufacturing
facility for the production of custom fabricated machine parts.

Proposed project costs are summarized as follows:

Land Acquisition: $275,000
Building Acquisition: 950,000
Renovation: 150,000
Construction of New Addition: 285,000
Equipment: 890,000
Total: $2,550,000

Applicant:

Project name:
Location:
Organization:
State:
Applicant:
Ownership:

‘ Current Owner
of Real Estate:

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

CVT Acquisition Inc. (Contact: Mr. Duane Whitlock, President, CVT Acquisition, Inc., 6871
Belford Industrial Drive, Belvidere (Boone County), IL 61008; Ph.. 815-299-8792; Fax: 815-
544-6919; duane@ingeniumtech.com) Web site: www.cvtm.com

CVT Acquisition, Inc. (d/b/a Cherry Valley Tool & Machine) Series 2004 Bonds

6871 Belford Industrial Drive, Belvidere (Boone County), Illinois 61008

Corporation

Illinois

Corporation

Mr. Duane Whitlock, Rockford, IL: 50%

Mr. David Casazza, Rockford, IL: 50%

Merchants and Manufacturers Bank, 990 Essington Road, Joliet, IL



CVT Acquisition, Inc. (d/b/a Cherry Valley Tool & Machine)

Page 5
PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL
Borrower’s Counsel: Williams & McCarthy = Rockford, IL Tim Rollins ¢~
Bond Counsel: TBD; to be selected based on consultation with Bank ~
Bond Purchaser/
Direct Lender: Currently negotiating with First National Bank and Trust Co., Beloit, WI; Amcore Bank, +»
Rockford, IL; LaSalle National Bank, Rockford, IL; Harris Bank, Marengo, IL
Accountant: Boeke & Assocaites Rockford, IL Roger Boeke
General Contractor: TBD
Trustee: TBD (if a Bank LOC transaction)
Issuer’s Counsel: To be determined
LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS
Congressional: 16
State Senate: 34
State House: 68

i\rich\2004 Board Reports 07July\07-04 CVT PBR
06/28/04 3:35 PM
. RKF



To:

From:

Date:

Re:

[LLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
¥lemorandum
[FA Board of Directors
Laura Lanterman

July 13, 2004

Overview Memo for Beginning Farmer Bonds

e Borrower/Project Name: Beginning Farmer Bonds

e Locations: Througout Illinois

e Board Action Requested: Preliminary Bond Resolutions/Inducement Resolutions
for each attached project

e Amounts: amounts up to $250,000 maximum of new money for each project

e Project Type: Beginning Farmer Revenue Bonds

¢ IFA Benefits:

_ Conduit Tax-Exempt Bonds — no direct I[FA or State funds at risk
-~ New Money Bonds: ‘

— convey tax-exempt status
_  will use dedicated 2004 IFA Volume Cap set-aside for Beginning Farmer transactions

e TFA Fees:

One-time closing fee equal to 1.50% of the bond amount for each project ($1,875) combined for
Preliminary Bond Resolutions, as proposed)

e Structure/Ratings:

Bonds to be purchased directly as a nonrated investment held until maturity by the Borrower’s

Bank

The Borrower’s Bank will be secured by the Borrower’s assets, as on 2 comrercial loan
Interest rates, terms, and collateral are negotiated between the Borrower and the Participating
Bank, just as with any commercial loan

Workouts are negotiated directly between each Borrower and Bank, just as on any secured

commercial loan



BEGINNING FARMER BOND LOANS
New Projects for Inducement Resolution — Page 1 of 1

July 13, 2004

Project Number: A-FB-TE-CD-432

Borrower(s): Jay A. Todd and Christina Diane Todd
City: Thompsonville

Amount: $125,000

Use of Funds: Farmland

County: Franklin

Lender/Bond Purchaser: First Mid-Illinois Bank, Highland

Principal shall be paid semi-annually in fifty equal installments of $2,500.00 each, with the first
principal payment date to be six months from the date of closing. Accrued interest shall be paid

semi-annually.

Interest shall be charged at the rate of 3.40% per annum for the first year, thereafter adjusted
annually to a rate not to exceed 85% of National Prime as quoted in The Wall Street J ournal, with

a floor of 3.40%.




ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Memorandum
To: IFA Board of Directors
From : Jim Senica, Senior Program Administrator
Date: July 13, 2004
Re: Overview memo for Frank and Donna Abdnour.

Borrower/Project Name: Frank and Donna Abdnour (The Spotted Cow, Inc.)
Location: Peoria (Peoria County)

Principal Project Contact: Frank Abdnour, President of the Spotted Cow, Inc.
Board Action Requested: Approval to purchase loan participation

Amount: $300,000

Project Type: Business — Participation Loan

IFA Benefits:
- Buy-down of interest rate — $300,000 IFA funds at risk
- Borrower provided with lower blended interest rate

IFA Fees:
- 2.50% additional interest income earned over CD rate:  $7,500

Structure:

- Loan participation to be purchased by First Capital Bank — Peoria.

- Loan term will be 10 years with a 20-year amortization and a balloon
payment due at the end of the 10-year loan term.
Interest rate will be fixed at a rate of 3% over the 5-year Treasury note rate
or 6.5%, whichever is greater, adjusting at the 5-year anniversary to 3% over
the 5-year Treasury note rate with a 10-year balloon due at the end of the loan.

- Collateral will be a pro-rata first position “pari passu” with First Capital Bank —
Peoria on project real estate with a minimum appraised market value of $920,000
providing collateral coverage of at least 1.25 times (80% LTV).



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
BOARD SUMMARY
July 13, 2004

Deal: Frank and Donna Abdnour

(The Spotted Cow, Inc.)
STATISTICS
Deal Number:  B-LL-TX-408 Amount $300,000
Type: Participation Loan PA: Jim Senica
Location: Peoria Est fee: N/A
BOARD ACTION

Purchase of Participation Loan from First Capital Bank — Peoria.
$300,000 IFA funds at risk.
Collateral is pari passu first position with the bank.

Twelve month commitment
Staff recommends approval of a resolution subject to the Bank covenants noted on page 3 of this report.

PURPOSE

Acquisition of land and construction of a 4,500 square foot commercial building.

VOTING RECORD .

This is the first time this project is being presented to the IFA Board.

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Sources: IFA $300,000 Uses: Project Costs $920.000
First Capital Bank 436,000 Total  $920,000
Equity* 184,000
Total $920,000

*Equity contribution will consist of the borrower’s equity in the land being purchased by them for the project.

JOBS

Current employment: 40 Projected new jobs: 10
_ Jobs retained: N/A Construction jobs: 19
(12-month period)



Frank and Donna Abdnour
(The Spotted Cow, Inc.)

Page 2

Background:

Description:

Remarks:

Financials:

BUSINESS SUMMARY

Applicants Frank and Donna Abdnour established The Spotted Cow, Inc., an
Illinois S corporation, in 1985. The Company has been based in the Peoria area
for its entire eighteen year history.

The Spotted Cow, Inc. is engaged in the manufacture and distribution of premium
ice cream products. The Company’s ice cream constitutes a richer, higher butter
fat product that is similar in quality to the nationally distributed Ben and Jerry’s
jce cream. In addition to the bulk ice cream made in a multitude of flavors, the
company’s offerings also include specialty products such as various types of

ice cream bars, drumsticks and gourmet ice cream cakes.

Distribution of the Company’s products is limited to Central Illinois. Although
opportunities have arisen for the Company to market their products over a broader
region, the applicants’ desire to maintain the ultra high quality inherent in a localized
operation have has been the deciding factor in restricting the selling area.

The Spotted Cow, Inc. currently manufactures all of its products at its Peoria

Heights Prospect Avenue location. This facility, owned by the applicants and having
a fair market value of $175,000 and a mortgage of $90,000 (uet equity of $85,000),

is in the process of being sold; all proceeds will be applied to purchase of the

land for this project. (Note: Per conversation with the banker and the applicants, the
applicants may actually receive more than $175,000 for this property based on selling
prices being received for other properties in the area.)

Spotted Cow, Inc. forms 11208 for years 2001 and 2003
Projected financial information 2004 and 2005

Year Ended December 31
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
(Dollars in 000’s)

Income Statement

Sales 689 750 750 825 830
Net income 6 34 28 35 40
Balance sheet
Current assets 13 29 27 33 75
PP&E 93 90 90 89 89
Total assets 106 119 117 122 164
Current liabilities 9 10 11 8 10
Debt 27 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Other liabilities 79 . 90 67 40 40
Equity ) 19 39 74 114
Total liab. & equity 106 119 117 122 164
Ratios
Debt service cov.* 1.69 1.47 1.83 1.49 1.53
Current ratio 1.44 2.90 4.00 6.63 7.50
Debt/equity™* (10.78) 5.42 1.39 1.44 1.23

* In years 2002 — 2005, “debt” refers to rent payments made to owners Frank and Donna Abdnour.



Frank and Donna Abdnour
(The Spotted Cow, Inc.)

Page 3

Discussion: Revenues of The Spotted Cow, Inc. have followed a consistently increasing
pattern, growing from approximately $689,000 in 2001 to $750,000 for 2003.
Recent net income amounts have remained positive at managed levels for the
flow-through to the personal tax returns of this S corporation’s owners. Sales
are primarily made on a cash basis, thus the Company experiences no receivable
collection difficulties. '

Relocation to the new facility on Glen in Peoria should bring further
revenue increases and cost reductions to the Company. The increased
manufacturing space will provide the capacity needed to increase
production and make the process more efficient while the retail portion
of the facility will provide better exposure in an area with significantly
more traffic flow than that on Prospect Avenue.

Revenues at the current level would adequately provide for debt service
through rent payments to the applicants. Additional revenue generated
and proceeds to be received from the sale of the Prospect property will
only add to the serviceability of the debt.

Bank covenants include the following:

1)  Monthly internally-prepared Company financial statements

2)  Annual compiled financial statements of The Spotted Cow, Inc.

3)  Annual income tax returns of the applicants

4)  Prior to funding, certified fair market value appraisal on the pledged real estate
of not less than $920,000

5)  Evidence of adequate insurance on the collateral

6)  Shared first mortgage on project real estate

7) 2% prepayment penalty on the permanent financing if the loan is prepaid by
another financial institution in the first three years

8)  Corporate guaranty of The Spotted Cow, Inc.

The Company has not found it necessary to maintain a revolving line of credit for
operating purposes.

Borrower:

Security:

FINANCING SUMMARY
Frank and Donna Abdnour

Pro-rata first position “pari passu” with First Capital Bank - Peoria on the project real

estate. Collateral is based on a minimum appraised fair market value of $920,000 resulting in
collateral coverage on project debt to IFA and the Bank on this participation loan of 1.25 times
(80% LTV). IFA will also share with the Bank in the corporate guaranty of The Spotted Cow, Inc.
Staff recognizes that in the event of default with respect to this loan, standard wording in IFA’s
participation agreement states that the IFA/Bank loan will be paid prior to any other loan,
including any future line-of-credit loan, that the borrower may establish with the Bank.

The net worth of the applicants, Frank and Donna Abdnour, approximates $422,000.




e

Frank and Donna Abdnour
(The Spotted Cow, Inc.)

Page 4
Structure: Based on the guidelines of the Participation Lending Program, IFA’s interest rate will be
150 basis points below what the Bank is charging the customer. The Bank’s interest
rate will be fixed at a rate of 3% over the S-year Treasury note rate or 6.5%, whichever is
greater, adjusting at the 5-year anniversary to 3% over the 5-year Treasury note rate with a 10-year
balloon due at the end loan.
Maturity: The loan will be set on a 20-year amortization with 120 payments of principal and interest

over the ten-year term of the loan.

PROJECT SUMMARY

The proposed project involves the acquisition of land at the corner of Sheridan and Glen in Peoria and
construction thereon of a new 4,500 square foot commercial building for use by the applicants to manufacture
and distribute ice cream products. Project costs are estimated as follows:

Land Acquisition $140,000
Land Improvements 180,000
Building Construction 600,000
Total $920,000

The proposed project will provide the applicant with the additional manufacturing capacity needed to accommodate
growing demand for its products.

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

Project name: The Spotted Cow, Inc. Sheridan at Glen Building
Location: 718 W Glen Peoria, Illinois (Peoria County)
Applicant: The Spotted Cow, Inc.

Organization: Illinois S corporation

Ownership: Frank and Donna Abdnour, 50% each

~.

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL \
et

Accountant: Romolo & Associates CPA’s L Peoria, IL

Bank: First Capital Bank " Peoria, IL Tim Warner
LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS

Congressional: 18 —~ Ray LaHood

State Senate: 37 - Dale Risinger

State House: 73 — David Leitch



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

MEMORANDUM
MEMO TO: IFA Board of Directors
FROM: Townsend S. Albright
DATE: July 13, 2004
RE: Overview Memo for the IIT Research Institute (“IITRI”)

e Borrower/Project Name: IIT Research Institute
e Location: Chicago (Cook County)
e Principal Project Contact: John P. Collins, Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer
e Amount: $18,820,000
——————
e Board Action Requested: Approval of a Final Bond Resolution.

e Project Type: New money to (i) renovate two existing laboratories, (ii) purchase furniture, fixtures,
and equipment, (iii) capitalize interest, and (iv) fund professional and bond issuance costs.

¢ IFA Benefits: Conduit tax-exempt bonds — no direct IFA or State funds are at risk.
* JFA Fee: $71,380

e Ratings: The bonds will carry a Direct Pay Letter of Credit from Fifth Third Bank, Chicago, Illinois.

ta/h/illinoisinstituteoftechmemo



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

BOARD SUMMARY
Project: IIT Research Institute (“IITRI”)
STATISTICS
Number: E-PC-TE-CD-409 Amount: $18,820,000
Type: 501(c)(3) bonds PA: Townsend Albright
Location: Chicago Tax ID: 36-2169122
Est. fee: $71,380 SIC: 8221
BOARD ACTION
Final Bond Resolution No Extraordinary conditions
Conduit Not for Profit Bonds Staff recommends approval
No IDFA funds at risk
PURPOSE

Proceeds will be used to (i) renovate two existing laboratories, (i) purchase furniture, fixtures, and equipment, (iii)
capitalize interest, and (iv) fund professional and bond issuance costs.

VOLUME CAP

Volume Cap is not required for 501(c)(3) bonds.

VOTING RECORD

This is the first time this project will be presented to the Board.

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Sources: IDFA bonds $18,820,000 Uses: Project costs $16,520,000
Equity* 170,164 Capitalized Interest 626,364
Debt Service Reserve 1,496,000
Bond issuance costs 347,800
Total $18.990,164 Total $18.990,164
*Equity consists of interest earnings and a cash infusion
JOBS
Current employment: 150 Projected new jobs: 60
Jobs retained: N/A Construction jobs: 150 (eight months)



IIT Research Institute

Page 2

Background:

Description:

Remarks:

Financials:

BUSINESS SUMMARY

The IIT Research Institute (“IITRI”, the “Applicant™) was founded in 1936, and is a membership
corporation of the Illinois Institute of Technology (“IIT™). The members of the corporation are
members of the Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees of [IT. A list of Board members
is provided for IFA Board review.

[ITRI offers a comprehensive battery of research and development services to support non-
clinical development of a wide spectrum of products including drugs, small molecule therapeutics,
a range of natural products, and several classes of biological products. IITRI offers a full range of
microbiological and molecular biological research support. IITRI's research is conducted within
three technical divisions that work in complementary areas of biomedical research: Toxicology
and Carcinogenesis, Inhalation Toxicology, and Microbiology and Molecular Biology.

The proposed financing will enable IITRI to renovate and equip two laboratories at IIT. The new
facilities will provide additional capacity for research projects and its ability to conduct basic
research. IITRI provides research and development services and advisement to sponsors in the
pharmaceutical, chemical, and biotechnology industries, and to the national Institute of Health, the
U.S. Department of Defense, the National Cancer Institute, and international corporations.

A compilation of projected revenues, net income and debt service coverage through calendar year

2009 is attached for Board review. Figures assume the project will come on line in spring, 2005

[ITRI-Life Sciences Business Plan - - Revised April 2004
Projected Revenues and Net income (With Facility Modifications Coming On-Line in Spring 2005)

2002 (actual) 2003 (actual) 2004 (projected) 2005 2006 2007
Volume
Labor/Service 9,785.450 11,461,990 12,632,334 14,527,184 17,432,621 19,175,883
Material/Subcontract 5,879569 6,168,812 6,000,819 6,900,942 8,281,130 9,109,243
ODC/Travel 102,154 90,799 128,461 147,730 177,276 195,004
Special Facility
Adjustments (Write-Off/On) (503,568) (1,227,131)
Unrecovered Burdens (2,260) (1,900)
Total Value Added Cost 15,261,345 16,492,570 18,761,614 21,575,856 25,891,027 28,480,130
Total Fee 1,923,389 1,987,038 2,116,395 2,373,344 2,589,103 2,848,013
TOTAL YOLUME 17,184,734 18,479,608 20,878,009 23,949,200 28,480,130 31,328,143
Direct Cost
Labor/Service/SRC Cost 4,404 668 5,154,097 5,679,669 6,531,619 7,837,943 8,621,738
Materials/Subcontract Cost 5,708,885 5,989,384 5,826,038 6,699,944 8039932 8,843,926
ODC/Travel Cost 98,046 85,286 109,702 126,157 151,389 166,528
Material Handling Cost 170,684 179,429 174,781 200,998 241,198 265318
Total Direct Cost 10,382,283 11,408,196 11,790,190 13,558,719 16,270,462 17,897,508
GROSS MARGIN 6,802,451 7,071,412 9,087,819 10,390,482 12,209,668 13,430,635
Research QOperatin, enses
Labor/Service/SRC 1,525,007 1,323,524 1,953,448 2,148,793 2,471,112 2,668,801
EOH Applied to B&P/IR&D (53,325) (57,196) (70,202) (77,222) (88,806) (95.910)
Material/Suppiiers/Travel 932,357 1,079,072 1,286,464 1,415,110 1,627,377 1,757,567
Total Occupancy 2,390,469 1,831,197 2,026,684 2,330,687 2,680,290 2,894,713
Equipment Depreciation 156,650 200,006 381,537 419,691 482,644 521,256
Operations Overhead - 1
Group Overhead - 1
- Total ROE 4,951,158 4,376,605 5,577,931 6,237,058 7,172,617 7,746,426
CONTRIBUTION MARGIN 1,851,293 2,694,807 3,509,388 4,153,423 5,037,051 5,684,208



IIT Research Institute
Page 3

General & Administrative Cost

Corporate G&A 1,466,977 1,539,819 1,938,121 2,131,933 2,451,723 2,647,861

G&A Spending 145,016 37,184 46.802 51,482 59,205 63,941

Bid & Proposal/IR&D 117,994 132,686 102,436 112,680 129,582 139,948
Guidelines

Total G&A 1,729,987 1,709,689 2,087,359 2,296,095 2,640,509 2,851,750

OPERATING INCOME 121,306 985,118 1,422,529 1,857,329 2,396,542 2,832.458

0.7% 5.3% 6.8% 7.8% 8.4% 9.0%

Depreciation 805,000 805,000 805,000 805,000 805,000 805,000

AVAILABLE FOR DEBT SERVICE 926,306 1,790,118 2,227,529 2,662,329 3,201,542 3,637,458

DEBT SERVICE** 1,038,080 1,462,055 1,461,680

Coverage 2.56 2.19 249

** Assume $18,800,000 financed over 20 years at 4.5% ==>annual P&l = $1,436,016

FINANCING SUMMARY

Security: Direct Pay Letter from Fifth Third Bank, Chicago, [llinois.
Structure: Multi-Mode Seven-day weekly floating rate bonds
Maturity 35 years

Note: (i) the first two years (24 months) of interest will be capitalized

PROJECT SUMMARY

Proceeds will be used to (i) renovate the laboratory space in the IIRTI Life Sciences Building located at 35 West
34% Street and in the IIT Tower located at 10 West 35" Street, respectively, in Chicago, Cook County, Illinois, (ii)

purchase furniture fixtures and equipment, (iii) capitalize interest, and (iv) fund professional and bond issuance
costs.

Project Costs:  Renovation $11,687,500
Furniture/fixtures/Equipment 4,832.500
Total . $16,520,000

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT1

Applicant: IIT Research Institute

Project name: Laboratory Expansion Project

Location: 35 West 34™ Street and 10 West 35% Street Chicago, Cook County, Illinois 60616
Organization: 501(c)(3) Corporation

State: linois

Board: List attached for I[FA Board review

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL

Counsel: In House = Chicago, IL +~ Mary Anne Smith
Accountant: KPMGLLP - Chicago, IL ¢~

- Bond Counsel: Chapman and Cutler ~ Chicago, IL Jim Luebchow
[ssuer’s Counsel: Mayer, Brown, Rowe & Maw -~ Chicago, IL David Narefsky
Underwriter/ Legg Mason Wood Walker, Inc. =~ Chicago, IL John H. Peterson

Placement Agent:



1IT Research Institute
Page 4

Underwriter’s Counsel:
LOC Bank Counsel:
Trustee:

Architect:

General Contractor:

Foly and Lardner d
Chapman and Cutler v
Bank of New York
Cannon Design v
Pepper Construction

Chicago, IL
Chicago, IL
Chicago, IL
Chicago, IL
Chicago, IL

C. Richard Johnson
Jim Luebchow
John Prendiville
Brian Jack

Ted Commons

Congressional:
State Senate:
State House:

ta/h/II Tresearchinstitute

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS

01, Bobbie Rush
03, Mattie Hunter
05, Kenneth Dunkin



[ITRI Officars

L

" .- - T . R . . [ A I P,
Jice Presicent. Traasurer. and Chiel Finarcial Otticer

Viary Anne Smith  Secretary

Michae! McGibbon — Assistant Secretary

IITRI Board of Governors (Board of Directors)

Lewis Collens (ex officio)
Allan Myerson (ex officio)
John P. Collins (ex officio)

Mary Anne Smith (ex officio)

Lewis Collens serves as Chair of the Board of Govemors‘
Mary Anne Smith serves as Secretary of the Board of Governors



Illinois Finance Authority

Memorandum
To: IFA Board of Directors
From: Sharnell Curtis-Martin
Date: July 13, 2004
Re: Overview Memo for Uresil Acquisition Group, LLC

IFA Project #: B-LL-TX-409

Borrower:  Uresil Acquisition Group, LLC
Location(s): Skokie (Cook County)

Principal Project Contact: Lev Melinyshyn, CEO Uresil
Brigitte Wilson, MB Financial Bank

Board Action Requested: Approval to purchase loan participation
Amount: $300,000 IFA Participation; Total Loan Amount $1,840,000

Project Type: Business — Participation Loan

IFA Benefits: :
- Buy down of interest rate - $300,000 IFA funds at risk =
- Borrower provided with lower blended interest rate
IFA Fees:
- 2.50% additional interest income earned over CD rate: $7,500 .~
Structure/Ratings:
- Loan participation to be purchased by MB Financial
- Loan term will be five years with a 5-year amortization
- Collateral will be a pro-rata first position “pari passu” with MB Financial
Bank on project costs providing a collateral coverage of at least 1.45 times
'Recommendation:

- Staff recommends approval



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
' BOARD SUMMARY

Project: Uresil Acquisition Group, LLC

STATISTICS
Deal Number: B-LL-TX-409 Amount:: $300,000
Type: Participation Loan PA: Sharnell Curtis-Martin
Location: Skokie Tax ID: To Be Determined
SIC Code: 3841 Est. fee: $7,500
BOARD ACTION

Purchase of Participation Loan from MB Financial Bank - Total Loan Amount of $1,840,000
$300,000 of IFA funds at risk

Collateral is pari passu first position with the bank

Staff recommends approval

PURPOSE

Acquisition of business assets (Accounts Receivables, Equipment, Inventory, Patents and other Intellectual
Property).

VOTING RECORD

Initial Board consideration, no previous voting record.

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Sources: Equity $1,100,000 Uses: Project Costs $3,377,000
MB Term Loan 1,040,000 Severance Pay 110,000
DCEO ‘ 500,000 Professional Fees 125.000
Subordinated Debt 433,000
IFA 300,000
MB Line of Credit 239,000
Total Sources $3,612,000 Total Uses $3,612,000

Source of equity is cash contibuted from four senior level managers presently employed by Uresil that will manage
the newly formed company and guarantee the debt. The subordinated debt listed as a source of funds represents a
loan to the company from Mr. John Morrissey, CFO, and will be subrodinate to all bank debt. The severance pay
listed as a use of funds is to pay out Mr. Art Goldberg, Jr., who will be resigning from the company at the
completion of the sale.



JOBS
Current employment: 44 Projected new jobs: N/A
Jobs retained: 44 Construction jobs: N/A
BUSINESS SUMMARY

Background:

Description:

Remarks:

Financials:

Dr. Art Goldberg began Uresil in 1986 to develop innovative medical devices for surgery. Dr.
Goldberg died in 1998 leaving Uresil without a clear successor to manage the Company. The
Company has struggled over the last four years with the beginning of its expected financial turn
around beginning in 2003 as evidenced by the positive net income of approximately $400,000.

Since the Goldberg Family does not have an interest in actively managing the business, the
Goldbergs’ began marketing the Company for sale. The three potential buyers that were
interested in Uresil were not interested in continuing Uresil in Illinois and were primarily
interested acquiring the existing patents. Of the potential buyers, Cardinal Health was the initial
offer that the Goldberg Family accepted. The Goldbergs’ and Cardinal Health were unable to
reach an agreement on final sales terms and the contract was terminated.

Uresil’s present management team consisting of Lev Melinyshyn, CEO; John Morrissey, CFO;
James Sarns, VP Sales; and Gerard Boerger, VP Manufacturing collectively made an offer to the
Goldberg Family to acquire the business and their offer was accepted. These individuals along
with one other shareholder will personally (jointly and severally) guarantee the debt to acquire the

..-business assets. Additionally, they will contribute.approximately $1.1 million in cash toward the

acquisition.

Uresil produces medical devices for the specialized fields of interventional radiology and
minimally invasive surgery. The Company’s continued goal is to develop and maintain
relationships that result in new applications as well as transforming from a primarily research and
development company to a sales and marketing oriented company.

Approximately 17% of the business operations consists of ongoing and new product research and
development. The remaining 83% of operations are focused on marketing the manufacturing of
products. Uresil presently holds 15 patents on various products.

Uresil has a broad customer base with no one customer representing more than 10% of the
Company's sales. The Company’s customers are primarily hospitals and medical device
distributors.

The new Company will have a new focus with increased direct marketing efforts to many of the
acute care facilities that use their products while continuing to develop products with patentable
advantages over competing devices and technologies.

Reviewed Financial Statements 13/31/01 — 12/31/03
Internally Prepared Financial Projections 12/31/04 — 12/31/05



Year Ended Dec. 31

Year Ending Dec. 31

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
(Dollars in 000's)

Income statement:

Sales $5,663 §$5,744 $6,284 $6,786 7,415
Net income (579) (465) 400 341 511
EBITDA 97 59 1034 924 1236

Balance sheet:

Current assets $1,917 $1,918 $2,050 $2,274 $2,650
PP&E 76 125 504 348 370
Intangible assets 882 129 422 1,623 1432
Total assets 2,875 2,772 2,976 4,245 4,452
Current liabilities 2,531 2,570 3,084 531 551
Non Current liabilities 6,434 6,757 6,934 3,720 3,396
Net Worth (6,090) (6.555) (7.042) 6) 505
Total liabilities/net worth $2.875 $2772 $2.976 $4.245 4,452
Ratios: -

Debt coverage

Current ratio 0.76x 0.75x 0.66x 4.28x 4.81
Debt/net worth (147) (1.42) (142 (708.50) 7.82
Debt/tangible net worth (1.29) (1.28) (1.34) (2.61) (4.26)

Discussion: The new management group is cornmitted to improving the overall financial performance as evidenced
by the $400,000 of net income generated in 2003. Additionally, the Company has been making
conscious effort to control costs and increase its customer focus. Uresil’s projections demonstrate the
expectation to expand its presence in the domestic and international markets.

a

FINANCING SUMMARY
Security: Pro-rata first position “pari passu” with MB Financial Bank. The loan will be secured by a
blanket lien on all business assets and Personal guarantees of James Sarns, John F. Morrisey,
Gerard John Boerger, Lev Melinyshyn and Larry Rebedos ~ joint and several. The cash
equity contributions made by the guarantors are excluded from the Total Net Worth Available
amounts listed below. Personal financial statements for Mr. Larry Rebedos is forthcoming.
Guarantor Equity in Business | Source of Net Worth tal Net Wo vailable
James Sarnes $150,000 $235,000 Equity in Residence $527,000
$292,000 Retirement Accounts
John Morrisey $400,000 $105,000 Retirement Accounts $890,000
$785,000 Beneficiary of Trust '
Gereard Boerger $400,000 $68,000 Cash $1,077,000
$275,000 Joint Marketable Securities
$265,000 Retirement Accounts
$469,000 Equity in Resdience (Joint)
Lev Melinyshyn $100,000 $58,000 Cash and Marketable Securities | $414,000
$173,000 Retirement Accounts
$183,000 Equity in Residence




Structure:

Maturity:

Based on the guidelines of the Participation Lending Program, IFA’s interest rate will be 150
basis points below what the Bank is charging the customer. The Bank’s interest rate is 400
basis points over the Treasury rate. A fixed interest rate of 7.6% reflects the participation of

IFA and DCEO.

The loan will have a 5-year term with a 5-year amortization. Additionally the loan will have
a principal moratorium for the first 12 months with level principal and interest payments

the remaining term of the loan.

Bank Covenants: 1.) Distributions will be limited to the amount required for taxes
2) The Company must have a net profit (positive EBITDA)
3.) Family Debt to be subordinated to all bank financing

PROJECT SUMMARY

Loan proceeds will be used to acquire all business assets of Uresil , Inc. located at 5418 West Touhy Avenue in
Skokie, IL (Cook County). Project costs are estimated as follows:

Book Value Discounted Value
(70% of Book Value)
Inventory $1,219,679 $853,775
Net Accounts Receivables 769,745 538,821
Net PPE 136,687 95,680
Intangible Assets 537,026 375,918
Total Assets $2,663,139 $1,864,194
Collateral Coverage Ratio 1.45x 1.01x
Collateral Coverage Ratio 1.16x 81x

(excluding intangible assets)

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

Applicant: Uresil Acquisition Group, LLC
(www.uresil.com)
Location: 5418 W. Touhy Ave, Skokie, IL (Cook County) 60077
Organization: ~ Limited Liability Corporation
State: Illinois
Ownership: Lev Melinyshyn 20%
John Morrissey 20%
Larry Rebodos 20%
Gerard John Boerger 20%
James Sarns 20%

Land Sellers: Not Applicable

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL

Borrower’s Counsel: Fagel & Haber .~
Accountant: KPMG, LLP -
Bank: MB Financial Bank Chicago Brigitte Wllson .-



Congressional:
State Senate:
State House:

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS

9 -- Janice Schakowsky
8 -~ Ira Silverstein
1S -- Ralph Capparelli



Illinois Finance Authority

Memorandum
To: IFA Board of Directors
From: Sharnell Curtis-Martin
Date: July 13, 2004
Re: Overview Memo for Transparent Container Co., Inc.

IFA Project # I-ID-TE-CD-407

Borrower: Transparent Container Co., Inc.

Location(s): Addison, Bensenville and Berkeley

Principal Project Contact: Mr. Ronald Pranger, Controller

Board Action Requested: Final Bond Resolution

Amount: $6,000,000

Project Type: Conduit Industrial Revenue Bonds

IFA Benefits:

IFA Fees:

Conduit Tax-Exempt Bonds
Estimated interest rate savings is approximately $90,000 annually

Application Fee $1,500
Issuance Fee $46,200

Structure/Ratings:

Direct Pay Letter of Credit provided by Bank One
Variable Rate Demand Bonds

15 year maturity

Aa2 by Moody’s Investor Services

Recommendation:

Staff recommends approval



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
BOARD SUMMARY

Project: Transparent Container Co., Inc.
STATISTICS
Project No.: I-ID-TE-CD-407 Amount: $6,000,000 (not-to-exceed amount)
Type: Industrial Revenue Bonds PA: Sharnell Curtis-Martin
Location: Addison, Berkeley, Bensenville Tax ID: 36-2473908
SIC Code: 3089 Est fee: $46,200
BOARD ACTION
Final Bond Resolution Staff recommends approval
Conduit Industrial Revenue Bonds No extraordinary conditions
No IFA funds at risk
PURPOSE

Bond proceeds will be used to finance the acquisition of building, acquisition of machinery and equipment,
renovations, and to pay certain bond issuance costs.

VOLUME CAP

The Applicant has been awarded $6.0 million in 2004 Authority Volume Cap.

VOTING RECORD

Preliminary Bond Resolution: June 22, 2004

Ayes: 11
Nays: 0
Abstentions: 0
Absent: 2 (Nesbitt, O’Brien)
Vacancies: 2
SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS
" Sources: IFA Bond $6,000,000 Uses: Project Costs $9,390,000
Equity . 2,000,000 Bond Issuance Costs 173,800
Bank Financing 1,563,800
Total $9,563.800 Total $9.563,800




JOBS
Current employment: 292 (252 Illinois and 40 Georgia) Projected new jobs: 37 (1llinois)
Jobs retained: N/A Construction jobs: 20 (3 months)
BUSINESS SUMMARY

Background:

Description:

Remarks:

Financials:

Transparent Container Company, “Transparent” or the “Company”, was established in September
1961. In 1971, Mr. Dan Greiwe joined the company as President and became the sole owner in
1999. Mr. Steve Fifer, Division Manager, manages the day-to-day operations of the Company.

Transparent manufactures custom and stock thermoformed and fabricated plastic packaging for
use in the food an consumer products manufacturers located in the U.S., Canada and Europe. The
Company has three facilities located in Berkeley, Bensenville, and Chicago, Illinois and one
facility in Conyers, Georgia.

The new facility located in Addison will replace an existing facility located in Chicago. The
present employees at the Chicago facility will be offered the opportunity to transfer to the
Addison location. New machinery and equipment will also be added to the Berkeley and
Bensenville facilities. Some of Transparent’s key customers include: Motus Media, Sanford
Corporation, Ideal Industries, Avery-Dennison and American Trade Products.

Reviewed Financial Statements 9/30/01 —9/30/03
Internally prepared Financial projections 9/30/04 — 9/30/06

Year Ended Sept 30 Year Ending Sept 30
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
(Dollars in 000's)

Income statement:
Sales $34,401 $34,395  $36,135 $36,400 $38,948 $41,674
Net income 1,239 760 3,013 1,631 1,855 2,001
Balance sheet:
Current assets $9,074 $10,196 $9,921 $12,502 $9,860 $9,925
PP&E 8,475 8,410 7,353 11,095 13,791 15,416
Other assets 2774 2.981 2.177 2,177 2363 2,177
Total assets 20323 21,587 19,451 25774 26,014 27.518
Current liabilities 7,830 8,734 4,802 4,959 4,811 5,720
Non Current liabilities 12,029 12,360 11,007 14,991 13,855 12,643
Equity 464 493 3.642 3.824 1.348 9155
Total liabilities/equity 20,323 $21.587 19,451 25774 26.014 27.518
Ratios:

Debt coverage 1.43x 1.69x 1.65x% 1.34x 1.44x 1.42x

Current ratio 1.16 1.17 2.07 2.52 2.05. 1.74

Debt/equity 29.73 27.20 3.54 2.80 2.06 1.54

"Discussion: In 2002, the Company experienced an increase in COGS expense of approximately $1.1 million. As a

result, Transparent’s net income was reduced to approximately $760,000. In 2003, the Company’s net income was
significantly higher than in past years. This was due to an increase in revenues and partially due to a gain from the
sale of assets from discontinued operations.




FINANCING SUMMARY

Security: Direct Pay Letter of Credit from Bank One
Structure: Variable Rate Demand Bonds
Maturity: 15 Years
PROJECT SUMMARY

Bond proceeds will be used to finance the acquisition of a 93,000 square foot manufacturing facility located at 325
S. Lombard, Addison, IL (DuPage County), renovations, machinery and equipment and to pay certain costs of
issuance. Additional bond proceeds will also be used to finance the acquisition and installation of machinery and
equipment at facilities located at 5744 McDermott Drive in Berkeley, IL (Cook County) and 625 Thomas Drive in
Bensenville, IL (DuPage County). Project costs are estimated as follows:

Machinery and Equipment $5,200,000
Building 3,250,000
Land 500,000
Renovations 440,000
Total Project Costs $9.390.000

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

Applicant: Transparent Container Co., Inc.
5744 McDermott Drive, Berkeley, IL 60163 (Cook County)
Project name:  Transparent Container New Facility
Location: 325 S. Lombard, Addison, IL 60101 (DuPage County)
5744 McDermott Drive, Berkeley, IL 60163 (Cook County)
625 Thomas Drive, Bensenville, IL 60106 (DuPage County)
Organization: ~ Corporation
State: Hlinois
Ownership: Mr. Daniel L. Greiwe ~ 100%
Land Sellers: 502 Vista Limited Partnership
Partners: Richard E. Muhlethaler
Ronald E. Muhlethaler
Dale R. Muhlethaler

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL

Borrower’s Counsel:  Schnell Bazos Freeman Kramer Schuster and Vanek  Elgin Peter Bazos
Accountant: Lipschultz, Levin & Gray Northbrook  Bill Finestone
Bond Counsel: Wildman Harrold Chicago Jim Snyder

LOC Bank: Bank One Chicago Brian Caldwell
LOC Bank’s Counsel: Lord Bissell Brook Chicago Steven Roper
Remarketing Agent:  Banc One Capital Markets Chicago Elaine Semkowski
- Underwriter: Banc One Capital Markets Chicago Shelley Phillips
Underwriter’s Counsel: Wildman Harrold Chicago Jim Snyder
Issuer’s Counsel: Perkins Coie LLP Chicago William Corbin
Trustee: J. P. Morgan Chicago Kevin Ryan

o




Addison

Congressional:
State Senate:
State House:

Berkeley
Congressional:
State Senate:
State House:
Bensenville
Congressional:

State Senate:
State House:

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS

6 — Henry Hyde
46 — George P. Shadid
23 — Daniel J. Burke

4 — Luis Gutierrez
41 — Christine Radogno
21 — Robert S. Molaro

6 — Henry Hyde
39 — Don Harmon
77 — Angelo Saviano



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Memorandum
To: IFA Board of Directors
From: Pam Lenane
Date: July 13, 2004
Re: Overview Memo for Fairview Obligated Group

Borrower/Project Name: Fairview Obligated Group
Locations: Downers Grove, Rockford

Principal Project Contact: Steve Stewart, CFO
Board Action Requested: Final Resolution

Amount: not to exceed $50,000,000, comprised of
Refunding: approximately $35.6 million of Fairview Obligated Group’s outstanding IFA
(IHFA) Series 1995 Bonds and approximately $8.3 million of Fairview Residence of
Rockford’s outstanding IFA (IHFA) Series 1999 Bonds

Project Type: Continuing Care Retirement Community

IFA Benefits: -
— Conduit Tax-Exempt Bonds — no direct IFA or State funds at risk
— New Money Bonds: convey tax-exempt status
- Refunding Bonds: the underwriters estimate that the refunding bonds will realize a net

present value savings.

IFA Fees:
e  One-time, upfront closing fee will be $100,000

Structure/Ratings:
e Structure- The bonds will be secured by a direct-pay letter of credit from LaSalle Bank

e Ratings — Non-rated
e  Bank Security — Gross revenue pledge, mortgage and master notes under a master indenture.

e Days cash on hand - 276 days

Page 1



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
BOARD SUMMARY
July 13, 2004

Deal: Fairview Obligated Group
STATISTICS

Deal Number:  H-SL-NH-TE-CD-415 Amount: $50,000,000 (Not to exceed amount)
Type: Not-for-Profit Bond PA: Pam Lenane
Location: Downers Grove, Rockford Estimated fee: ~ $100,000

BOARD ACTION
Final Bond Resolution Staff recommends approval
Conduit 501(c)(3) Bonds No extraordinary conditions

No IFA funds at risk

PURPOSE

Bond proceeds will be used to: 1) advance refund approximately $35.6 million of Fairview Obligated Group’s
outstanding IHFA Series 1995 bonds and approximately $8.3 million of Fairview Residence of Rockford’s
outstanding THFA Series 1999 bonds, 2) enhance liquidity, 3) capitalize a debt service reserve and 4) pay costs of

issuance.

VOLUME CAP

No Volume Cap is required for 501(c)(3) Bond financing.

_ VOTING RECORD
Ayes — 11 Nays -0 Absent - 1 Abstensions — 0 Vacancies — 2

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Sources: IFA bonds $45,710,000 Uses: Liquidity $900,000
Equity 115,426 Refunding Escrow 47,729,218
Trustee Held Funds  5,408.471 Debt Service Reserve 1,360,753
Issuance Costs 1,243.926
Total $51,233.897 Total 51,233,897
JOBS
Current employment: 318 FTEs New jobs: -N/A
Jobs Retained: 318 FTEs Construction jobs:  N/A
BUSINESS SUMMARY

_ Background: FAIRVIEW OBLIGATED GROUP: Fairview Ministries, Inc. (the “Corporation”), Fairview
Baptist Home (the “Home”), and Fairview Village (the “Village™) are the current not-for-profit
members of the Fairview Obligated Group (“FOG™). Together, they are known as Fairview
Village, a continuing care retirement community (the “CCRC”) located in Downers Grove, Ilinois,
approximately twenty-five miles west of downtown Chicago. The Village consists of
approximately 218 independent living apartments, 56 town/garden homes, and 232 licensed

nursing beds of which 72 are sheltered and 160 skilled care.



Fairview Obligated Group

Page 2

Financials:

The Home, and affiliate of the Corporation, was founded in 1902 as the Fridhem Home of Rest in
the Morgan Park neighborhood of Chicago and moved to its current location in 1942, The first
residents moved into the Village in 1991. Construction was completed in 1994.

FAIRVIEW RESIDENCE OF ROCKFORD OBLIGATED GROUP: The subject financing
will bring Fairview Residence of Rockford (“FRR”) into the Fairview Obligated Group. The
Residence of Rockford is a 54,000 square-foot residential building with 73 assisted-living units,
which opened in the autumn of 1999. The campus is designed to accommodate the physical,
spiritual, emotional, recreational and other similar needs of aged persons in a Christian setting.

Fairview Residence of Rockford is located on a 3.2-acre campus in Rockford, Illinois,
approximately 80 miles northwest of the Fairview Village campus. Fairview Residence of
Rockford is the sole member of the FRR Obligated Group under a Master Trust Indenture dated
September 1, 1999.

The Baptist General Conference, an international protestant denomination with 860 churches in the
United States, endorses all the Corporation, The Home, the Village and FRR. Fairview Ministries,
Inc. is the sole corporate member of the Home, the Village, FRR and certain other affiliate
corporations that are outside the Fairview Obligated Group.

Fairview Obligated Group & Fairview Residence of Rockford
Audited Financial Statements 2001 - 2003

Obligated Group Group with FRR
Actual Actual Proforma
2001 2002 2003 , 2003 2003
Statement of Operations
Net Revenues 15.831 17,397 17,098 18,795 18,795
Operating Income (382) 71 (690) (889) (14)
Earnings Before Interest, ‘
Depreciation & Amortization 3,820 4,468 3,256 3,940 3,940
Change in Unrestricted Net Assets (506) 243 (822) (912) (37N
Balance Sheet
Current Assets 11,015 11,874 12,735 12,966 14,741
Net Property, Plant & Equipment45,687 44 444 43526 49,311 49,311
Other Assets 5131 5,185 4,793 5,824 5.824
Total Assets 61,833 61,503 61,054 68,101 69.876
Current Liabilities 2,836 2,891 3,023 3,626 3,626
Long-term Debt 35,667 34,702 34,407 42,486 43,386
Entrance Fees, Deposits &
Prepayments 34,166 34,503 35,038 35,041 35,041
Net Assets (10,836)(10,593)(11,414) (13,052)(12,177)
Total Liabilities & Net Assets 61,833 61,503 61,054 68,101 69,876
Ratios:
Debt Service Coverage 1.29x  1.50x 1.33x 1.28x 1.70x
Current Ratio 3.88 4.11 421 3.58 4.06
Days Cash on Hand 214 218 246 225 276
Long-term Debt to Equity (3.29) (3.31) (3.01) (3.26) (3.56)
Long-term Debt to Unrestr. Cash 23.7% 26.5% 31.2% 25.6% 29.1%



Fairview Obligated Group

Page 3

Discussion:

The foregoing table summarizes the Obligated Group’s actual financial results and position for
fiscal years 2001, 2002 and 2003. Actual financial results and position for Fairview Residence of
Rockford for fiscal year 2003 are added to the Obligated Group's totals for the year to estimate the
impact of adding this organization into the Group. The “Proforma” column estimates future
income and balance sheet results by adjusting the combined FY 2003 results and position to reflect
the issuance of the 2004 Bonds, along with $875,000 in anticipated interest savings each year.

The Obligated Group has generated sufficient cashflows to cover operating and capital costs by an
acceptable margin in each of the years reviewed. The Group maintains ample reserves of
unrestricted cash and investments to cover an unanticipated shortfall should one arise.

Both the Obligated Group and Fairview Residence of Rockford (“FRR”), require new residents to
pay a substantial entrance fee to gain admission. The entrance fee is refundable in full after a new
tenant occupies the unit. Applicants must deposit 10% of the entrance fee to reserve a place on the
waiting list for a unit. Both the Obligated Group members and FRR record as revenue each year a
portion of the entrance fee collected based on the estimated remaining life expectancy of each
tenant. Applicant deposits and unamortized entrance fees are recorded as deferred revenue a
liability that is detailed in the summary balance sheet presented above. These large liabilities
contribute to the negative net assets carried by both the Obligated Group members and FRR.
Negative net assets are not unusual for newer continuing care retirement centers because they have
not operated long enough to earn the deferred revenue balance.

FRR lost $91,000 in FY 2003 and has limited liquidity. The impact of including that organization
in the Obligated Group appears limited, as it represents only 10% of the combined group’s total
revenues and assets. In FY 2003, Fairview Ministries contributed $115,000 toward debt service
on FRR’s Series 1999 Bonds pursuant to a support agreement that it executed at closing to ensure
timely payment of debt service. Fairview Ministries contributed $280,000 and $75,000, in fiscal
years 2001 and 2002, respectively to fulfill its obligations under the support agreement.
Management anticipates that improving occupancy and reducing interest costs by refinancing the
Series 1999 Bonds will minimize the need for continued support from Fairview Ministries.

The expected availability of a bank letter of credit mitigates concerns over the Obligated Group’s
negative net assets and FRR’s dependence on contributions to cover operating and capital costs.

Security:
Bank Security:

Structure:

Maturity:
Interest Savings:

FINANCING SUMMARY

The Bonds will be secured by a Direct-Pay Letter of Credit from a bank LaSalle Bank.

Gross revenue pledge and master notes under a master indenture. Covenants and other legal
provisions that are generally consistent with those in use for similar obligations.

Fairview Obligated Group desires to fund the Series 2004 Bonds through Tax-Exempt Fixed Rate
Serial and Term Bonds, Three and Five Year Taxable EXTRAS™ and Taxable Variable Rate
Demand Bonds. The 7-day Taxable Variable Rate Demand Bonds credit enhanced through a
bank’s letter of credit are expected to be redeemed after August 15, 2006 (call date on outstanding
Series 1995 Institutional Fixed Rate Bonds) with the proceeds of new bonds, Series 2006, which
are expected to be issued on a tax-exempt basis. The final maturity of the new bonds is extended
from August 15, 2029 to 2034.

30 years

The underwriters estimate that the refunding bonds will realize net present value savings of $3.3
million, or 7.5% of the refunded bonds, which will result in interest savings of $875,000 per year.



Fairview Obligated Group

Page 4

Project name:
Location:

Applicant:
Organization:
State:

Board of Trustees:

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

Fairview Obligated Group
210 Village Drive, Downer’s Grove, IL 60516-3036 and 7130 Crimson Ridge Drive,

Rockford, IL. 61107-6222
Fairview Obligated Group and Fairview Residence of Rockford Obligated Group
501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit Corporation ‘
1llinois
Robert C. Dahlin
Bruce V. Erickson
Maureen A. Lemon
David Mussa
Jack Anderson
Timothy S. Hultgren
Warren Jensen
Carol McCulley
Carol Schaub
Robert Smyth
Richard Walker
John Westra
James Whitman

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL

Borrower’s Counsel: Katten Muchin Zavis Rosenman Chicago Elizabeth Weber
Accountant: Wolf & Company Chicago Norbert Misiora
Bond Counsel: Jones Day Chicago John Bibby
Underwriter: Ziegler Capital Markets Group Chicago D. Hermann/S. Johnson
Underwriter’s Counsel: Michael Best & Friedrich Chicago John Durso
Bond Trustee: Wells Fargo Corporate Trust Chicago Julie Pelletier
Issuer’s Counsel: Mayer Brown Chicago David Narefsky
LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS
Downers Grove Rockford
Congressional: 13 — Judy Biggert 16 — Donald Manzullo
State Senate: 24 — Kirk Dillard 35 — J. Bradley Burzynski
State House: 47 — Patricia Bellock 69 — Ronald Wait



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Memorandum
To: [FA Board of Directors
From: Steven Trout, Program Administrator
Date: July 13, 2004
Re: Overview Memo for Hispanic Housing Development Corporation

N-NP-TE-CD-408

Borrower/Project Name: Hispanic Housing Development Corporation Acquisition Project

Locations: Chicago (Cook Co.)

Principal Project Contact: Laura Selby, Vice President Accounting (312) 443-1360

Board Action Requested: Final Bond Resolution

No Change In Terms Since IFA Adopted a Preliminary Resolution on July 22, 2004

Amount: Not to exceed $2,400,000

= Uses:
»  Acquisition and renovation of office condominium space on the eighth floor of the

former Helene Curtis building for relocation of headquarters
Project Type: Not-for-Profit 501(c)(3) Bonds

IF A Benefits:
s Convey federal tax-exempt status
»  No IFA or State funds at risk

IFA Fees:
= $12,500

Structure:
= Tixed rate bonds (initial rate of 4.88% for the first 5 years; to be reset every 5 years)

= 20 year amortization and maturity
= To be purchased directly by First American Bank as a direct investment to be held to

maturity



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

BOARD SUMMARY

Project: Hispanic Housing Development Corporation

STATISTICS
Project Number: N-NP-TE-CD-408 Amount: 32,400,000 (not-to-exceed amount)
Type: Not-for-Profit IFA Staff: Steve Trout
Location: Chicago Tax ID: 36-28889871
Est. fee: $12,500

BOARD ACTION
Final Bond Resolution Staff recommends approval
Conduit 501(c)(3) Bond Financing No Extraordinary Conditions
No IFA funds at risk
PURPOSE

Finance the acquisition and renovation of the 8® floor of the former Helene Curtis Office Building (425 N. Wells)
for use as the headquarters for the Hispanic Housing Development Corporation and partially pay issuance costs

VOLUME CAP

No Volume Cap is required for 501(c)(3) Bond Financing.

VOTING RECORD
Preliminary Bond Resolution was adopted on June 22, 2004 by the following vote:

Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Abstentions: 0 Absences: 2 (O’Brien, Nesbitt). Vacancies: 2

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Sources: IFA Bonds $2,300,000 Uses: Project Costs $2,779,350
IL Facilities Fund Loan 414,844 Issuance Costs 70,650
Equity 160,156 Moving Costs 25.000
Total 32,875,000 Total 32,875,000
JOBS
Current employment: 156 Projected new jobs: 21
Jobs retained: N/A Construction jobs: 0
BUSINESS SUMMARY

Background: The Hispanic Housing Development Corporation (“HHDC"” or “the Corporation”) is an Illinois
501¢)(3) not-for-profit organization that was incorporated on May 1, 1975 to develop and rehabilitate
housing to combat physical deterioration and blight in the Latino community. Tropic Construction
Corporation is a wholly owned for-profit subsidiary that serves as a general contractor to certain
HHDC projects and provides consulting services to existing Corporation developments.

Description: Since inception, HHDC has developed 30 projects at a total cost of $125,000,000. The Corporation
currently manages over 3,400 housing units and serves the Chicago and Danville metropolitan areas.
HHDC serves 5,000 clients each year, consisting of 1,900 youth, 1,900 adults and 1,200 seniors.



Hispanic Housing Development Corporation

Page 2 of 3

Financials: Financial summary prepared from consolidated audited financial statements for years-ended 2001,

Discussion:

2002 and 2003. Projections for years 2004, 2005 and 2006 prepared by IFA staff. (Figures in $000s.)

Year Ended December 31 Year Ending December 31
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Income Statement
Program Revenues $2,873 $2,611 32,598 $3,150 $3,213 §3,278
Contributions 747 2,463 158 225 300 325
Revenues & Support 3,620 5,074 2.756 3375 3,513 3,603
Net Asset Change 766 2,345 99) 291 206 213
Earnings Before Interest,
Deprec. & Amort. 1478 3.235 705 1,151 1244 1,288
Balance sheet:
Current assets 5,831 8,621 7,002 7,034 7,104 7,171
Net PP&E 4,560 4,393 4,235 6,903 6,639 6,423
Other Assets 3,638 6433 6,085 6,115 6,146 6.178
Total assets 14,029 19,447 17,322 20,052 19,889 19,772
Current liabilities 696 488 334 428 450 472
Long-term Debt 8,945 11,156 9,739 12,070 11,666 11,241
Other Long-term Liabs. 26 1,095 640 653 666 680
Net Assets 4362 6,708 6,609 6,901 7.107 7.379
Tot Liabs & Net Assets 14,029 19,447 17,322 20,052 19,889 19,772
Ratios:
Debt Service
Coverage 2.11(x) 3.45(x) 0.77(x) 1.22(x) 1.23(x) 1.19(x)
Current Ratio 8.4 17.7 21.0 16.4 15.8 15.2
Days Cash on Hand 115.4 83.1 127.2 1148 108.5 108.38
LT Debt/Net Assets (x)  2.05 1.66 147 1.75 1.64 1.52

The consolidated financial statements summarized above include the accounts of Hispanic Housing
Development Corporation and its for-profit subsidiaries, Hogar Development Corporation I, i, II
and IV, Englewood Apartment Development Corporation, Gateway Apartments LLP and Tropic
Construction.

Revenues for 2003 were generated from property management fees (56%), developer fees (28%),
net rental income (11%), partnership income (5%) and loss on sale of inventory (-19%, which
reduced revenue by $491,000). Revenues have remained relatively stable for the period reviewed.
HHDC supplements its income with grants from US Department of Housing and Urban
Development (“HUD”), Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity, and City of
Chicago Department of Housing, along with contributions from the Chicago Community Trust,
United Way, Washington Mutual, Bank of America and Field Foundations. Contributions have
ranged from 6% to 94% of program revenues. A $2.1 million grant from HUD dramatically
increased contributions in 2002.

HHDC has remained highly liquid over the period reviewed. As December 31, 2003, HHDC had
nearly $1 million in cash on hand, or 127 days of operating expenses. Leverage appears
manageable. Debt service coverage was quite strong in 2001 and 2002 and would have been 1.3
times in 2003, absent the 2003 loss of $491,000 on the sale of inventory, which consisted of -
affordable homes that were acquired, renovated and sold under the HUD ACA program.

The forecast assumes 2% growth in revenues and expenses and a 6% average rate of interest on the
Bonds and loan from the Illinois Facilities Fund. Debt service will be paid from HHDC’s
operating cashflows and reserves. In 2003, the Corporation paid $125,000 in rent expense that
will no longer be incurred once the project is occupied. This saving represents 52% of estimated



Hispanic Housing Development Corporation

Page 3 of 3
debt service on the Bonds and the IFF loan. Some space purchased by HHDC may be leased to
another 501(c)(3) organization. Payments on the sublease would be another payment source.

FINANCING SUMMARY

Bonds: Tax-exempt 501(c)(3) bonds amortizing over 20 years. The bonds will be purchased by First
American Bank as lender/investor and will pay interest at 4.88% for the first 5 years. Final
maturity in 20 years.

Bond/Bank

Security: First mortgage interest in the subject property.
Subordinated
Financing: The Illinois Facilities Fund will provide a subordinate 5.69% fixed rate loan that is secured by a

second mortgage interest-in the subject property. The loan will amortize over 15 years.

PROJECT SUMMARY

Bond proceeds together with a loan from the IFF and equity from the borrower will be used to finance the acquisition
and improvement of the former Helene Curtis Building located at 425 N. Wells, Suite 800, Chicago (Cook County),
Tlinois 60610 and pay costs of issuance. Project costs are estimated as follows:

Building Acquisition | $2,500,000
Rehabilitation 240,000
Contingency 39,350

Total $2,779,350

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

Applicant: Hispanic Housing Development Corporation, 205 W Wacker Drive, Suite 2300, Chicago, Tllinois
60606 (Contact: Laura Selby, Vice President Accounting, Phone: (312) 443-1360)
Project name:  Hispanic Housing Development Corporation Acquisition Project

Location: 425 N Wells, Suite 800, Chicago (Cook County), IL 60610
Organization:  Illinois 501(c)(3) organization
Land Owner: Marc Realty, Inc., an Illinois Corporation

Principal Owners: Elliot Weiner, Laurence Weiner and Gerald Nudo
Board Members: See attached list of Trustees

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL

Borrower’s Counsel: Applegate & Thorne-Thomsen Chicago, IL Tom Thorne-Thomsen
Bond Counsel: Chapman and Cutler Chicago, IL Matt Lewin
Bond Purchaser First American Bank Elk Grove Village, IL Brian Hagan
Bank Counsel: Chapman and Cutler Chicago, IL Fred Snow
Issuer’s Counsel: Sanchez & Daniels Chicago, IL John Cummins
Financial Advisor: ~ Total Capital Solutions Oak Park, IL Tony Grant
Accountant Friduss, Lukee, Schiff Chicago, IL Bruce Schiff
General Contractor  Tropic Construction Corporation  Chicago, IL

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS
Congressional: 7 Danny Davis
State Senate: 5 Mattie Hunter
State House: 3 Kenneth Dunkin



To:

From:

Date:

Re:

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

MEMORANDUM

IFA Board of Directors
Rich Frampton
July 13, 2004

Overview Memo for Hinsdale Mirabel Limited Partnership
(Hinsdale Lake Terrace Apartments Project)

M-MH-TE-CD-406

Borrower/Project Name: Hinsdale Mirabel Limited Partnership, a Delaware
limited partnership (Hinsdale Lake Terrace Apartments Project)

Location: Unincorporated Willowbrook (DuPage County)

Principal Project Contact: Mr. Bennett Neuman, The Laramar Group LLC,
Chicago

Board Action Requested: Final Bond Resolution

Amount: not to exceed $45.0 million
e Uses:

Acquisition of existing 582-unit, 2-story, 24-building multifamily rental
property with clubhouse ‘

Property will be substantially renovated (unit interiors, building exteriors,
and common areas)

Property is currently a market rent property. Pursuant to a new IRS
Revenue Procedure released on 7/1/2004, there is now a one-year phase-
in of the income targeting requirements in Section 142(d) of the Internal
Revenue Code, thereby facilitating conversion of the property from market
rate to affordable. o

Project Type: Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds

IFA Benefits:
e Conduit Tax-Exempt Bonds

no direct IFA or State funds at risk

— IFA Tax-Exempt Bonds will enable the Developer to automatically qualify

for 4% Low Income Housing Tax Credits



—  100%-Developer Acquired Volume Cap: Project will use dedicated $31

million of 2003 Carryforward Volume Cap acquired by Developer and

Financing Team for this Project from Home Rule Units

— Developer/Financing Team will obtain the balance of Volume Cap
required for this project from Home Rule Units and transfer to IFA for
this financing prior to closing (amount currently estimated at $11.5
million)

e IFA Fees:
e closing fee of $185,000 (based on maximum pursuant to the fee schedule on

transactions with transferred Volume Cap

e Structure/Ratings:
e 2 Series of Bonds:

$34,000,000 Series 2004A will be insured by AMBAC and rated Aaa/AAA
(Moody’s/S&P)

$8,500,000 Subordinate Series 2004B Bonds will be nonrated and sold
directly to Accredited Investors (subject to the condition described below).
The initial investor in the Subordinate Series 2004B Bonds will be Harris
Bank and Trust Co. and affiliates. '

33 year maturity for both series

¢ Current and estimated rates:

Estimated Blended Rate: 5.36 %

Senior Series 2004A Bonds will be sold initially as Auction Rate Bonds and
swapped to fixed rate after 3 years (current estimated swapped fixed interest
rate of 5.20% as of 6/30/04)

Subordinate Series 2004B Bonds will be sold at an estimated interest rate of
6.00% as of 6/30/04.

¢ Recommendations/Condition:
e Staff recommends approval of a Final Bond Resolution for an amount not-to-

exceed $45,000,000 subject to the following condition:

The Subordinate Series 2004B Bonds must be privately placed as evidenced
by execution of an Accredited Investor Letter that must be delivered to the
Trustee prior to the initial sale and any resale of the Subordinate Series 2004
B Bonds in the secondary market until maturity (i.e., minimum denominations
of $100,000).

Page 2



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

BOARD SUMMARY
Project: Hinsdale Mirabel Limited Partnership
(Hinsdale Lake Terrace Apartments Project)
STATISTICS
IFA Project #: M-MH-TE-CD-406 Amount: $45,000,000 (not-to-exceed amount)
Type: Housing Bond IFA Staff: Rich Frampton
Location: Unincorporated Willowbrook ,
(DuPage County) Tax ID: Applied for
SIC Code: 6513 Est. fee: $185,000 (negotiated based on transferred
Home Rule Volume Cap —no IFA
Volume Cap will be used)
BOARD ACTION

Final Bond Resolution

Conduit Taxable/Tax-Exempt Convertible Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds
No IFA Funds at risk :

Staff recommends approval subject to the following extraordinary condition:

e Condition: Subordinate Series 2004B Bonds will be non-rated and privately placed with Accredited
Institutional Investors as evidenced by execution of an Accredited Investor Letter that must be
delivered to the Trustee prior to the initial sale and any resale of the Subordinate Series 2004 B Bonds
in the secondary market until maturity. (The Senior Series 2004A Bonds will by AMBAC-insured and
Aaa/AAA-rated. Accordingly, no extraordinary conditions will apply to the Senior Series 2004A

Bonds.)

PURPOSE

Purchase and renovation of an existing $82-unit, 2-story, 24-building low-income multifamily rental property, with
a clubhouse/community building. This Project will convert an existing market rate property into a 100% affordable

apartment/rental townhome property.

IFA CONTRIBUTION

IFA will convey tax-exempt bond status on this financing.

The Developer and Financing Team will use approximately $31 million 0f 2003 IFA Carryforward Volume Cap
that they acquired from various Home Rule municipalities for this project and transferred to IFA. Additionally, the
Developer and Financing Team will acquire and transfer an additional $11.5 million of unused 2004 Home Rule
Volume Cap to IFA as necessary to close this bond issue.

VOTING RECORD

Preliminary Bond Resolution, 6/22/04:

Ayes: 11 Nays: 2  Abstentions: 0 Absent: 2 (Nesbitt, O’Brien) Vacant: 2



Hinsdale Mirabel Limited Partnership
(Hinsdale Lake Terrace Apartments)

Page 2
ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS
Sources: Senior Convertible $34,000,000 Uses: Project costs $ 47,577,015
Bonds (Series 2004A)
AMBAC Insured
Subordinate $8,500,000 Prepayment of 1,000,000
Convertible Bonds Existing Loan
(Series 2004B)
Non-Rated
Purchase of Vol. Cap 637,500
LIH Tax Credits 4,509,515 Tax Credit Costs 150,000
Oper. Deficit Reserve 580,000
: Other Reserves 395,000
Total $57,009,515 Issuance/Fin. Costs 720,000
Developer Fee 5,950,000
Total $57,009,515

*Note: The Developer’s Fee will be deferred and paid over time subject to a Partnership Agreement to be executed
between the Developer and Tax Credit Syndicator. Payment of these fees will be contingent on project
performance. Typical performance hurdles include: satisfying certain benchmark debt service coverage, occupancy
rates, or other negotiated covenants. '

JOBS
Current employment: 13 Projected new jobs: N/A
Jobs retained: N/A Construction jobs (18-24 mo’s.): 20 (average)
BUSINESS SUMMARY

Background: Hinsdale Mirabel Limited Partnership (the “Applicant”) is a Delaware limited partnership
established in 2004 for the express purpose of owning and redeveloping the Hinsdale Lake
Terrace Apartments Project.

The Laramar Group LLC (“Laramar” or the “Developer”) is an Illinois Limited Liability
Company established in 2000 that will own a 1.0% ownership interest in the property. The
predecessor of the Initial Applicant was Elkor, Inc., formed in 1989. The Laramar Group LLC is
a privately held real estate investment and management company specializing in multifamily real
estate. The principal owner of Laramar is Mr. Jeff Elowe of Chicago (also see the accompanying
Economic Disclosure Statement section of this report on pages 6-7).

The Limited Partner and 99.0% owner will SunAmerica Affordable Housing Partners, Inc., a
subsidiary of SunAmerica, and wholly owned subsidiary of AIG. (This project will generate
equity through the syndication of 4% Low Income Housing Tax Credits.)

Description: Hinsdale Lake Terrace is a 582-unit rental apartment property containing 480 apartment units and
102 rental “townhome” units. The property was constructed in 1968 and is located west of
Kingery Highway (Illinois Hwy. 83) and is bounded by 91* Street to the north and Mockingbird
Lane to the south, approximately 0.5 miles south of the I-55/IL 83 interchange in unincorporated
Willowbrook (DuPage County), [llinois 60521.

The property is located on an approximately 56.4 acre site (including areas dedicated for roads,
easements, a lake, and other common areas).



Hinsdale Mirabel Limited Partnership
(Hinsdale Lake Terrace Apartments)

Page 3

Background on
Developer and
Affiliates:

The property’s rental buildings consist of 24, 2-story, multifamily residential buildings. Of the
property’s 24 buildings, 15 are apartment-type, each with 32 rental units; 8 buildings are attached
row-type townhouses with 9 rental units each; and one building consists of 30 row-type rental
units.

The property’s common facilities include a 3,420 SF community resource building, tennis courts,
and outdoor swimming, a retention pond/lake, 1,455 parking spaces (i.e., 2.5 spaces per unit).

The property is currently a non-subsidized, market-rate property. The proposed project will
convert the property into a 100% affordable rental property for a minimum period of 15 years
(i.e., the initial 15-year Tax Credit compliance period).

The proposed project will include a substantial renovation of interiors, exteriors, and common
areas, as are described in further detail later (see Project Summary section, Page 6). Laramar
estimated an average renovation cost per unit at $13,018 as of 6/1/04.

Laramar and its principals have been active investors and manager of multifamily properties and
have acquired and sold approximately 20,000 units nationwide. Laramar’s current multifamily
portfolio consists of 37 properties comprising over 14,000 apartment units in ten states. The
Company’s current focus is acquiring and renovating properties located in the Northeast,
Midwest, Florida, and the Southwest.

Laramar owns seven properties in Illinois comprising approximately 3,105 units including
properties in Aurora (Hunters Glen — 320 units); Bolingbrook (Amberton — 789 units}; Crest Hill
(Woodlands of Crest Hill — 730 units); Gumee (Grand Oaks — 150 units); Mount Prospect
(Timberlake Apartments — 222 units); Mundelein (The Park Butterfield — 522 units); and Park
Forest (Autumn Ridge — 372 units).

Laramar currently owns nine properties financed with tax-exempt bonds totaling 4,406 units.
Laramar and its predecessors have sold three other properties originally financed with tax-exempt
bonds.

Laramar Construction Services L.L.C., another Chicago-based, Laramar affiliate, will serve as
General Contractor for the proposed renovations, subject to approval by the bond insurer (i.e.,
AMBAC). Laramar Construction Services has completed over $140,000,000 of new construction
and renovation projects for Laramar-owned properties.

The proposed property manager is Laramar Communities L.L.C., also a Laramar affiliate. Again,
the project lender and proposed Tax Credit Syndicator must consent to Laramar Communities
serving as the property manager. Laramar Communities was created to provide property and asset
management services to company-owned properties. Laramar has five regional managers and a
training department that provides employee training in marketing, regulatory compliance,
customer service, and fair housing. Laramar Communities currently oversees compliance with
tax-exempt bond income/rental compliance requirements at its nine bond financed properties.

There will be no tenant relocation during the renovation period except for temporary hotel stays
paid by Laramar. '



Hinsdale Mirabel Limited Partnership
(Hinsdale Lake Terrace Apartments)

Page 4

Financials:

Historical Results Prepared by Applicant based on Audited Results: 12/31/01-12/31/03

Projected Net Operating Income Statements 2004-2008. ($ in Thousands)

Income:

Gross Rental Income
Vacancy/Coll. Loss
Other Income (Net):

Project Income:

Operating Expenses:
Payroll

General Administrative
Operating & Maintenance
Utilities

R/E Taxes

Insurance

Mgmt. Fees
Replacement Reserve
Other Exp.

Total Oper. Expenses &
Repl. Reserve:

Net Operating Cash Flow
before

Debt Service (excl.
Depr./Amort.):

Projected Annual Debt
Service Payments IFA
Series 2004 Bonds:
Pro Forma Debt Svc.
Coverage (X)

12/31/2001 12/31/2002 12/31/2003 004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Year | Year2 Year3 Year4
$6,503 $6,743 $6,907 $6,862 $6,862 $7,034 $7,209 $7,390
-617 -839 -970 -1,043 -831 -708 -613 -628
276 267 272 272 271 279 285 293
6.162 6,171 6,209 6,091 6,302 6,605 6.881 7.055
747 753 904 573 590 607 623 638
162 127 280 127 131 135 139 142
761 826 969 597 61Ss 634 649 666
572 551 578 588 404 416 426 437
386 396 405 414 484 499 511 524
111 159 165 166 171 176 180 185
185 185 190 179 172 180 184 188
- -- - 175 175 175 175 175
2,92; 2,997 3,491 2,819 2,742 2,822 2.8 _‘; 2,25_5
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
3,238 3,174 2,718 3,272 3,560 3,783 3,994 4,100
2412 2412 2412 2412 2412 2412 20910 2910
1.34 1.32 1.13 1.36 1.48 1.57 1.37 1.41

Discussion : These projections assume:

0]

()
3)

4)
&)
(6

Estimated Blended Bond Interest Rate: 5.36% amortized over 33 years, with principal
payments beginning in 2007
Structural rehabilitation will be 100% complete as of 7/1/06 (24 months);
The proposed renovations will result in vacancies during the initial two years following
acquisition (i.e., through 7/1/2006).
15% vacancy rate — 2004; 12% vacancy rate — 2005; 10% vacancy rate — 2006 8.5%
vacancy rates in 2007-2008 (stabilization).
Project generates cash flow to service interest payments during renovation period.
Principal payments to begin 2007 (Year 3).
Projected rent escalation of approximately 2.5% in 2007 and 2008.



Hinsdale Mirabel Limited Partnership
(Hinsdale Lake Terrace Apartments)

Page 5

Market Facts:

(7) Projected expense escalation of approximately 2.9% in 2007 and 2.4% in 2008
(representing improved operating efficiencies).
(8) $175,000 annual replacement reserve to be funded from operations beginning in 2004.

Based on these assumptions, Laramar has generated historical debt service coverage (based on the
proposed payments on the IFA Series 2004 Bonds) to cover proposed bond payment by multiples
of 1.13 times or better over the last three years.

The proposed substantial renovations will improve the property thereby improving the property’s
vacancy rate. The Developer projects that the property will attain a stabilized vacancy rate of
8.5% beginning in 2007 (Year 3).

Pre-stabilization coverages are projected at 1.36x in 2004 and 1.48x in 2005 (based on scheduled
interest-only payments during pre-stabilization). Additionally, the projections indicate coverage
of 1.44 times or better beginning in 2005, the first full year following acquisition of the property.

Upon stabilization, Laramar projects debt service coverage at 1.37 times in 2007 (Year 3) and
1.41 times in 2008 (with improved operating efficiencies).

The combined unit mix for the Hinsdale Lake Terrace’s 24 buildings is as follows. All 582 units
will be low income (i.e., affordable) units upon completion:

# Units Unit Type Ave. SF Monthly
Rents
(include.
utilities)
120 1 BR 767 $829
180 2 BR : 942 $934
60 2BR 1,057 $974
120 3BR 1,270 $1,149
102 3 BR Townhome 1,862 $1,211
582 Total Units $0.86/SF $571,672
rental income
per month

The Applicant has provided a competitive rent analysis of three comparable market rate,
multifamily properties located within 5 miles of the subject property in Darien (Farmingdale
Apartments — 240 units) and Woodridge (Westwood Springs — 541 units and Windsor Lakes —
654 units).

Compared to comparable properties, Hinsdale Lake Terrace has (1) a relatively high proportion of
3 BR units for rental to working families (38%), and (2) larger units for each respective unit than '
2 of the 3 comparables (typically 100 SF to 750 SF larger depending on unit size).

The Current vacancy rate at Farmingdale Apartments in Darien (240 units constructed in 1982),
the nearest and most comparable in terms of units size was 11% as of 5/13/2004. The current
vacancy rate at Hinsdale Lake Terrace averaged 14% for calendar 2003. In comparison, the
vacancy rate at Westwood Springs in Woodridge (a 541-unit property constructed in 1974 with
rental rates comparable to Hinsdale Lake Terrace) was 13% as of 5/13/2004. In contrast, the




Hinsdale Mirabel Limited Partnership
(Hinsdale Lake Terrace Apartments)

Page 6

Subsidies:

Accessibility:

vacancy rate for Windsor Lakes, a well-maintained 654-unit property (with rental rates 10% to
15% lower than the 3 comparables), was only 5% as of 5/13/2004.

The Applicant will renovate the subject property and convert the property to 100% affordable
units with rent restrictions (as required for Low Income Housing Tax Credit compliance). The
Applicant believes the substantial renovations on the property will improve the competitive
position of the property in the marketplace.

Al three of the comparables are currently market rent properties. Laramar has determined that the
necessary improvements to Hinsdale Lake Terrace Apartments can be most effectively financed
with tax-exempt bond financing and 4% Low Income Housing Tax Credits. This financing will
help assure that property rents are affordable for qualified low- and moderate income households
in the market area. '

This financing will include syndication proceeds generated by the sale of 4% Low Income
Housing Tax Credits. The credit rate on the project has been estimated at $0.82 per credit and is
estimated to generate approximately $14,509,015 in proceeds. Upon completion of the proposed
renovations, a minimum of 40% of the units will be set aside to households earning no more than
60% of area median income. Ultimately, 100% of the units will be designated as “affordable”.
The property will be rent restricted for the initial 15-year tax credit compliance period.

According to the Applicant, this project is exempt from Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA™)
requirements regarding minimum unit set-asides and related accessibility and adaptability
requirements due to the age of the property (i.e., originally constructed in 1968).

Security:

Structure:

Maturity:

FINANCING SUMMARY

Senior Series 2004A Bonds: AMBAC bond insurance (Aaa/AAA-rated by Moody’s/S&P)
Subordinate Series 2004B Bonds: Nonrated and to be sold without credit enhancement. These
Bonds will be collateralized by a 2nd mortgage on the property and a put agreement to
SunAmerica (the bonds are guaranteed by SunAmerica through the put). The direct purchaser of
the Series 2004B bonds will be most likely Harris Bank and Trust Co. and its affiliates.

Senior Series 2004A Bonds: Auction Rate Bonds to be swapped to fixed rate after year 3
(estimated at 5.20%)

Subordinate Series 2004B Bonds: estimated fixed rate of 6.00%

Estimated Blended Rate on Series 2004 A and Series 2004B Bonds: 5.36%

Senior Series 2004A Bonds: 33 years
Subordinate Series 2004B Bonds: 33 years

PROJECT SUMMARY

Bond proceeds will be used to finance the acquisition and substantial renovation of Hinsdale Lake Terrace
apartments, a twenty-four building, two-story, 562-unit rental property with an approximately 3,420 SF clubhouse
facility located on a 56.5 acre site located west and northwest of the intersection of Kingery Hwy (Iilinois Hwy. 83)
and Mockingbird Lane in unincorporated Willowbrook (DuPage County), IL 60521.

Additionally, bond proceeds will be used to pay costs of issuance, capitalized interest, an operating deficit reserve,
_and development-related soft costs.



Hinsdale Mirabel Limited Partnership
(Hinsdale Lake Terrace Apartments)

Page 7

Preliminary estimated project costs are as follows:

Land/Bldg. Acquisition: $40,000,000
**Renovations: 1.577.015
Total: $47,577.015

**Renovations will include the following: (1) exterior improvements — approximately $2.8 million (roof
replacement, gutter and downspout replacement, viny! siding replacement, balcony replacement, window
replacement, patio door replacement, drywall repairs to window openings, and exterior painting/caulking replace
swimming pool deck and walls, resurface tennis courts, add pond aerator, improve site drainage, landscaping
improvements, parking lot/pavement, common area carpeting, common area painting), and (2) building interiors —
approximately $4.7 million (replace refrigerators, ranges, dishwasher; range hoods, HVAC [forced air furnace and
central A/C], new carpeting, new vinyl/ceramic flooring, new tub surrounds, tub resurfacing).

Applicant:

Project name:
Locations:

Organization:
State:

Ownership of
Applicant:

Current Property
Owner:

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

Hinsdale Mirabel Limited Partnership, a Delaware Limited Partnership (c/o Mr. Bennett Neuman,
Vice President-Acquisitions, The Laramar Group LLC, 222 S. Riverside Plaza, Chicago, IL
60606; Ph.: 312-879-7536)

Hinsdale Lake Terrace Apartments

8 Apartment Buildings (32-Units each) from 16W434-16W580 Honeysuckle Rose Lane;

5 Apartment Buildings (32-Units each) from 10S626-10S710 Lilac Lane;

2 Apartment Buildings (32-Units each) from 10S481-10S515 Ivy Lane;

1 30-Unit Townhome: 16W626 Honeysuckle Rose Lane;

2 Townhomes (9-Units each). 16W 571-16W615 Honeysuckle Rose Lane;

2 Townhomes (9-Units each): 10S635-108671 lvy Lane

2 Townhomes (9-Units each): 16W630-16W660 Mockingbird Lane

2 Townhomes (9-Units each): 10S652-10S700 Hyacinth Drive

all in unincorporated Willowbrook (DuPage County), Illinois 60521

Limited Partnership

Delaware

Hinsdale Mirabel Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership

The Laramar Group LLC, an Illinois Limited Liability Company, General Partner: 1.00% (The
only member with a 7.5% or greater membership interest is Mr. Jeff Elowe, Chicago, IL)

SunAmerica Affordable Housing Partners, Inc.: 99.00% (through syndication of 4% low income
housing tax credits to large corporations, including affiliates, subsequent to closing). SunAmerica
is 100% owned by American International Group, Inc.

Hinsdale Lake Terrace Venture, an Iilinois joint venture, ¢/o, Mr. David Sawusch, Citadel Realty,
Inc., 2700 River Road, Suite 102, Des Plaines, IL 60018, Ph.: 847/390-8350. Attorney: Mr.
Robert Higgins, 55 E. Monroe St., Suite 3850, Chicago, IL 60603, Ph.: 312/424-3999.



Hinsdale Mirabel Limited Partnership
(Hinsdale Lake Terrace Apartments)

Page 8
PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL
Counsel: Piper Rudnick LLP Chicago, IL Mark Yura
Bond Counsel: Sidley Austin Brown & Wood, LLP  Chicago, IL Dick Astle
Washington, DC Peter Canzano
Underwriter: Stern Brothers & Co. Chicago, IL Dave Rasch
Underwriter’s Coun.: Sidley Austin Brown & Wood, LLP  Chicago, IL Dick Astle
Washington, DC Peter Canzano
Bond Insurance: AMBAC Assurance Corp. New York, NY

Counsel to Credit

Enhancer: Ballard, Spahr, Andrews & Ingersoll,

LP Philadelphia, PA Jere Thompson
Auction Agent: Harris Bank Chicago, IL Jack Bruggemam
Trustee: Amalgamated Bank Chicago, IL Gail Klewin
General Contractor: Laramar Construction Services LLC  Chicago, IL Jim Merkey
Management Agent: Laramar Communities LLC Chicago, IL Dave Woodward
Tax Credit
Investor/Subordinate
Lender: SunAmerica Affordable Housing :

Partners, Inc. Los Angeles, CA Dana Mayo
Counsel to
Syndicator/Subordinate
Lender: Orrick Herrington Los Angeles, CA
Rating Agencies: Moody’s Investors Service New York, NY

S&P Ratings Group New York, NY Chris Moriarty
IFA Counsel: Sanchez & Daniels Chicago, IL Manny Sanchez,

John Cummins
LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS

Congressional: 13
State Senate: 41
State House: 82

irich\0 IFA Board Reports\06-June\06-04 Laramar Hinsdale Lake PBR

6/6/04 10:30 AM
RKF



To:

From:

Date:

Re:

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

MEMORANDUM

IF A Board of Directors
Rich Frampton
July 13, 2004

Overview Memo for Recycling Systems, Inc.
P-SW-TE-CD-405

Borrower/Project Name: Recycling Systems, Inc.
Location: Chicago (Cook County)

Principal Project Contact: Mr. Jerry L. Golf, President
Board Action Requested: Final Bond Resolution

Amount: not to exceed $11.0 million
o Uses: B
e Construct and equip a new construction and demolition (“C&D”) solid
waste transfer station on a site leased from the Metropolitan Water
Reclamation District of Greater Chicago (through 2039)
e MWRD is also requiring construction of a concrete seawall and
landscaping for the site, located adjacent to the Chicago Sanitary and
Ship Canal (3152 S. California Street)

Project Type: Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds

IFA Benefits:
e Conduit Tax-Exempt Bonds — no direct IFA or State funds at risk
e New Money Bonds:
e convey tax-exempt status
e project will use approximately $9.4 million of IFA 2002 Carryforward
Volume Cap allocated to Solid Waste Disposal (estimated amount as of

6/25/2004)

IFA Fees:
e $72,380 (based on estimated $9.4 million bond issue)



e Structure/Ratings:
e Bonds to be purchased directly by Northside Community Bank (Riverwoods, IL)

as Lender/Bond Purchaser. The Bank may sell participations in these Bonds to
other financial institutions subject to the condition noted below.
20-year maturity

e Current interest rate: Northside Community Bank’s initial interest rate will be
set at 0.65% over Prime adjusted annually on the anniversary date of the Bond
issue. The current interest rate would be 4.65%, based on market interest rates as

of 6/25/2004

¢ Recommendations/Conditions:
¢ Staff recommends approval of a Final Bond Resolution in an amount not to
exceed $11.0 million

e Extraordinary condition:
o Participations of all or a portion of this bond issue may be resold to other

qualified financial institutions subject to delivery of a Qualified Investor
Letter to the Bond Trustee. Otherwise, resale of these Bonds will be

prohibited in the secondary market.

Page 2

Il N I I I N T BN B BE By B B B B B e



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

BOARD SUMMARY
Deal: Recycling Systems, Inc.
STATISTICS
Project Number: P-SW-TE-CD-405 Amount: $11,000,000 (not-to-exceed amount)
Type: Solid Waste
Disposal Revenue Bonds PPA: - Rich Frampton
Location: Chicago Tax ID: 36-4343734
SIC Code: 4212 (Debris Removal) Est. fee: $72,380 (based on $9.40 mm amount)
BOARD ACTION
Final Bond Resolution No IFA funds at risk.

Conduit Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds
Staff recommends approval subject to the following condition:

Extraordinary condition:

¢ Participations of all or a portion of this bond issue may be resold to other qualified financial institutions
subject to delivery of a Qualified Investor Letter to the Bond Trustee (otherwise, resale of these Bonds will
be prohibited in the secondary market).

PURPOSE

Real estate improvements and the purchase of containers and other solid waste disposal sorting and transfer
equipment in connection with a solid waste disposal transfer station.

IFA CONTRIBUTION

This project will require up to $11.0 million of Volume Cap comprised of IFA’s 2002 Carryforward Volume Cap.

VOTING RECORD

This is the first time this project has been reviewed by the IFA Board. The Board of Directors of the Illinois
Development Finance Authority approved a Preliminary Bond Resolution for this project on September 18, 2003.
The Voting Record follows immediately below:

lllingis Development Finance Authority -- Preliminary Bond Resolution).
. Ayes: 13 Nays: 0 Abstentions: 1 (Hynes) Absent: 3 (Daniels, Filan, Ratner)
Vacant: 0



Recycling Systems, Inc.

Page 2
SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS
Sources: IFA Bonds $9,400,000 /, Uses: Project Costs $10,347,000 v
*Equity 2,034,000 - Capitalized Interest 750,000
Reserves 200,000 7
Bond Issuance Costs 137,000
Total $11,434.000 Total $11.434,000

*Sources of Equity: The principals of RSI will be contributing cash from personal accounts to provide the required
equity for this project. Additionally, the Bank will be secured by other real estate in Forest Park owned by the
principals and leased to RSI, thereby enabling the high loan-to-cost advances noted above.

JOBS
Current employment: 30 Projected new jobs: 30
Jobs retained: Not applicable Construction jobs: 60-70 (6 months)
BUSINESS SUMMARY

Background:

Description:

Recycling Systems, Inc. (“RSI” or the “Company”) was established by Jerry Lee Golf in 2000 and
incorporated under State of Illinois law in 2000. The Company is owned by Mr. Jerry Lee Golf of
Forest Park, IL.

RSI has been engaged in collecting and transporting construction waste and demolition (“C&D”)
debris since its founding in 2000. RSI serves general contractors and construction companies.
Key RSI customers include Turner Construction, Walsh Construction, and other managers of
large-scale construction projects. :

RSI maintains over 200 purchase orders (contracts) at any one time and has between 200-300
active accounts.

RSI is currently providing construction waste removal services at the new Hyatt Center complex
under construction on the north side of Monroe Street, between Wacker Drive and Franklin Street,
and also at the Lakeshore East development located east of Columbus Drive, between East
Wacker Street and Randolph Street. Walsh Construction and McHugh Construction are the
general contractors, respectively, on these projects.

" RSI owns and transports roll-off boxes to construction and demolitions sites. RSI arranges for the

pick-up of the boxes with its own fleet of trucks. RSI sorts the debris at its C&D transfer station.
Materials are then delivered to landfills for final disposal or, alternatively, sold to purchasers who
reuse certain recyclable materials.

RSI’s C&D transfer station will be located on leased property at 3152 S. California Avenue in the
Little Village area of Chicago.

As a result of the proposed project, RSI will relocate its C&D transfer station to approximately
6.79 acres of land owned by the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District (‘“MWRD”) and
adjacent to the Chicago Sanitary and Ship Canal. Although the site is accessible by railcar and
barge, RSI plans to use over-the-road-trucking services to haul materials to and from the site.



Recycling Systems, Inc.

Page 3

Status of
Required
Permits:

Financials:

Discussion:

RSI and MWRD executed a land lease as of 6/15/2000 (as amended) that is scheduled to terminate
as of 6/14/2039.

The proposed project has strong support from the City of Chicago and MWRD. Locally, Ald.
George Cardenas has indicated support for the project. The project is expected to add 30 new
employees immediately upon completion and 60 to 70 construction jobs during the estimated six-
month construction period.

According to Sandman, Inc. of Orland Park, Illinois, the Design and Engineering Consultant for
the proposed project, the City of Chicago’s Department of Environment is the governmental entity
with sole permitting authority over the subject project. The Chicago Department of Environment
provides permits in accordance with regulations promulgated by the IEPA (as is the option for any
municipality with a population over 100,000).

According to Sandman’s filing, Recycling Systems, Inc. will only be required to obtain an
operating permit from the City of Chicago’s Department of Environment for the proposed project.

The project was approved unanimously by the City of Chicago Planning Commission on June 12,
2003 (pursuant to a Public Hearing Notice describing the proposed project published in the
Chicago Sun-Times on 3/26/2003).

Compiled financial statements for fiscal years 2001-2003. Projections for fiscal years 2004-2006.

Year Ended Dec. 31 Year Ended Dec. 31
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
(Dollars in 000's) (Dollars in 000's)

Income statement:

Sales $2,667 $3,963 $5,678 $6,246 $7,183 8,260

Net income 19 235 113 151 29 52

EBITDA 412 653 536 581 1,497 1,870
Balance sheet:

Current Assets 653 599 1,139 1,027 1,204 1,407

Net PP&E 778 1,158 1,185 13,372 12,839 12,179

Other Assets 14 14 26 363 1,367 1,367

Total 1,445 1,771 2,350 14,762 15.410 14,953

Current Liabilities 726 751 829 1,785 2,652 2,750

Long Term Liab. 771 838 1,056 11,864 11,405 10,946

Other Non-Cur. Liab. - -- - - - -

Equity (52) 182 465 1,050 1,080 1,131

Total 1,445 1,771 2,350 14,699 15,137 14.828
Ratios:

Debt/Fixed Oblig.

Coverage 1.68x 2.42x 2.29x 1.34x 1.23x 1.54x
Current ratio 0.90 0.80 1.37 0.58 ° 045 0.51
Debt/equity (0.0) 5.37 2.59 11.72 10.99 10.08

RSI has generated strong operating cash flow and debt service coverage since its inception in
2000. Although RSI reported a net loss in 2001, RSI has recorded positive net income before
depreciation and amortization from its inception in 2000. RSI’s ability to maintain positive
EBITDA while revenues increased from $691,000 in 2000 to $5.67 million in 2003 indicates
successful management of past growth.



Recycling Systems, Inc.
Page 4

After adjusting RSI’s reported net income by adding back interest, income taxes, depreciatién,
amortization, and rent expense, RSI’s historical operating cash flows (EBITDA) have been
sufficient to cover its fixed obligations by multiples of 1.68 times or better since 2000.

These projections were prepared based on assumptions provided by the Applicant. The
projections assume a fixed rate of 6.25% for the proposed 20-year term of the Bonds (the initial
interest rate will be 4.65% (i.e., 0.65% above the current Prime Rate).

Although RSI’s projected balance sheet appears highly leveraged, Northside Community Bank is
secured with additional off balance sheet collateral pledged by the principals (i.e., facilities in
Forest Park, Illinois leased to RSI). Although the projections assume that the ratios of both Net
Income/Sales and EBITDA/Sales will decline in the future, the forecasted cash flows will provide
strong debt service coverage of 1.23 times or better beginning in 2005, the first year of operation
of the new facility.

Northside Community Bank will also be providing a $1.0 million Line of Credit to support
operations, primarily accounts receivable, thereby facilitating the projected growth.

The projections assume that the Project will be operational as of 1/1/05.

FINANCING SUMMARY

Security: The Bonds will be purchased by Northside Community Bank as Lender/Bond Purchaser. As
Lender/Bond Purchaser, Northside Community Bank will be secured by a blanket First Mortgage
and First Security Interest in all corporate assets, including the proposed project. (Project related
collateral includes: (1) assignment of the Land Lease for the subject property and a leasehold
interest in the buildings to be constructed thereon [and future buildings], and (2) an assignment of
the City of Chicago transfer station operating permit. Additionally, the Borrower will be required
to hold a $200,000 cash deposit at the Bank to secure the City of Chicago & MWRD letters of
credit. Additionally, the Bank will be secured by personal guarantees from the principals.)

Structure: The Bonds will be sold at a variable rate set at Prime plus 0.65% adjusted annually. The
estimated interest rate on the subject bonds was 4.65% as of 6/22/2004.

Maturity: 20 years

PROJECT SUMMARY

Bond proceeds will be used to construct and equip a solid waste transfer station to be used exclusively for solid
construction and demolition debris to be located at 3152 S. California Avenue, Chicago (Cook County), IL 60608-
5112. Additionally, bond proceeds may also be used to finance bond issuance costs and to capitalize a debt service
reserve fund. RSI will lease the approximately 6.79 acre project site from the Metropolitan Water Reclamation
District of Greater Chicago.

Proposed project costs are summarized as follows:

***Building Construction: $8,247,000
Equipment: 2,100,000
Total: $10,347,000

***These construction costs include $525,000 of rail/water/sewer/utility improvements and $1.5 million landscaped
seawall to be constructed along the Chicago Sanitary and Ship Canal (as required by the MWRD under the Ground
Lease that is scheduled to terminate in 2039).



S BN = N BN IR BN Bh Sy BN BN B BE BN B e

Recycling Systems, Inc.
Page 5

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

Applicant: Recycling Systems, Inc. (Contact: Mr. Jerry Lee Golf, President, Recycling Systems, Inc., 1313
Circle Avenue, Forest Park (Cook County), IL 60130; Ph.: 708/488-1999; Fax: 708/366-9914)

Project name: Recycling Systems, Inc. Series 2004 Bonds

Location: 3152 S. California Avenue, Chicago (Cook County), IL 60608-5112

Organization: S Corporation

State: [llinois

Applicant: Corporation

Ownership: Mr. Jerry Lee Golf, Forest Park, IL: 100.0%

Lessor of

Real Estate: The Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago (see attached Exhibit A for the

list of Board of Commissioners)

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL

Borrower’s Counsel: Michael Haber & Associates Chicago, IL Michael Haber
Special Counsel: Ice Miller / Chicago, IL Tom Smith
Bond Counsel: Chapman and Cutler, LLP v Chicago, IL Fred Snow
Bond Purchaser/

Direct Lender: Northside Community Bank + Riverwoods, IL

Accountant: Kohn, Roseth & Associates Ltde" : Highland Park, IL  Scott Kohn
Design &

Eng. Consultant: Sandman, Inc. — Orland Park, IL John Koty
Architect: Hutter Architects, Ltd. - Chicago, IL Pam Hutter
Project Engineer: Richard Krenovsky . Alsip, IL Richard Krenovsky
General Contractor: Walsh Construction o Chicago, IL Matt Walsh
Trustee: Not applicable —

Issuer’s Counsel: Greenberg Traurig, P.C. — Chicago, IL Ray McGaugh

Professional Service Providers Engaged by MWRD for this project:

Environmental Design: Patrick Engineering
Traffic Study: KLOA
Real Estate Impact Study: Terrence O’Brien & Co.
Transfer Station Permit Review and Environmental
Impact Study: Civil and Environmental Consultants, Inc.
Soil Borings: Pioneer Engineering & Environmental Services, Inc.
Landscape Plan: Terra Engineering
Surveying and Civil Engineering: Landmark Engineering
Channel Mapping and Soundings: Hollister Mariene Services
Zoning and Development Plan: Greenberg Traurig, P.C.
LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS
Congressional: 4 Gutierrez
State Senate: 1 Munoz
State House: 1 Mendoza

_i:\rich\0 IFA 2004 Board Reports 07 July\Recycling Systems Inc. FBR 07-04
06/25/04 8:46 PM
RKF



Recycling Systems, Inc.
Page 6

Exhibit A: List of Board of Commissioners for Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of
Greater Chicago

METROPOLITAN WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT OF GREATER CHICAGO
100 East Erie Street
Chicago, IL 60611
(312) 751-5600

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Hon. Terrence J. O’Brien, President

Hon. Kathleen Therese Meany, Vice President
Hon. Gloria Alitto Majewski, Chairman of Finance
Hon. Frank Avila

Hon. James C. Harris

Hon. Barbara J. McGowan

Hon. Cynthia M. Santos

Hon. Patricia Young

Hon. Harry “Bus” Yourell

Al Tl N N BN B N BN N BN BN B BN EE BN am



To:

From:

Date:

Re:

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

MEMORANDUM

IFA Board of Directors
Rich Frampton
July 13, 2004

Overview Memo for Waterton Vistas II, L.L.C.
(New Vistas II Apartments Project)
M-MH-TE-CD-405

Borrower/Project Name: Waterton Vistas II, L.L.C. (New Vistas II Apartments
Project) ‘

Location: Chicago (Cook Co.) [South Shore neighborhood]

Principal Project Contact: Mr. Jim Schwartz, Waterton Associates LLC,
Chicago

Board Action Requested: Final Bond Resolution

Amount: not to exceed $8.5 million
e Uses: - ’
e Acquisition of existing 154-unit, 4-story, 6-building, non-contiguous, low-
income multifamily rental property
e Substantial renovations of properties ($1.15 million; Exterior:
tuckpointing, storm doors, balcony repairs, painting; HVAC: boiler
replacement, replacement of in-unit radiator valves/thermostats; Common
Areas: pavement/parking lot repairs; landscaping; laundry rooms),
appliance replacement, upgrades to common areas)

Project Type: Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds



e IFA Benefits:
— Conduit Tax-Exempt Bonds — no direct IFA or State funds at risk

— IFA Tax-Exempt Bonds will enable the Developer to automatically qualify
for 4% Low Income Housing Tax Credits

— New Money Bonds:
— will use dedicated $8.5 million of 2003 Carryforward Volume Cap
acquired by Developer/Financing Team for Project from Home Rule Units
—~ no IFA Volume Cap will be required while Bonds are outstanding in
either Taxable or Tax-Exempt modes.

o IFA Fees: A
e One-time, upfront closing fee estimated at $56,288 (reflects use of transferred

Volume Cap purchased by Developer/Financing Team)

e Structure/Ratings:
e Bonds to be sold directly based on FNMA Direct Pay Credit Enhancement

Instrument (GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corp. is a FINMA DUS Lender)

e Ratings — based on AAA rated FNMA credit enhancement (S&P)

Current and estimated rates: Bonds will be sold as 7-day floaters (current

estimated effective interest rate of 2.40% as of 5/4/04) ,

e GMAC is requiring Borrower to purchase an interest rate cap (the “Rate Cap”)
for an initial minimum term of five years. Borrower will be required to
escrow on a monthly basis approximately 1/60™ of the cost to replace this Rate
Cap upon expiration (subject to adjustments).

e Recommendations/Conditions:

e Staff recommends approval — because transaction is an investment grade conduit
bond issue, no extraordinary conditions will be required.

Page 2



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

BOARD SUMMARY
Project: Waterton Vistas II, L.L.C.
(New Vistas II Apartments Project)
STATISTICS
IFA Project#: M-MH-TE-CD-405 Amount: $8,500,000 (not-to-exceed amount)
Type: Housing Bond IFA Staff: Rich Frampton
Location: Chicago Tax ID: . 20-0442483
SIC Code: 6513 Est. fee: $56,288 (based on $7.505 million issuance)
BOARD ACTION
Final Bond Resolution
Conduit Multi-Family Tax-Exempt Housing Revenue Bonds No IFA Funds at risk
Staff recommends approval No extraordinary conditions
PURPOSE

Purchase and renovation of an existing 154-unit, 4-story, 6-building low-income multifamily rental property.
Project will preserve a 100% affordable apartment property.

VOLUME CAP

The Developer and Financing Team will use approximately $8.45 million of 2002-2003 IFA Carryforward Volume
Cap that they acquired from various Home Rule municipalities for this project.

VOTING RECORD
Preliminary Bond Resolution, May 18, 2004:

Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Abstentions: 0 Absent: 2 (Guannoulias, Nesbitt) Vacant: 2

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Sources: Tax-Exempt Bonds $ 8,450,000 /ses: Project costs $ 9,470,000 +~
7 LIH Tax Credits $ 3,445,874 Interest Rate Hedging
4l Contract $ 66,000 7
Purchase of Vol. Cap 5 84,500
*Deferred Devel. Fee $ 327.000 Tax Credit Costs 3 150,000 <
Oper. Deficit Reserve $ 291298 ~
Restabilizing Reserve ~ $ 300,000
Other Reserves $ 125,000 v
Issuance/Fin. Costs $ 361,000 >~
Development Fee 1 076 v«
Total $ 12,222,874 Total $ 12,222,874

*Note: The Deferred Developer’s Fee is to be paid out of cash flows and tax credit investor funds (available after
mortgage payments and required reserves) subject to satisfying terms of GMAC/FNMA’s financial performance
covenants and the Partnership Agreement with Paramount Financial Group (the proposed Tax Credit Syndicator),
Many of these upfront Developer costs will be recovered upon closing of the proposed bond/equity financing, as

/



Waterton Vistas II, L.L.C.
(New Vistas 11 Apartments)
Page 2

permitted according to applicable federal statutes. Payment of the Deferred Developer’s Fee must also conform to
pertinent federal statutes for Low Income Housing Tax Credits (i.e., Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code).

JOBS
Current employment: 6 Projected new jobs: N/A
Jobs retained: N/A Construction jobs (12 mo’s.): 10
BUSINESS SUMMARY

Background: Waterton Vistas II, L.L.C. (the “Applicant”) is a Delaware Limited Liability Company formed in
2003 for the express purpose of purchasing and rehabilitating New Vistas [1 Apartments, a 154-
unit low/moderate income multifamily rental property located at 6909 S. Crandon Avenue in
Chicago (Cook County), Illinois. Waterton Vistas II, L.L.C. is an affiliate of Waterton Associates
LLC, a Chicago-based firm engaged in the acquisition, rehabilitation, and management of
multifamily apartments, with an emphasis on affordable housing.

AHG NV Managers L.L.C. will be Manager and 0.01% owner of the Applicant. Amtax Holdings
2003, will be Member and owner of a 99.99% membership interest in the Applicant. Amtax is an
affiliate of Paramount Financial Group (“Paramount”) of Granville, OH. Paramount will
syndicate 4% Low Income Housing Tax Credits to corporations, thereby generating equity for this
financing. Paramount is a division of GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corp.

Description: New Vistas II Apartments were originally constructed and financed in the 1920’s and were most
recently rehabilitated in the 1970’s. The property consists of six separate buildings located within
1 1/2 blocks near the intersection of Crandon Ave. and 69" St. in Chicago’s South Shore
neighborhood.

100% of the apartments at the property are affordable. The entire property is covered by a HUD
Housing Assistance Payment (“HAP”) Contract that runs until 2017. Given the proposed IFA
bond financing with 4% Low Income Housing Tax Credits. The property will remain low income
for a minimum of 15 years (i.e., the initial 15-year Tax Credit compliance period), covenants to
the property will assure that the property remains low income for 30 years (i.e., through 2034).
Accordingly, this financing will preserve this property as low income for an additional 17 years
beyond expiration of the HAP Contract.

Remarks: Waterton Associates was formed in 1995 by David R. Schwartz and Peter M. Vilim. Waterton
employs more than 400 people company-wide including its Chicago headquarters, regional
property management offices, and its 36 apartment communities located in 13 cities in eight
states.

Since its founding in 1995, Waterton Associates has purchased more than $1.3 billion of real
estate and currently owns and manages more than 30 multifamily properties with approximately
15,000 apartment units.

Since 1997, Waterton Associates has financed the acquisition and renovation of five properties
with tax-exempt bonds and has acquired three properties that had tax-exempt bonds in place at the
time of purchase. Waterton Associates will also serve as General Contractor for the proposed
renovations, subject to approval by FNMA/GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corp., the project .
lender.

Another Waterton Associates affiliate, Waterton Property Management (the proposed property
manager for the subject property), currently oversees compliance with tax-exempt bond and Low
Income Housing Tax Credit income/rental compliance requirements at nine (9) properties in three
states.



(New Vistas II Apartments)
Page 3

There will be no tenant relocation during the renovation period.

l Waterton Vistas I, L.L.C.

Financials: Historical Results Prepared by Applicant based on Audited Results: 12/31/01-12/31/02
Projected Project Income/Expense Statements 2004-2006. ($ in Thousands)
Annualized from
I 11 mo. results
12/31/01 12/31/02 12/31/03 2004 2005 2006
lcome:

Gross Rental Income $1,547 $1,547 $1,547 $1,547 $1,593 $1,641
cancy/Coll. Loss (12) (6) 22) €1)) (32) (33)
her Income (Net): 36 42 32 31 33 34

Coject Income: 1,571 1,582 1,557 1,546 1,594 1,642

perating Expenses:

Payroll 236 238 209 237 244 251
neral Administrative 19 19 31 30 31 32
erating & Maintenance 82 77 71 68 70 72

Utilities 259 195 212 221 228 235

Taxes 118 149 142 131 130 136
surance 25 40 47 36 37 38
Mgmt. Fees 124 110 124 62 64 66
eplacement Reserve - -- - 39 39 39
ther Exp. -- -- .- -- - -

Total Oper. Expenses & Repl. Reserve: 862 828 837 824 843 869

let Operating Cash Flow before
Debt Service (excl. Depr./Amort.): 709 135 720 122 751 113
lojected Annual Debt Service Payments IFA 321 521 521 521 521 521
ries 2004 Bonds:
Iro Forma Debt Sve. Coverage (X) 1.36x 1.45x 1.38x 1.39x 1.44x 1.48x
Discussion: The projections assume:
l (1) Acquisition closes 7/2005;

(2) Structural rehabilitation will be 100% complete as of 7/1/05 (12 months);
I (3) There will be no tenant displacement during renovation period.
(4) 2% stabilized vacancy and collection loss rate assumed -- based on operating history and
project-based HAP contract. :
(5) All gross rental income reported above reflects stabilized occupancy.
I (6) Bond principal and interest payments begin 9/2004.
(7) Debt service payments assume fixed interest rate of approximately 6.30% for projections
and 30-year amortization.
I (8) Projected rent escalation of approximately 3% in both 2005 and 2006.

Based on these assumptions, New Vistas Il has generated historical debt service coverage (based
on the proposed payments on the IFA Series 2004 Bonds) to cover proposed bond payment by
multiples of 1.36 times or better over the last three years.



Waterton Vistas I1, L.L.C.
(New Vistas II Apartments)

Page 4

Market Facts:

Subsidies:

Accessibility:

Additionally, projections indicate coverage of 1.44 times or better beginning in 2005, the first full
year following acquisition of the property.

These results, as prepared by the Applicant, suggest cash flows well in excess of FNMA/GMAC’s
1.20 times minimum debt service coverage covenant.

The combined unit mix for the six buildings is as follows:

# Units Unit Type Ave. SF Rents
(include.
utilities)

6 Studio/1BA 560 $747

12 1BR/1BA 994 $810

47 2BR/1BA 1322 $900

89 3BR/1.5BA 1424 $1,009

154 Total Units

There are 25 off-street parking places at the property (Comment: buildings were constructed in
the 1920’s).

The Applicant has provided a competitive rent analysis of five nearby properties located within
0.5 miles of the subject project. Compared to these competitive properties, New Vistas II offers
more square footage for each unit type.

On a rent/sq. ft. basis, the rents at New Vistas will be lower than any of its comparable properties
(also reflective of the project-based Section 8 contract). Because of the large unit size and
affordable rents, New Vistas Il currently has a waiting list of approximately 100 for its 154 rental
units. This waiting list is a strong indicator for existing market demand.

This financing will include syndication proceeds generated by the sale of 4% Low Income
Housing Tax Credits. The credit rate on the project is currently $0.81 per credit and is estimated
to generate approximately $2,709,500 in proceeds. Upon completion of the proposed renovations,
a minimum of 40% of the units will be set aside to households earning no more than 60% of area
median income.

As noted previously, pursuant to this acquisition, the purchaser will assume HUD’s HAP project
contract that runs through 2034. Because of the use of Tax Credits for 100% of the units, rents at
this property will be 100% rent-restricted pursuant to IRS regulations for a minimum of 15 years.

According to the Applicant, this project is exempt from Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”)
requirements regarding minimum unit set-asides and related accessibility and adaptability
requirements due to the age of the property (i.e., originally constructed in the 1920’s).



Waterton Vistas II, L.L.C.
(New Vistas II Apartments)
Page 5

Security: Direct Pay Credit Enhancement Instrument issued by FNMA

Structure: Multi-modal 7-Day Variable Rate Demand Bonds (with a minimum 5-year Interest Rate Hedging
Contract (to be purchased from Swap Financial of New York, NY) as a precondition to the
GMAC/FNMA credit enhancement commitment).

Initial Mode: Taxable 7-Day Variable Rate Demand Bonds. Bonds will be sold as Taxable
Bonds initially until the property achieves compliance with applicable low- and moderate-income
guidelines. During this period, Paramount Financial Group, the Tax Credit Syndicator, will
advance a loan to the Borrower equivalent to the anticipated amount of Tax Credits. Upon
achieving compliance with the “40-60 rule”, (1) the Bonds will convert mode from Taxable 7-day
Floaters to Tax-Exempt 7-day Floaters, (2) then, according to the Partnership agreement between
Waterton Vistas II and Paramount, tax-credit equity will be paid in , thereby extinguishing the
Paramount “Tax Credit Anticipation Loan”.

Final Mode (upon compliance): Tax-Exempt 7-day Variable Rate Demand Bonds.
Maturity: 30 Years (with 30-year amortization)

Subordinated
Debt: None

Bond proceeds will be used to finance the acquisition and renovation of six properties, collectively known as New
Vistas II apartments located at (1) 6852-58 S. Paxton and 2148-50 E. 69" St.; (2) 6840-58 S. Crandon and 2220-36
E. 69% St.; (3) 7001-09 S. Crandon and 2305-11 E. 70" St., (4) 6951-57 S. Crandon and 2308-14 E. 70" St., (5)
7006-08 S. Crandon and 2235-37 E. 70" St. and (6) 7015-25 S. Crandon and 2300-10 E. 70% St. in Chicago (Cook

County), Illinois 60649.

Additionally, bond proceeds will be used to pay costs of issuance, capitalized interest, and development-related soft
costs.

Estimated project costs are as follows:

Land Acquisition: $832,500

Building Acquisition: 7,492,500

*Renovations: 1,145,595

Contingency/Other (10%) 1,711,500
11_5

Renovations will include (1) exterior improvements - $777,500 (tuckpointing, storm doors, balcony replacement,
roof replacement, paint), (2) commons areas - $41,000 (parking lot/pavement, landscaping, and laundry room
improvements), and mechanical improvements - $193,000 (boiler replacement in three buildings, unit radiator valve
replacement, and electrical upgrades)

Applicant: Waterton Vistas II, L.L.C. and its affiliates (c/o , Jim Schwartz, Waterton Associates, One North
Franklin, Suite 1150, Chicago, IL 60606; Ph.: 312/948-4558; Fax: 312/948-4559; e-mail:

jschwartz@wallc.com

Project name: ~ New Vistas II Apartments



Waterton Vistas II, L.L.C.
(New Vistas [1 Apartments)

Page 6
Locations: (1) 6852-58 S. Paxton and 2148-50 E. 69* St.; (2) 6840-58 S. Crandon and 2220-36 E. 69" St.;
(3) 7001-09 S. Crandon and 2305-11 E. 70* St., (4) 6951-57 S. Crandon and 2308-14 E. 70" St.,
(5) 7006-08 S. Crandon and 2235-37 E. 70" St. and (6) 7015-25 S. Crandon and 2300-10 E. 70"
St. in Chicago (Cook County), Illinois 60649
Organization: ~ Limited Liability Company
State: Delaware
Ownership: Waterton Vistas II, L.L.C., a Delaware Limited Liability Company
e AHG NV Managers L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company, Manager: 1.0%
—  Waterton Associates, L.L.C., an Illinois limited liability company, Member: 1.0%
—  Mr. Peter Vilim and Mr. David Schwartz are the only two individuals with a
7.5% or greater membership interest in Waterton Associates, L.L.C.
—  Waterton Holdings, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company, Member: 99.0%
—  Mr. Peter Vilim and Mr. David Schwartz are the only two individuals with a
7.5% or greater membership interest in Waterton Holdings, L.L.C.
e Amtax Holdings 2003, L.P., an affiliate of Paramount Financial Group, Granville, OH,
Member: 99.0% (through syndication of 4% low income housing tax credits to large
corporations, including affiliates, subsequent to closing). Paramount Financial Group is
GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corporation’s tax credit syndication affiliate.
Current Property
Owner: New Vistas Apartment Associates Phase 11, an Illinois limited partnership:
General Partner: Neighborhood Reinvestment Resources Corporation, c/o Mr. Lance J. Graber,
Executive Vice President, Apartment Investment and Management Company, Stanford Place 3,
4582 South Ulster Street Parkway, Suite 1100, Denver, CO 80237.
Counsel: Piper Rudnick g Chicago, IL Mark Yura
Bond Counsel: Sidley Austin Brown & Wood LLP s Washington, DC Peter Canzano
Chicago, IL Dick Astle
Underwriter: Stern Brothers & Co. Chicago, IL David S. Rasch
Underwriter’s Coun.: Sidley Austin Brown & Wood LLP “  Chicago, IL Dick Astle
Guaranty: FNMA (through GMAC) <" Washington, DC
Lender/Servicer: GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corp.;”
Affordable Housing Division Nashville, TN Robert King
Lender’s Counsel: ~ O’Melveny & Myers v/ Los Angeles, CA Masood Sohaili
Trustee: To be determined /
General Contractor: Waterton Associates L.L.C. v Chicago, IL
FNMA DUS
Management Agent: Waterton Property Management LLC‘/Chicago, IL Frank Romano
Tax Credit
Syndicator: Amtax Holdings 2003, L.P./~"
Paramount Financial Group Granville, OH Joel Hauenstein
Hedge Broker: Swap Financial v New York, NY John Kennay
. Counsel to ,
Syndicator: Bronson & Migliaccio v Purchase, NY Rich Migliaccio
Rating Agencies: Moody’s Investors Service v New York, NY
S&P Ratings Group v New York, NY Chris Moriarty
IFA Counsel: Schiff Hardin LLP o Chicago, IL Bruce Weisenthal



Waterton Vistas II, L.L.C.
(New Vistas [T Apartments)

Page 7

Congressional: 2
State Senate: 13
State House: 25

. i’\rich\0 IFA Board Summaries\ 07-July\07-04 Final Waterton Vistas Il LLC FBR
06/16/04 3:56 PM
RKF



DATE: July 13, 2004

TO: linois Finance Authority Board of Directors
FROM: Christopher Vandenberg
RE: V-TD-405: Mobitrac, Inc. Series C

Below please find a brief summary of the Mobitrac, its recent history/progress, and the funding
request. I look forward to answering any questions you may have regarding this transaction.

Summary

Mobitrac is an enterprise-software company that offers a hosted software platform that provides
predictive route visualization and continuous intra-route optimization of mobile resources. While
routing and scheduling applications currently exist, Mobitrac is the only solution that allows for
the modification of the routes while they are in progress to provide the dispatcher with
information on how changes affect future pick-ups or drop-offs. Mobitrac is focusing on for
hire, less-than-truckload (LTL) shippers and utility and commercial fleets.

Background
In May 2002, the Authority invested $295,385 along with a $320,000 investment by Arch

Development Partners into Mobitrac. Since this initial investment, the Company has also
received approximately $2.2 million in bridge loans from Arch and IllinoisVENTURES. It was
anticipated that the bridge loans would allow the company to complete the product, complete a
beta-test with a large shipping company and permit the Company to raise its next round of
funding.

In April 2003, Mobitrac raised $1,000,000 in exchange for Series B Convertible Preferred Stock
from Arch, IllinoisVENTURES, Mentor Management and the Authority. The Authority invested
$250,000. Also, at this time, the Bridge Loans were converted into equity. This was a down
round, which severely diluted the Authority’s original investment, but through participation in
the Series B allowed the Authority to increase it’s ownership percentage. The post-money
valuation of the company was $1.75 million. The Authority anticipated the Series C funding
round and participation in the Series B would allow participation in the Series C via
“participation rights.”

The Series B funding was to allow the completion of the beta-test with the Federal Express and
fund the Company until they were able to syndicate a $3 million to $5 million which is
anticipated to bring the company to profitability. Mobitrac had several West Coast venture

- capitalists interested in making an investment in the Company, pending the outcome with

Federal Express.



Mobitrac Board Memo
July 13, 2004

Series C Summary

The Company was successful in converting Federal Express from a beta-customer to a paying
customer, having secured a $150,000, one-year contract with the expectation of additional
business. Following the receipt of the contract, USVP (www.usvp.com) approached the
Company and they negotiated a term sheet to raise $4 million (with $2.4 million from USVP and
the balance from “an investor(s) who has the ability to invest 3x its Series C investment”) with a
$4 million pre-money valuation. Also, an option pool would be capitalized at the expense of the
existing investors. The round is an “up round,” but following the capitalization of the option
pool is essentially a flat round (meaning that the price per share of the last round will equal the
price per share of this round.) Existing investors will waive any anti-dilution adjustments
triggered by this transaction.

Anti-dilution
The Preferred Stock shall be subject to broad-based, weighted average anti-dilution adjustment.

Dividends
The dividend rate on all Preferred Stock will be set at 8%. The dividends on the Preferred Stock

will no longer be cumulative.

Liquidation Preference

In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the company, the Preferred Stock shall
receive their original purchase price plus any declared yet unpaid dividends. The preference
shall be paid out with from Series C to Series A in descending order of seniority. Finally, the
Preferred Stock shall participate on an as-if-converted basis with the Common Stock for any
remaining assets. Currently, the Preferred Stock’s Liquidation Preference is limited to a
sale/dissolution below $20 million.

Redemption .
The Preferred Stock will not be redeemable. The Series B shall also cease to be redeemable.

Voting Rights/Protective Provisions

The Preferred Stock shall vote as a single class, not as separate series on the protective
provisions. A two-thirds majority is required to: 1) effect an conversion of Preferred Stock to
Common; 2) create a senior or pari passu security; 3) pay dividends; 4) redeem or re-purchase
Common or Preferred Stock, except in cases of termination of service or exercise of right of first
refusal; 5) consummate any liquidity event; 6) increase/decrease the number of authorized
shares; 7) make adverse changes to the rights, preferences, or privileges of the Preferred Stock;
8) amend the Bylaws or Certificate of Incorporation; or 9) increase/decrease the size of the
Board.

. Board of Directors ,
The Board shall consist of five directors. The Series C shall elect two directors (one of which
whom shall be Tim Connors — USVP), the Series A/B shall elect one director (Rob Schriesheim),
the CEO (Mike Liddell) and an outside director (Tim Harvey).



Mobitrac Board Memo
July 13, 2004

USVP Background

USVP was founded in 1981 in Menlo Park, California, and has raised over $2.5 billion in eight
funds. They have invested over $1.1 billion of that in 271 companies. Companies in which
USVP has been the “founding investor” include Sun Microsystems, New Focus, Check Point
Software Technologies, Nuance Communications, Blue Martini Software, AMCC, MMC
Networks, Centillium Communications, Stratacom/Cisco and @Road. Sixty-eight of their
portfolio companies are now public companies. USVP is focused on early-stage investments in
Internet, communications, software, e-commerce, semiconductors, EDA tools, and healthcare
technology sectors. According to their web-site, USVP strives to invest in entrepreneurs and
teams that have proven track records in high-growth new industries. Investment sizes range
from $500,000 to $10,000,000 with the average being $4,000,000 to $5,000,000. USVP takes an
active role in their portfolio to provide a strategic impact, including high level introductions in
the markets that they participate.

Proposal
The Company is still pursing several different opportunities to secure the remaining $1.6 miilion.

However, in order to secure the balance of the fund, the current investors may not be permitted
to participate in the Series C.

TllinoisVENTURES, one of the current investors, has expressed the desire to invest its pro-rata
share (approximately $800,000). ARCH will not be participating in this round due to its limited
resources. In order to satisfy the requirement set by USVP for participation in this round, the
Authority’s investment would be capped at $100,000 (due to statutory limitations.) Staff
requests permission to invest an amount not to exceed $100,000.

Post-Money Ownership - | Post-Series C Ownership -
Pre-Money Ownership No Participation $100,000 Participation
% (fully % (fully % (fully
# Shares diluted) # Shares diluted) # Shares diluted)
llnvestors
Arch 2,591,253 45.4% 2,591,253 13.1% 2,591,253 13.1%
NetFuel Ventures 1,931 0.0% 1,931 0.0% 1,931 0.0%
IFA 567,274 9.9% 567,274 2.9% 814,791 4.1%
MinoisVENTURES 695,902 12.2% 695,902 3.5% 695,902 3.5%
ITEC 26,211 0.5% 26,211 0.1% 26,211 0.1%
Mentor MGMT 564,846 9.9% 564,846 2.9% 564,846 2.9%
UsSvP - 0.0% 5,940,406 30.0% 5,940,406 30.0%
Investor 8 - 0.0% 3,960,271 20.0% 3,712,754 18.8%
Sub-Total 4,447,417 77.9% 14,348,094 72.5% 14,348,094 72.5%
]Other Equity holders
Ouri Wolfson 118,239 2.1% 118,239 0.6% 118,239 0.6%
Mike Liddell 429,814 7.5% 1,485,102 7.5% 1,485,102 7.5%
University of IL 904 0.0% 904 0.0% 904 0.0%
Brett Mitchell 428,916 7.5% 1,485,102 7.5% 1,485,102 7.5%
Other Holders 3,002 0.1% 3,002 0.0% 3,002 0.0%
Option Pool 283,636 5.0% 2,360,911 11.9% 2,360,911 11.9%
Sub-Total Other holders 1,264,511 22.1% 5,453,260 27.5% 5,453,260 27.5%
Total Ownership 5,711,928 100.0% 19,801,354 100.0% 19,801,354 100.0%




- s

1
i N

o

13

p L2 A £

aM-

To:
From:
Date:
Re:

Illinois Finance Authority
Memorandum

IFA Board of Directors

Kevin Koenigstein

July 13, 2004

Overview memo for Paul and Lynn Schneider

Borrower/Project name: Paul and Lynn Schneider
Location: Flanagan (Livingston County)
Principal Contact: Paul Schneider

Board Action Requested: Final Approval

Amount: $500,000 (2 $200,000 increase over the existing $300,000 loan)
Project Type: Loan Guarantee for agriculture debt restructuring

Benefits Provided by IFA:
- Borrower receives a lower interest rate

. Lender receives a 85% guarantee of principal and interest

Structure: 10 Year Amortization with monthly payments



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
BOARD SUMMARY

Applicant(s): Paul D. Schneider and Lynn R. Schneider

Project Number: A-AD-GT-TX-431 Amount: $500,000
Type: Agriculture Debt Restructuring Staff Contact: Kevin Koenigstein
Location(s):  Flanagan in Livingston County Est fee: $1,000

Lender : Flanagan State Bank
Extension Loan adding $200,000 to a $300,000 existing loan (Originally $400,000)

IFA CONTRIBUTION and BOARD ACTION
Final Approval
Guaranteed Loan at 85% of Principal and Interest
State of Illinois Treasury Funds at risk; no IFA funds at risk

Staff recommends approval
Farm visit by Kevin Koenigstein on March 23, 2004; Twice in 1999

PURPOSE

Refinance existing Operating Carryover and increase guaranteed loan amount

Flanagan State Bank $300,000 — 6.00% IFA Guarantee
Flanagan State Bank $200,000 — 7.75% FSA Guarantee
COLLATERAL

1* mortgage on 14 acres with a house, machine sheds, grain bins, and numerous swine facilities
Loan to 2000 Appraisal $500,000 / 731,000 = 68.4%
The Schneiders have added grain storage bins and remodeled the farrowing operation to
swine finishing buildings since the 2000 appraisal.

We will request an updated appraisal after approval.

REPAYMENT TERMS

10 Year Amortization with monthly payments -
Interest Rate of 6% fixed for 5 years
3% over Treasury afterward

2004 CASH FLOW SOURCES
Grain farming income of 1100 acres
14,400 pigs sold
Custom Combining and Trucking Income
Non-farm income of @ $30,000

V‘



Balance Sheet 2004
Assets: $2,427,000
Liabilities: $1,531,000
Net Worth: $896,000
Debt/Asset: 63.1%
Income Statement 2003

Gross Farm Returns $1,406,833
-Depreciation $202,425
-Interest $62,737
-Production Expenses$1,244,926

=Net Farm Income ($103,255)

+Wages $30,658
+Capital Gain $74,826
+Other Income $63,341
Total Income $65,570
Adj. Gross Income ($119,617)
Interest Expasa 4.5%

% of farm returns

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

2003
$2,496,000
$1,506,000
$990,000
60.3%
2002
$1,063,767
$192,146
$87,731

$907,760
($133,870)
$33,444
$108,432
$43
$8,049
(5185,273)

8.3%

Debt Repayment Abliltiy — 2004 Production

Gross Farm Sales
Non-farm income

Total Revenue
-Production Expenses

-Living Expenses & taxes
-Interest Expense

Capital & Term debt repayment capacity
" (CDRC)

-Principal Payments
-Capital Expenditures

CDRC Margin

$1,900,000
$30,000

$1,930,000

$1,655,000
$80,000
$65,000

$130,000

$100,000
$0

$30,000

2002
$2,362,000
$1,553,000
$809,000
65.7%
2001
$1,127,479
$208,424
$82,951
$927,041
($88,577)
$32,407
$74,295
$40
$18,165
($177,872)

7.4%




PROJECT SUMMARY

This project is a $500,000 Ag debt restructuring guaranteed loan. The Schneiders have an existing loan
for $300,000 and they would like to increase it to $500,000. The Schneiders farm over 1100 acres in the
Livingston County area raising corn and soybeans. The Schneiders converted their swine farrowing
operation to swine finishing over the past year. Today, they have 6,200 pig spaces for pigs purchased on
a matrix contract. They have increase their grain storage to 164,000 bushels. Lynn Schneider works off-
farm in the medical field. 2004 cash flow is great with $2.80 corn, $6.00 soybeans and over $45 hog

prices.

The debt level and the Net Operating Loss level is the same and when we started in 1999. The 2003 tax
return has many expensed items due to the conversion from farrowing to finishing that negatively distorts
income. Farm income in 2004 should negate the NOL and provide cash for debt reduction. Thave
always been impressed with Paul Schneider’s attitude and management.

RECOMMENDATIONS
Approval, subject to the following:
1) Life insurance assignmeht of $250,000

2) Manure easement on 300 tillable acres
3) an appraisal of the 14 acres with buildings

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS
Congressional: 15
State Senate: 53
State House: 106



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
BOARD SUMMARY

Applicant(s): Weidner, Allen and Marilyn Board meeting date: July 13, 2004
Project Number: A-DR-GT-TX-433 Loan Amount: $500,000

Type: Agriculture Debt Restructuring Staff Contact: David Wirth
Location(s): Marengo IL, McHenry County Est. fee: $2,125

Lender : Belvidere National Bank, Belvidere IL

IFA CONTRIBUTION and BOARD ACTION
Final Approval
Guaranteed Loan at 85% of Principal and Interest
State of Illinois Treasury Funds at risk; no IFA funds at risk
Staff recommends approval
Farm visit: to be conducted

PURPOSE

Refinance existing real estate notes, machinery debt and operating loan carryover

Harvard State Bank (term loans) $303,000 6.5%
Belvidere National Bank (term loans) $ 77,000 6%
Belvidere National Bank (operating loan) $120,000 6%
COLLATERAL
First lien on 80 acres farmland with improvements. Appraised at $790,000
80 acres land at $5,500 per acre $440,000
Residence $ 70,000

Livestock bldgs, grain storage, machine shed, shop $280,000
Loan to Appraised Value $500,000 / $790,000 = 63%

REPAYMENT TERMS

30 year amortization, monthly payments,
5.2% interest fixed for 5 years, then adjusted at prime plus 1.2.

2004 CASH FLOW SOURCES

Grain farm 542 acres
5000 — 6000 hogs wean to finish




Balance Sheet 12/31/03
Assets: | 3,510,176
Liabilities: 2,077,654
Net Worth: 1,432,522
Debt/Asset: 59%
Income Statement 2003

Gross Farm Returns 369,414
-Depreciation 94,455
-Interest 69,906
-Production Expenses 321,681

=Net Farm Incomé¢  (116,628)

+Wages 27,275
Total Income (89,353)
Interest Exp as a 19%

% of farm returns

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

12/31/02
3,035,313
1,914,758
1,330,700
63%
2002
433,228
108,000
65,647
318,475
(58,894)
34,925

(23,969)

15%

12/31/01
2,481,469
1,464,244
1,454,575
59%
2001
606,444
99,000
58,810
428,601
20,033
44,168

64,201

10%



Debt Repayment Ability (2004 projected)

Gross Farm Returns 662,590

-Depreciation 100,000
-Interest 69,452
-Production Expenses 413,004
=Net Farm Income 80,134
+Wages 23,800
Total Income 103,934

Cash flow to service debt & living expenses 273,386
(Total Income + Interest + Depreciation)

-Living Expenses & taxes 45,000
Capital & Term debt repayment capacity 228,386
(CDRC)

-Interest and Principal Payments 152,330
-Capital Expenditures 17,000
CDRC Margin 59,056
Debt Coverage Ratio 1.35%

PROJECT SUMMARY

This project is a $500,000 Ag debt restructuring guaranteed loan. ($500,000 is the maximum in this
program.) Income is derived from wean to finish hogs and row crop production. Operation has recently
restructured from “farrow to finish” to “wean to finish.” Significant capital has been invested in sow
center stock, packing plant stock and in building remodeling. Refinancing will improve cash flow by

reducing principal payments.

Real estate mortgage makes this loan very safe. We are not relying on the value of the livestock facilities
as the value of the land and residence exceeds our guaranteed amount.

RECOMMENDATION

Approve, no extraordinary terms

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS
Congressional: 16 Manzullo
State Senate: 32 Althoff
State House: 33 Franks



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Memorandum
To: IFA Board of Directors
From: Laura Lanterman
Date: July 13, 2004
Re: Overview Memo for Beginning Farmer Bonds

¢ Borrower/Project Name: Beginning Farmer Bonds

e Locations: Throughout Illinois

¢ Board Action Requested: Final Bond Resolutions for each attached project
e Amounts: amounts up to $250,000 maximum of new money for each project
e Project Type: Beginning Farmer Revenue Bonds

o JIFA Benefits:
—~ Conduit Tax-Exempt Bonds — no direct [FA or State funds at risk
— New Money Bonds:
— convey tax-exempt status
—  will use dedicated 2004 IFA Volume Cap set-aside for Beginning Farmer transactions

e IFA Fees:
e  One-time closing fee will total 1.50% of the bond amount for each project ($8,896) combined for
Final Bond Resolutions, as proposed)

e Structure/Ratings:

e Bonds to be purchased directly as a nonrated investment held until maturity by the Borrower’s
Bank

e The Borrower’s Bank will be secured by the Borrower’s assets, as on a commercial loan

e Interest rates, terms, and collateral are negotiated between the Borrower and the Participating
Bank, just as with any commercial loan

e  Workouts are negotiated directly between each Borrower and Bank, just as on any secured
commercial loan

o Bond Counsel: Jenner & Block, Chicago; Paula Goedert

Voting Records:

Preliminary Bond Resolutions for Fleming and Lucas — May 18, 2004:

Ayes: 11 Nays: 0 Abstentions: 0 Absent: 2 (Giannoulias, Nesbitt) Vacant: 2
Voting Records:

Preliminary Bond Resolutions for Kiefer, Nieckamp and Weaver — June 22, 2004:

Ayes: 10 Nays: 0 Abstentions: 0 Absent: 2 (Nesbitt, O’Brien) Vacant: 3



BEGINNING FARMER BOND LOANS
Previously Approved Project for Bond Resolution
July 13, 2004

Project Number: A-FB-TE-CD-418

Borrower(s) Jeremiah D. Fleming

City: Olney

Amount: $165,150

Use of Funds: Farmland — 83 acres

County: Richland

Lender/Bond Purchaser: Citizens National Bank of Albion

Principal shall be paid annually in instaliments determined pursuant to a twenty year amortization
schedule, with the first principal payment date to be one year from close. Accrued interest shall be paid
annually. '

Interest shall be charged at the rate of 5.00% per annum for the first ten years, thereafter adjusted every
five years to a rate not to exceed 1.00% below the then Prime Rate as quoted in The Wall Street Journal
with a floor of 5.00%.

Project Number: A-FB-TE-CD-421

Borrower(s) : Scott Lucas

City: Aledo

Amount: $137,700

Use of Funds: Farmland - 60 acres

County: Mercer

Lender/Bond Purchaser: Farmer’s State Bank of Western Illinois, Aledo

Principal shall be paid annually in - installments determined pursuant to a twenty year amortization
schedule, with the first principal payment date to be one year from close. Accrued interest shall be paid
annually.

Interest shall be charged at the rate of 4.67% per annum for the first three years, thereafter adjusted every

three years to a rate not to exceed 2.00% above the then Weekly Average Yield of U.S. Treasury .

Securities at a Three Year Constant Maturity.

Project Number: A-FB-TE-CD-429

Borrower(s): Kyle Kiefer

City: Belle Rive

Amount: $132,300

Use of Funds: Farmland — 119 acres

County: Jefferson

Lender/Bond Purchaser: Peoples National Bank, Mt. Vernon

Principal shall be paid annual with the first principal payment date to be one year from close. The first
. fourteen installments shall be determined pursuant to a thirty year amortization schedule, and the fifteenth
shall be a balloon of all principal and interest then outstanding. Accrued interest shall be paid annually.

Interest shall be charged at the rate of 3.60% per annum for the first three years, thereafter adjusted every
three years to a rate not to exceed 90% of thé then Prime Rate as quoted in The Wall Street Journal, with
a floor of 3.60%.




Beginning Farmer Bond Loans
Previously Approved Project for Bond Resolution
July 13, 2004

Project Number: A-FB-TE-CD-427
Borrower(s): Brandon Niekamp

City: Coatsburg

Amount: $108,000

Use of Funds: Farmland — 133 acres
County: Adams

Lender/Bond Purchaser: First Bankers Trust, Mendon

Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a thirty year amortization
schedule, with the first principal payment date to be January 1, 2005. Accrued interest shall be paid

annually.

Interest shall be charged at the rate of 5.50% per annum until January 1, 2010, thereafter adjusted
annually to a rate not to exceed 80% of the then Prime Rate as quoted in The Wall Street Journal.

Project Number: A-FB-TE-CD-428

Borrower(s): Chad S. Weaver

City: Erie

Amount: - $50,000

Use of Funds: Farmland — 43 acres

County: Whiteside

Lender/Bond Purchaser: Community State Bank of Rock Falls

Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a twenty year amortization
schedule, with the first principal payment date to be one year from close. Accrued interest shall be paid

annually.

Interest shall be charged at the rate of 4.50% per annum for the first five years, thereafter adjusted every
five years to a rate not to exceed 0.50% above the then Prime Rate as quoted in The Wall Street Journal.




ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Memorandum

Memo To: IFA Board of Directors

From: Anthony D. D’ Amato
General Counsel

Date: July 1, 2004

Re: Amendatory Changes

A. Little Company of Mary Hospital and Health Centers
B. Acme Finishing Co., Inc.
C. Orchard Village

i

A. Little Company of Mary Hospital and Health Centers
Request: Little Company of Mary Hospital and Health Care Centers (“LCMH”) requests the IFA

‘Board’s approval of a supplemental bond trust indenture amending the Bond Indenture for the

$73,070,000 IHFA Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 1997B (the “Bonds”) to permit a
new series of Variable Rate Multi-Mode Bonds in the form of an “Auction Rate Mode” and,
thereafter, to convert the mode on the Bonds to Auction Rate. By switching to an Auction Rate
Mode, LCMH will be eliminate the ongoing liquidity facility fees, thereby, resulting in a lower all-in
cost. In conjunction with this request, the IFA will need (i) to enter into an agreement amending the
Loan Agreement between it and LCMH so as to make conforming changes, (ii) to approve a
Reoffering Statement relative to the reoffering of the Bonds in Action Rate mode, and (iii) to
approve and execute a Reinssuance Tax Agreement. A copy of the authorizing Resolution is

attached.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval.

B. Acme Finishing Co., Inc.

Request: Acme Finishing Co, Inc. (“Acme”) is requesting that the IFA Board’s approval to amend
certain provisions of the (i) Loan Agreement, (ii) Note, (iii) Bond Issuance Agreement and (iv) the
Bond (collectively, the “Fourth Amendment”) to permit certain changes concerning the payment of
principal and interest and prepayment provisions relative to the $3,100,000 IDFA Industrial
Development Revenue Bond, Series 1998 (the “Bond”). The original holder of this Bond (Bank
One, N.A.) is seeking to sell the Bond to First Midwest Bank. The original holder has assigned its
interest in, to and under the Bond, Loan Agreement and Note to First Midwest Bank, and First
Midwest Bank concurs in Acme’s request. The proposed Fourth Amendment will enable Acme to
secure more favorable payment terms. A copy of the authorizing Resolution is attached.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval.



C. Orchard Village:

Request: Orchard Village requests the that [FA Board (i) consent to the sale of two of its facilities
that were financed or refinanced with proceeds lent to it from the IDFA Community Rehabilitation
Providers Facilities Acquisition Program Revenue Bonds, Series 2000 (the “Bonds”), and (ii)
approve a First Amendment to Orchard Village’s Original Loan Agreement, dated June 1, 2000.
The proceeds of the sale will be used to acquire a new facility, with any excess sale proceeds being
used to retire amounts payable under its Original Loan Agreement.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval.



RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AUTHORITY (the “Health Authority”) has
previously issued $73,070,000 in aggregate principal amount of its Variable Rate Demand
Revenue Bonds, Series 1997B (Little Company of Mary Hospital and Health Centers) (the
“Series 1997 Bonds™) pursuant to a Bond Trust Indenture dated of November 15, 1997 (the
“Original Indenture”) between the Health Authority and JP Morgan Trust Company, National
Association (as successor to American National Bank and Trust Company of Chicago), as bond
trustee (the “Bond Trustee”), $66,615,000 of which are currently outstanding; and

WHEREAS, the proceeds from the issuance and sale of the Series 1997 Bonds were loaned
by the Health Authority to Little Company of Mary Hospital and Health Centers, an Illinois not
for profit corporation (the “Corporation”), pursuant to a Loan Agreement dated as of November
15, 1997 (the “Original Loan Agreement”) between the Health Authority and the Corporation;
and

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Finance Authority””) was created pursuant
to the provisions of the Illinois Finance Authority Act and, as of January 1, 2004, succeeded to
and assumed all rights, powers, duties and responsibilities of the Health Authority; and

WHEREAS, the payment of the principal and interest on the Series 1997B Bonds is
insured by MBIA Insurance Corporation ("MBIA"); and

WHEREAS, the Corporation has determined that it is in its best interests to amend the
Original Indenture pursuant to a First Supplemental Bond Trust Indenture (the “Supplemental
Indenture” and, together with the Original Indenture, the "Bond Indenture") between the Finance
Authority and the Trustee, in order to provide that the Series 1997 Bonds may bear rates (the
“PARS Rate”) determined pursuant to auctions; and

WHEREAS, the Corporation has informed the Finance Authority that in connection with
the amendments to Original Indenture set forth in the Supplemental Indenture, it is advisable to
make certain conforming amendments to the Original Loan Agreement, which amendments
would be set forth in a First Supplemental Loan Agreement (the “First Supplemental Loan
Agreement”’) between the Corporation and the Finance Authority; and

WHEREAS, to facilitate the amendment of the Original Indenture and the Original Loan
Agreement to provide for the addition of the PARS Rate, the Corporation has requested and
directed the Finance Authority to approve the conversion of the Series 1997B Bonds from the
Weekly Rate to the Daily Rate (each as defined in the Original Indenture); and

WHEREAS, in connection with such conversion the Series 1997B Bonds will be subject to
mandatory tender; and

WHEREAS, upon such mandatory tender, Goldman, Sachs & Co. (“GS”) will own all of

. the Series 1997B Bonds; and

WHEREAS, GS, as owner of the Series 1997B Bonds, and MBIA will each consent to the
execution and delivery of the Supplemental Indenture and the First Supplemental Indenture; and

CHI-1427102v2
820622 - 600001



WHEREAS, the Corporation has informed the Finance Authority that in connection with
the addition of the PARS Rate it may be desirable to execute and deliver a reoffering circular
(the “Reoffering Circular”) describing the Series 1997 Bonds to be reoffered in the PARS Rate;

and

WHEREAS, the Corporation has informed the Finance Authority that in connection with
the addition of the PARS Rate will result in the reissuance of the Series 1997 Bond for federal
income tax purposes and will necessitate the execution and delivery of a Reissuance Tax
Exemption Agreement (the "Reissuance Tax Exemption Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, the Finance Authority desires to authorize the execution and delivery of the
Supplemental Indenture, the First Supplemental Loan Agreement and the Reissuance Tax
Exemption Agreement, all as provided herein; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Authority has previously adopted its Resolution 04-03-21 on
March 31, 2004 (the "March Resolution") approving certain matters related to the addition of the

PARS Rate;
Now, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Illinois Finance Authority as follows:

1. Supplemental Indenture and First Supplemental Loan Agreement. The
Finance Authority does hereby authorize and approve the execution by its Chairperson, Vice
Chairperson, any of its other Members, Executive Director or Treasurer (each an “Authorized
Officer”) and the delivery of the Supplemental Indenture providing for the amendment of the
Original Indenture to permit the Series 1997 Bonds to bear interest at the PARS Rate. The
Supplemental Indenture shall be substantially in the form attached hereto and marked Exhibit A
and hereby approved, or with such changes therein as shall be approved by the Authorized
Officer executing the Supplemental Indenture, with such execution to constitute conclusive
evidence of such person’s approval and the Finance Authority’s approval of any changes or
revisions therein from the form of the Supplemental Indenture attached hereto. The Finance
Authority does hereby authorize and approve the execution by an Authorized Officer and the
delivery of the First Supplemental Loan Agreement providing for the amendment of the Loan
Agreement. The First Supplemental Loan Agreement shall be substantially in the form attached
hereto and marked Exhibit B and hereby approved, or with such changes therein as shall be
approved by the Authorized Officer of the Finance Authority executing the First Supplemental
Loan Agreement, with such execution to constitute conclusive evidence of such person’s
approval and the Finance Authority’s approval of any changes or revisions therein from the form
of the First Supplemental Loan Agreement attached hereto.

2. Reoffering Circular. The Finance Authority does hereby authorize and approve
the execution and delivery by an Authorized Officer of the Reoffering Circular. Such Reoffering
Circular shall be substantially in the form attached hereto and marked Exhibit C and hereby
approved, or with such changes therein as shall be approved by the Authorized Officer executing
the Reoffering Circular, with such execution to constitute conclusive evidence of such person’s

- approval and the Finance Authority’s approval of any changes or revisions therein from the form
of the Reoffering Circular attached hereto

CHI-1427102v2
820622 - 600001



3. Reissuance Tax Exemption Agreement. The Finance Authornty does hereby
authorize and approve the execution by an Authorized Officer of the Reissuance Tax Exemption
Agreement. The Reissuance Tax Exemption Agreement shall be substantially i the form
attached hereto and marked Exhibit D and hereby approved, or with such changes therein as shall
be approved by the person executing the Reissuance Tax Exemption Agreement, with such
execution to constitute conclusive evidence of such person’s approval and the Finance
Authority’s approval of any changes or revisions therein from the form of the Reissuance Tax
Exemption Agreement attached hereto.

4. Approval of Conversion. Based solely upon the request and direction of the
Corporation, the Finance Authority approves the conversion of the Series 1997 Bonds from the
Weekly Mode to the Daily Mode, and from the Daily Mode to the PARS Mode (as such terms
are defined in the Bond Indenture).

5. Repeal of March Resolution. The March Resolution is repealed in its entirety.

6. Authorization and Ratification of Subsequent Acts. The Members, officers,
agents and employees of the Finance Authority are hereby authorized and directed to do all such
acts and things and to execute or accept all such documents as may be necessary to carry out and
comply with the provisions of these resolutions and the document attached hereto as an Exhibit.
All of the acts and doings of the Members, officers, agents and employees of the Finance
Authority which are in conformity with the intent and purposes of these resolutions, whether
heretofore or hereafter taken or done, shall be and are hereby authorized, ratified, confirmed and
approved.

ADOPTED this ___ day of July, 2004.

Chairman

CHI-1427102v2
820622 - 600001



RESOLUTION

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL BY THE ILLINOIS

FINANCE AUTHORITY (SUCCESSOR IN INTEREST TO THE ILLINOIS

DEVELOPMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY) (THE "ISSUER") OF AN

AMENDMENT TO THE LOAN AGREEMENT, THE BOND, THE NOTE

AND THE BOND ISSUANCE AGREEMENT THAT WERE EXECUTED IN

CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF THE ISSUER’S $3,100,000

ORIGINAL PRINCIPAL AMOUNT INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT

REVENUE BOND (ACME FINISHING CO., INC. PROJECT), SERIES 1998

(THE “BOND”); AND RELATED MATTERS.

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority, a body politic and corporate (the "Issuer") is
authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS
3501/801-1 et seq. (2002 State Bar Edition), as from time to time supplemented and amended
(the "Act") to issue its revenue bonds to finance or refinance the costs of any industrial,
commercial or manufacturing project in order to promote the expansion, retention or
diversification of employment opportunities within the State of Illinois (the "State") or any area
thereof or will aid in stabilizing or developing any industry or economic sector of the State
economy; and

WHEREAS, the Illinois Development Finance Authority (predecessor in interest to the
Issuer) on May 21, 1998 adopted a bond resolution authorizing the issuance of its $3,100,000
original principal amount Industrial Development Revenue Bond (Acme Finishing Co., Inc.
Project), Series 1998 (the "Bond"); and

WHEREAS, the Bond was issued pursuant to a Bond Issuance Agreement dated as of
May 1, 1998 (the “Original Bond Issuance Agreement,” and together with the Amendments, as
hereinafter defined, the “Bond Issuance Agreement”) among the Issuer, Bank One, NA (as

successor in interest to American National Bank and Trust Company of Chicago), as Bondholder

(the "Original Bondholder") and J. P. Morgan Trust Company, National Association (as



successor in interest to American National Bank and Trust Company of "Chicago), as Fiscal
Agent (the "Original Fiscal Agent"); and

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Bond, Acme Finishing Company,
Incorporated, an Illinois corporation and Deejay Realty, L.L.C., an Illinois limited liability
company (collectively, the "Borrower") and the Issuer entered into a Loan Agreement dated as of
May 1, 1998 (the “Original Loan Agreement,” and, together with the Amendments, the “Loan
Agreement”) as further evidenced by the Promissory Note dated as of May 1, 1998 by the
Borrower to the Issuer (the "Original Note," and, together with the Amendments, the ‘“Note”);
and

WHEREAS, the Issuer, the Original Fiscal Agent, the Original Bondholder and the
Borrower entered into a First Amendment to Loan Agreement, Promissory Note, Bond and Bond
Issuance Agreement dated as of August 1, 2000 (the “First Amendment”), a Second Amendment
to Loan Agreement, Promissory Note, Bond and Bond Issuance Agreement dated as of January
1, 2001 (the “Second Amendment”) and a Third Amendment to Loan Agreement, Promissory
Note, Bond and Bond Issuance Agreement dated as of May 31, 2003 (the “Third Amendment,”
and, together with the First Amendment and the Second Amendment, are collectively referred to
as the “Amendments”) amending the interest rate and other terms of the Original Loan
Agreement, the Original Bond Issuance Agreement, the Original Note and the Bond; and

WHEREAS, the parties have misplaced the Second Amendment and wish that it be

nullified; and

WHEREAS, First Midwest Bank (the “New Bondholder™) desires to purchase the Bond

from the Original Bondholder; and



WHEREAS, the New Bondholder desires to replace the Original Fiscal Agent with First
Midwest Bank (the “New Fiscal Agent”); and

WHEREAS, the Original Bondholder and the New Bondholder has entered into an
Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated as of July 1, 2004 (the “Assignment”) pursuant to
which the Original Bondholder has assigned its interest in, to and under the Bond, the Loan
Agreement, the Note and other documents securing payment of the Note to the New Bondholder;
and

WHEREAS, Acme Finishing Company, Incorporated, an Illinois corporation and Deejay
Realty, L.L.C., an Illinois limited liability company (collectively, the "Borrower") and the New
Bondholder have requested the Issuer to amend certain provisions of the Loan Agreement, the
Note, the Bond Issuance Agreement and the Bond, all as amended, in order to provide for
changes relating to principal and interest payable thereunder, prepayment provisions and other
related changes; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary and proper for the interests and convenience of the Issuer to
authorize such amendments; and

WHEREAS, the Issuer has caused to be prepared and presented to this meeting the
Fourth Amendment to Loan Agreement, Promissory Note, Bond and Bond Issuance Agreement
dated as of July 1, 2004 among the Issuer, the New Fiscal Agent, the New Bondholder and the
Borrower (the “Fourth Amendment”), which the Issuer proposes to enter into; and

WHEREAS, the Bond and the obligation to pay interest thereon is a special, limited
obligations of the Issuer, payable solely out of the revenues and income derived from the Loan
Agreement hereinafter referred to and as otherwise provided in the Bond Issuance Agreement
hereinafter referred to; the Bond and the obligation to pay interest thereon does not constitufe an

3.



indebtedness or a general or moral obligation of the Issuer, the State of Illinois or any political

subdivision thereof within the purview of any constitutional limitation or statutory provision or a

charge against the general credit or taxing powers, if any, of any of them; and neither the
purchaser nor any future owner of the Bond shall have the right to compel any exercise of the
taxing power, if any, of the Issuer, the State of Illinois or any political subdivision thereof to pay
any principal or purchase price of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bond; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended, due to the changes in the payment structure of the Bond which will
effectively extend the weighted average maturity of the Bond, a public hearing was held by the
Executive Director of the Issuer, or his designee, on July 9, 2004, prior to the approval by the
Governor of the AState of Tllinois, pursuant to notice published at the direction of the Issuer in The
State Journal-Register, a newspaper qualified by law to publish legal notices of the State of
Tlinois on June 25, 2004, and in the Daily Herald, a2 newspaper of general circulation in the
Village of Elk Grove, on June 25, 2004;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE ILLINOIS
FINANCE AUTHORITY, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. That the form, terms and provisions of the proposed Fourth Amendment
be, and it hereby is, in all respects approved, and that the Chairman, Vice Chairman or Executive
Director and the Secretary or Assistant Secretary be, and they are hereby authorized, empowered
and directed to execute and deliver such instrument in the name and the behalf of the Issuer and

that the Fourth Amendment is to be in substantially the respective form thereof submitted to this

_meeting and hereby approved, with such changes therein as shall be approved by the officials of

the Issuer executing the same, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their

4-



approval of any and all changes or revisions therein from and after the execution and delivery of
such instrument, the officials, agents and employees of the Issuer are hereby authorized,
empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may
be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of such instrument as executed.
Section 2. That the execution and delivery of the Fourth Amendment, as authorized
in Section 1 above, is expressly conditioned upon the following:
a) Approval of the Fourth Amendment must be obtained from all necessary
parties; and
b) The Issuer's counsel must approve a final copy of the Fourth Amendment
and all related documents at or prior to its execution and delivery; and
¢) Bond Counsel must opine that the Fourth Amendment is authorized by, and
in accordance with the relevant bond documents, and will not adversely impact the
tax-exempt status of the Bond.

Section 3. That the Second Amendment is hereby declared null and void.

Section 4. The Bond is a special, limited obligation of the Issuer and except to the
extent payable from Bond proceeds or moneys from the investment thereof, is payable solely
from the revenues and receipts and other amounts received by or on behalf of the Issuer pursuant
to the Loan Agreement. The Bond and interest thereon does not constitute an indebtedness or a
general or moral obligation of the Issuer, the State of Illinois or any political subdivision thereof
within the purview of any constitutional limitation or statutory provision or a charge against the
general credit or taxing powers, if any, of any of them. No taxing powers, if any, of the Issuer,

the State of Tllinois or any political subdivision thereof are available to pay the Bond or interest

thereon.



Section 5. That from and after the execution and delivery of the Fourth Amendment,
the proper officials, agents and employees of the Issuer are hereby authorized, empowered and
directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such document as may be necessary to
carry out and comply with the provisions of said documents as executed and to further the
purposes and intent of this Resolution, including the preamble hereto. The Chairman or
Executive Director and the Secretary or the Assistant Secretary be, and they are hereby, further
authorized and directed for and on behalf of the Issuer, to execute all papers, documents,
certificates and other instruments that may be required for the carrying out of the authority
conferred by this Resolution or to evidence said authority, including without limitation the
signing of IRS Form 8038 and the filing thereof as therein required and the certifications relating
to Section 148 iof the Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder and changes in the
documents approved hereby as approved by the officials of the Issuer executing the same, and to
exercise and otherwise take all necessary action to the full realization of the rights,
accomplishments and purposes of the Issuer under the Fourth Amendment and to discharge all of
the obligations of the Issuer thereunder.

Section 6. That the Issuer hereby acknowledged that a Public Hearing was held on
July 9, 2004 and hereby approves the plan of financing and the extension of the weighted
average maturity of the Bond pursuant to Section 147(f) of the Code and directs that this issue be
submitted to the Governor of the State of Illinois for approval of the elected representative.

Section 7. That all acts and doings of the officials of the Issuer which are in

conformity with the purposes and intent of this Resolution are, in all respects, approved and

confirmed.



Section 8. That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be separable,
and if any section, phrase or provision shall, for any reason, be declared to be invalid, such
declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

Section 9. That all ordinances, resolutions, orders or parts thereof in conflict with the
provisions of this Resolution are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded.

Section 10.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage

and approval, in accordance with law.

APPROVED this day of July, 2004.

Chairman



A RESOLUTION authorizing the execution and delivery of a First
Amendment to Loan Agreement between the Illinois Finance
Authority (as successor to the Illinois Development Finance Authority)
and Orchard Village, amending a Loan Agreement between the
Authority and said center to revise the project description contained
therein in connection with the outstanding Illinois Development
Finance Authority Community Rehabilitation Providers Facilities
Acquisition Program Revenue Bonds, Series 2000A, of the Authority
to reflect the sale of two facilities financed with the proceeds of such
bonds and the acquisition or refinancing of a substitute facility; and
providing for other matters relating thereto.

WHEREAS, the Illinois Development Finance Authority, a political subdivision and
public body, corporate and politic, organized and previously existing under the laws of the
State of Illinois (“IDFA”), was authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Illinois
Development Finance Authority Act, 20ILCS 3505/1 et seq., as amended (the “Act”), to
issue its revenue bonds to finance in whole or in part costs incurred in connection with the
development, construction, acquisition or improvement of “industrial projects” (as defined
in the Act); and

WHEREAS, IDFA has hereto issued its Ilinois Development Finance Authority
Community Rehabilitation Providers Facilities Acquisition Program Revenue Bonds, Series
2000A (the “Bonds™), pursuant to a Master Indenture of Trust dated as of June 1, 1997 (the
“Master Indenture”), as supplemented by a Fifth Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated as of
June 1, 2000 (the “Fifth Supplemental Indenture”), by and between IDFA and Cole Taylor
Bank and Marine Bank, Springfield (as successors to Bank One, National Association, acting
as trustee under the Master Indenture), as co-trustees (collectively, the “Trustee™); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to A Loan Agreement dated June 1, 2000 (the “Original Loan
Agreement”) by and between IDFA and Orchard Village (the “Center”), an Illinois not-for-
profit corporation and an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), IDFA lent a portion of the proceeds from the sale of
the Bonds to the Center in order to provide funds to finance, refinance or reimburse the costs
of the acquisition, construction and improvement of real and personal property used by the
Center and to finance non-capital costs relating thereto described in Exhibit A to the Original
Loan Agreement (the “Project”), to pay a portion interest on the Bonds, to fund a reserve
account with respect to the Center, and to pay necessary expenses incidental thereto; and

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) established by Public Act
93-205 of the Illinois Legislature (the “Authority Act”) has succeeded to, assumed and now
exercises all rights, powers, duties and responsibilities formerly exercised by the IDFA; and

WHEREAS, the Center has advised the Authority that it desires to sell two of the
facilities financed or refinanced with the proceeds of the Bonds, located at 9306 Madison,
Morton Grove, Illinois, and 8227 Menard, Morton Grove, Illinois; and



WHEREAS, the Center desires to apply a portion of the sale price of said two facilities
to refinance indebtedness incurred by the Center to acquire a new facility located at 418
Hazelwood, Glenview, Illinois and to apply any excess sale price to the retirement of
amounts payable under the Original Loan Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Section 7.22(a) of the Original Loan Agreement permits the sale of
property financed under the Original Loan Agreement upon the substitution of other property
securing the obligations of the Center under the Original Loan Agreement or the deposit of
such sums so received in the Bond Fund established by the Master Indenture; and

WHEREAS, Section 1.142-12(c) of the Treasury Regulations permits the use of the
proceeds of the disposition of property financed with tax-exempt bonds if (i)(a) disposition
proceeds are used by an organization described in Section 501 (c)(3) of the Code, (b) such
disposition proceeds are used in a manner that does not cause the bonds to meet either the
private business tests or the private loan financing test under the
Code, and (c) the bonds allocated to such proceeds and alternative use are treated as being
reissued for certain purposes of the Code, and (iii) excess disposition proceeds are applied to
the redemption or defeasance of bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to authorize an amendment to the Original Loan
Agreement to reflect the substitution of facilities; and

WHEREAS, a form of First Amendment to Loan Agreement (the “First Amendment™)
has been prepared and presented to this meeting:

NOW THEREFORE, Be It Resolved By the Illinois Finance Authority as follows:

Section 1. Authorization of the Amended Project. The financing or refinancing of all
or any portion of the Project described in Exhibit A to the First Amendment and the payment
of costs incidental thereto are hereby authorized and determined to be in the public interest
and in furtherance of the public purposes contemplated by the Act.

Section 2. Authorization of First Amendment. The form, terms and provisions of the
proposed First Amendment presented to this meeting and on file with the Secretary are
hereby in all respects approved, and the Chairman, the Vice Chairman or the Executive
Director and the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary are hereby authorized, empowered and
directed to execute and deliver the Instruments in the name and on the behalf of the
Authority. The First Amendment, as executed and delivered, shall be in substantially the
form thereof now before this meeting and hereby approved or with such changes therein as
shall be approved by the officers of the Authority executing the same, their execution thereof
to constitute conclusive evidence of their approval of any and all changes or revisions therein
from the form of the First Amendment now before this meeting; and from and after the
execution and delivery of the First Amendment the officers, agents, and employees of the
Authority are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and
to execute all such documents as may be necessary to carry out the intent and accomplish the
purpose of the Resolution and to comply with and make effective the provisions of the First



Amendment as executed. The First Amendment as approved by this Resolution shall be
placed on file at the office of the Authority and made available for public inspection by any
interested party immediately upon the passage and approval of this Resolution.

Section 3. Separability. The provisions of the Resolution are hereby declared to be
separable and if any section, phase or provisions shall for any reason by declared by a court
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the
validity or enforceability of the remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions hereof.

Section 4. Repeal of Conflicting Resolutions; Effective Date. All orders and
resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith are to the extent of such conflict hereby
repealed, and this Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately upon its

adoption.

Adopted this day of July, 2004

Chairman



GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS
AND TERMS
USED BY IFA

Terms commonly used in IFA write-ups

Bond Counsel On financing team for Borrower

Issuers Counsel Outside counsel to represent IFA

AD Restructuring Ag Debt Guarantee
AL Assisted Living

B Business

CD Conduit

CF » Coal Fired Power Plants

Cp Community Provider

DC Distressed Cities

E Education/Cultural

FF Fund to Funds

FR FreshRate

FT Fire Truck Revolving Loan

GO Local Government Obligation

GP Local Government Pooled Bond
GR Local Government Revenue Bond

H Health Care

1

1

1

1

; I
1

1

1

1

i CL Construction Loan Interim Financing
1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1



HO

HF

ID
IF

IFA

LOC

M
MH
MS

NP or FP

NH

P
PC

Placement Agent/
Underwriter

PF

Hospital

Health Facility

Industrial

Industrial Development Bonds
Tax Increment Financing

Illinois Finance Authority

Local Government

A form of supplement or, in some cases,
direct security for a municipal bond
under which a commercial bank or
private corporation guarantees
payment on the bond under certain
specified conditions

Mortgage
Multifamily Housing
Medical School

Not for Profit

Nursing Home

Pollution Control

Private College

Securities firm that purchases Bonds
and places with investors. Engaged by

Borrower

Private Foundation



PL
PO
PS

Private Placement

PW

SD
SG
SL

Participation Loan

Pollution Control/Environment
Private School
Negotiated sale in which the new issue

securities are sold directly to
institutional or private investors rather

than through a public offering.

Pooled Warrant Program for School

Rural Development

Local School District
Specialized Livestock Guarantee
Senior Living |
Local Special Service Area

Solid Waste

Tax Anticipation Notes

Technology Development Loan

Taxable
Refunding
Water or Gas - Utility Revenue Bonds

Venture Capital

Young Farmer Guarantee



II.

General Bond and Financing Terms

Amortize

Arbitrage

Average Life

Basis Point

Capitalized
Interest

Retire the Principal of an issue by
periodic payments either directly to
bondholders, or first to a Sinking Fund
and then to bondholders.

Interest rate differential that exists
when proceeds from a municipal bond
which is tax-free and carries a lower
yield are invested in taxable securities
with a yield that is higher. THIS IS
ILLEGAL solely as a borrowing tactic
per 1986 Tax Reform Act.

Average length of time an issue of serial
bonds and/or term bonds with
mandatory sinking funds and/or
estimated prepayment is expected to be
outstanding.

One one-hundredth of one percent
(1/100% or 0.01 percent) 100 basis
points equal one percent.

A portion of the proceeds of an issue
that is set aside to pay interest on the
securities for a specified period of time.



Conduit Bonds

Cost of Issuance

Covenant

Debt Ratio

Debt Service

Debt Service Fund

Default

Direct Sale

Bonds whose repayment is the
responsibility of the business or
developer who benefits from the
financing, rather than the issuer who
only collects the taxes, fees or revenues
and passes them on to the bondholder.

Expenses associated with the sale of
new issue of municipal securities,
including such items as underwriter"”
spread, printing, legal fees and rating
costs.

Legally binding commitment by the
issuer of municipal bonds to the
bondholder.

Ration of the issuer’s general obligation
debt to a measure of value, such as real
property valuations, personal income,
general fund resources, or population.

Required payments for principal and
interest.

Separate account in the overall sinking
fund into which moneys are placed to
be used to redeem securities, by open-
market purchase, request for tenders
or all, in accordance with a redemption
schedule in the bond contract.

Breach of some covenant, promise or
duty imposed by the bond contract —
failure to pay in a timely manner
principal and/or interest when due.

Sale of new security by the issuer to
investors, bypassing the underwriter or
middleman.



Face Value

Fiscal Agent

Fixed-interest

Floater

GO

Indenture

Maturity

MO

Stated principal amount of a bond

Also known as Paying Agent — bank,
designated by the issuer to pay interest
and principal to the bondholder.

Bond with an interest rate that stays the
same over its life span.

Variable rate — Method of determining
the interest to be paid on a bond issue
by reference to an index or according to
a formula or other standard of
measurement at intervals as stated in
the bond contract.

General Obligation Bonds - voter
approved bonds — backed by the full
faith, credit and unlimited taxing power
of the issuer

Bond Contract — states time period for
repayment; amount of interest paid etc.

Length of time before the principal
amount of a bond is due to the
bondholders. It is the time until a bond
may be surrendered to its issuer.

Moral Obligation Bonds — sold by state
without voter approval and are used for
specific purposes — in the event of a
shortfall, it is implied that the state will
make up the difference.



OS

Par Value

Pari Passu

Principal
Public Offering

Refunding Bond

Revenue Bond

Secondary Market

Official Statement — Prospectus
document circulated for an issuer prior
to a bond sale with salient facts
regarding the proposed financing.
There are two: Preliminary/or Red
Herring because some of the type on its
cover is printed in red and, (it is subject
to final change and update upon
completion of sale of bonds) it is
supposed to be available to the investor
before the sale; Final OS must be sent to
the purchaser before delivery of the
bonds.

Face value of bond — generally $1000

Equitably and without preference — all
equal

Amount owed; face value of a debt

Sale of bonds (generally through an
underwriter) to the general public (or a
limited section of the general public).

Issuance of a new bond for the purpose
of retiring an already outstanding bond
issue.

Municipal Bond whose debt service is
payable solely from the revenues
derived from operating the facilities
acquired or constructed with the
proceeds of the bonds

Trading market for outstanding bonds
and notes. ‘



Serial Bond

Sinking Fund

State & Local
Government Series

Swap

Tax-Exempt Bond

Bond of an issue that features
maturities every year, annually or
semiannually over a period of years, as
opposed to a Term Bond, which is a
large block of bonds maturing in a
single year.

Fund established by the bond contract
of an issue into which the issuer makes
periodic deposits to assure the timely
availability of sufficient moneys for the
payment of debt service requirements.

United States Treasury obligations,
which take the form of Treasury Notes,
Treasury Bonds or Treasury
Certificates of Indebtedness. The US
Government created a “State & Local
Government Series” of such notes,
bonds and certificates to allow
municipal bond proceeds to be put into
“permitted” investments which would
comply with IRS arbitrage provisions,
and to not engage in “yield burning”.

Exchange of one bond for another.
Generally, act of selling a bond to
establish an income tax loss and
replacing the bond with a new item of
comparable value.

Bonds exempt from federal

income, state income, or state tax and
local personal property taxes. States do
not tax instruments of the federal
government and the federal
government does not tax interest of
securities of state and local
governments.



Technical Default

Term Bond

Trust Indenture

Trustee

Underwrite

Underwriter

Variable Rate
Demand Bond

Yield
Yield to Maturity

Failure by the issuer to meet the
requirement of a bond covenant. These
defaults do not necessarily result in
losses to the bondholder. The default
may be cured by simple changes of
policy or actions by the issuer.

Bonds comprising a large part of all of a
particular issue that come due in a
single maturity.

Contract between the issuer of
municipal securities and a trustee, for
the benefit of the bondholders.

Bank designated as the custodian of
funds and official representative of
bondholders. Trustees are appointed to
insure compliance with the trust
indenture and represents bondholders
to enforce their contract with the
issuer.

Agreement to purchase an issuer’s
unsold securities at a set price, thereby
guaranteeing the issuer proceeds and a
fixed borrowing cost.

Dealer that purchases a new issue of
securities for resale.

Bond whose yield is not fixed but is
adjusted periodically according to a
prescribed formula.

Measure of income generated by a bond

Rate of return anticipated on a bond
held until maturity



fijrroymmy aouvuyg sroul))f

od ador[0D 9reAlld
Sd [00Y2S dreAtld H | eamyn)/uoneonpy
A rende) aanjusp
puog
a0 Penuo) ulrey Jutuuidag V
qd1 puog 1ouire 3utuuidag VvV
IV Ansnpuj 3y Vv
A_AA Ieny) 1qo( v Surmpnnsay Vv
DS Iens) o01S9AIT pazijeads VvV
HA 99jueIens) JouLIe,] unox A4 arnynoudy
aa ueoT] [9A9(Q [BINY
TI sueo] q ssouisng
LD posjueIENy ) sjuejd IaMod pail] [B0D
A spun,] 0} punyg Od [o1iuo) uonnfod
(dL| ueoTAe( YdeL MS 91SBM PI[OS d | [o1uo) uounjjod
OJA | uonediqo [BIOW
ON NNpuo)-uoN A ol ysal
ajn nnpuo) HIN Suisnoy AruenmA N 98e3LIoN
HA Suroueulyey
XL IqeXeL AN spuog snuaAdy A1un
1L 1dwaxy] xeJ, - I spuog juswdofoas( [elIsnpu] I [eLasnpug
apo) 9po)
apo) AdA], | 1onpoaq jo adLy, | @yrewIqng 1P IrewIgns | 19YJIBIA 19N IBIA
$IPO)) IONPO.Id pum 1) AD A




dN sjgoid-uou jo sadA1 194310 N | swgoad-uou 1810
SIK S[OOYPS [EIIPIN

AH Ayoe yiesH

d) I9pIAOId ANUNWUWO)

IS 3urAry Jowag
HN QwIoH FuIsInN

TV Juiar] passissy

OH [endsoy H a1e) YI[eaH

Md | sooyos 105 weidorq Juelrepm pajood

RIK | ueo] SUIA[OATY NONI] 211

TO Ul WI_U] ULOT UOLDNIISU0)

VY. sajoN uonedonuy xej,

oda SOT}I) PassalIsi(q

SS BAIVY 901AI9G [e109dS [8007]

as PLISI [00YDg [BI07]
AI Suoueul JULWAIOIU] Xe],

b ) 3NUIAIY "AOD) [BI0]

d9 puog pa[ood "A0H) [ed07]

09 uonesqO "A0D (8201 T | JUSUIUISAOL) [BI0]
Ad uonepunoy Jiealld

Ipod 9poD

apo) 2adLy, | Yonpoag jo ad4], | IWIRUWIqNS 1 IeuIqns | 19NIeA JONIRIA




sa8usjieyo §,]00YDS 3y} pajou Uosfie)
: . 'seaf [ero
-A3S 19U 9} IO} Pa3oadxa SoUBNSSI MOU OU
Ui ‘95G Uey) sSa] JO tapIng 1gap o[qeade
-uew e Se fjom se “1gop eunroy-oxd Jo 9,78
pue sasuadxa Jo ¢ 01 [enba g0z 1Sy
w1 §301n0sal ajqepuadx? pue A105a1e0 Fumer
add =y 1oy arenbope sfoas) Anpinbry wouy
K[reroueuiy mEucuﬁ_ osje 989[]0o 3y,
“ANpiqest
-Joxd prjos pue mcosﬁomo [erouBUly paoue
-Teq Jo A10¥s1Y B yiim Suole ‘oyd1u weid
-0I1d pauljap-jfom € pue yimoig JusuIjjoIus
Apeals s eIquInjo)) uo poseq st Junes sy L,
‘9J01M UOS[IB)) UBSNg
18A[eUR ‘7007 PUB £00T STBaK [0Sy ul usas
syuaunsnfpe Ayrjiqer] uoisuad 2 Jo uon
-Njosal PaNUNUOD pue ‘Jqop pue sasuadxa
01 aane[a1 Kupinbry ur yymoid penunuod
. “quawy[o1us 3[qels ‘eoueurioyrad gunerodo
Suons penunuod Jo uoneoadxs s,1004 %
pIepue)S $)09]Ja1 JOO[INO Pasiadl 3y,
*KjIoyIny adueury SIOUI 2y
y3nouy) pjos uraq st Jurpunyar Sunmoodn
oy, "Ayoyyny sanijioe,] uonednpy siou
-IffI oY) YSnoIy pjos 1Gep paInsuiun pue
pamnsul JO UOH[I ¢9¢ Sey A[JUaLIND wiqung
-00) ‘Sune o pauwnjje osfe Louade ayy, -
-anss1 Jurpunyai uolpiw £°¢¢ unuod
-dn s [ooyos ay) Yyum uonounfuod ur 9[q
-v1s woyy aanisod 0} Suner gqg s,08eoy)
ada[jo) erquinjo)) ioj JOOo[Ino Y Y
POSIASI Yoom ISe[ 100 3 plepue)

sjoopn() 39139 5,239[10)
= - SIONITH

“yHANg aNog FHL

002 o:s__,ésgs; . JINVYNIA u_._mzn_ "_c mmmf_m_sm_z >.__<a IHL ‘ "A'N YI0A MON 906 L€ ON 8¥E 10N

gaANg ANOd JH.L




THE BOND BUYER

Bear Stearns Banker Named in
Illinois Hospital Controversy

By Yvette Shields

CHICAGO — A federal lawsuit
names Bear, Stearns & Co. and its
Chicago-based public finance banker P.
Nicholas Hurtgen in a scheme to pres-
sure a suburban Chicago hospital into a
politically-connected construction com-
pany in exchange for Tlinois* regulato-
ry approval of the hospital’s $200 million
expansion plan, according to a published

report.

Edward Hospital was initially pres-
sured to hire Bear Stearns on a-2001
transaction. It did hire the firm and it
won state regulatory approval for its pro-
jects. Earlier this year, Hurtgen alleged-
ly pressured the hospital to hire J acob

iferbaum of Deerfield,
T1l.-based Kiferbaum
Construction Corp., ac-
cording to a report pub-
lished Friday in the
Chicago Sun-Times. The
hospital refused to hire the
construction firm but it is
unclear whether the hos-

Monday, June 28, 2004

—

|

pital would work with Bear Stearns on |
the proposed bond sale.

Bear Stearns was listed as the senior
manager on a proposed $30 million Ed-
ward Hospital refunding that won ap-
proval from the conduit issuer the Hli-
nois Finance Authority in April, but |
IFA officials said that deal was put on |,
hold due to rising interest rates. ‘

Edward Hospital's new project failed
this spring to receive necessary approval
from the Illinois Health Facilities Plan-
ning Board, which must grant a “cer-
tificate of need” before hospital con-
struction projects can proceed. The board
is expected to consider a revised appli-
cation at its August meeting, according t0
Brian Davis, a vice president at Edward.

The hospital has proposed building a
$169 million, 146-bed hospital in the
rapidly growing southwest suburb of
Plainfield. '

_The lawsuit filed May 24 under the
False Claims Act remains under seal
while the U.S. Attorney’s office decides

Please turm to Bear Stearns page 40

e T T

J————



0 ‘pies
U[S . 'S{RIP PUO() DUINJOA Yy yum Aueduwiod
dupd onyg se Aioisiy Fuoy v aaey] Lo pue
ssao0ad aannddwios pue uado ue y3nomy
poxoid sem SUIEDIS B3], Ll ) O UO1O3Y
-2% S} JO 98U2JOP N Buo] 5,118 N pAILI
RICTRUSES RIS B R BN B LE uotsuad ay) jo
SHRIBP euonppe ou sopraosd pnsme} o4 L
“uonjI
@¢ — $99) FunpamIdpun il suseo)g seag] pred
)1 UNOWE Y} 0) PIPLIUD ST AL ot swepd
Jnsme| ], Speal jmnsmef oy L LIojImIspun
e se susea)s teag paaoidde 1o pansst aaey
JOU PIROM SIOUI[] JO IS 3] DWIARYIS youq
Sy [euud € o bed se Juntimiapui puog
aorsuad vol|jig 014 oy pauIEIgo S)UBPUDJIP
JE() MO SIOU{| JO 21e)S ) PEH,, oLy
-2 N mtiun YANoAY) [EIP A uom SUIRNS
12a¢] JEL) SONEIS HNS D) “SAULY-UNG D) UL PO
Auud ynsae oty Jo 98ud v o) Fuiproddy
uon
-LASIUHUPE 1Y JO S1quuId K2y pue yoyaal.
-ofe|g] 01 1opug|af3 pue Su)G Heat] payUll
ey suonnguuod udedued pue SUOTOOULOD
jeantjod jo $atras € pojeoAal 12Lng puog]
oy “1eak ey paystgnd L10)s g 6] "onssy UOLS
-uad oyj uo 10ds Funumiopun do) o) uiu
-Uiay UL oouRysisse $) 10y dnoxgy du
-nsuo)) ppydundg s Japueply] 11qoY
wdamAaeoy uedrpqnday 0) 99J SHUENSUOD
000'008¢ e teyy orow pred pey ey pasopd
-s1p AJJENIU9AD T UM sueionijod stoutf
pue syuediiped e poULNS WL UL
“pooud
sEm ONSSE 8, 01118 DY) 1OIM UL Oy Iel) Otp —
speop opeiodion apeid-13i FuyLamapun su
JO sty 01 do) oy up juery upp i vy
atp ondsop oung 1se) ofes uoisuad uonedijgo
[2ouad opgExX ) UOI[IY O] § SIOUL|] UO UOWIS
-oxl Qunuiauapun do) o) Hom SIS Fedf]
Jou pip ok sy

s Ee

ajes uoisuad (HouiLueL 8 OIS A Juiajoauy
JnsmE dLf) U POLIOHUSLL DUIAPS padaje 1o
-ue *owos pasding uoisuedxd jendsop| prem
-pzl 9 01 paiefal sareyd AUy UM 901108
Yo e ouo pies VINSMy] 3 qim suad
~dey eym uo puadap flim et L, yoediug wia)
-uoy sin uo o nodds o) uem Jou pIp Lang
LD} U aL) Uit st uonendal SureS Teag
LI)S O) PUBIS DUOJE JINS L) Uf PAUING suoned
“oppe oy pres siuedidnied 19318 JEI0ASS
. ‘S1oquiaW peoq -
12410 pLi 00g sewioy ], poeusodgns peyj 21
-jo shawone § N A ey payodar way uwn
-j09 diss03 WAV ples s , UONR3NSIAUL .
S} s 0) 921jJ0 s Aoulone "N 3 oy yiem’
[lim Ing OE3Nsaaul 0} Jesauad sorpadsuf g
PAYSE OM,,, "UOHESNSOAUL JEIIPI) B Bupuiad
ploy uo st ng 1oolosd K31 3 JO feacad
“du s paeog oy 0)u) uONEBNSIAUL |EUILILR 1)
porenIul sey 21LS 3 PIes qpyaafodul pol
"A0D) J0] uetwomsayods ¢ ‘uosyaef 1K1y U
~Aunbuy -
U (itm 21e1ddo0d 0) INUHUOD O} PUBIUIL puE
oanEsod00d 13q AL oM ‘UOTIppPE U] K3
~dlousd paoe dARY IM JeY) 34N M B nof -
1131 1ED 9m jng ‘Mol 10) SHISLLILIOD JNO :E:,..
JSNUE oM “DATIISUDS SAeMm[E 218 JUO S} Al v
satnnbu1 95NEIO(] “[[oMm SB PAOLIL0D 13aq 24y
soned oo d|dnInuE el PUBISIIPUN DA I3 -
~JeL PION] JO 91eatjiHaD) SIOWI[ 3y o &imb -
-ur v uipaedal pojorIuod UIQ AEY M,
:wmikes Aepyy] wawsie)s € pasedfal Jendsoy
||, UOLOESUET DU} O} PAIB[RI SIUIUINDOP A
PIAI2001 JaK Jou se )i Pres S|EPYJo Koy -
-y DOULUL] SIOUI[{] 1N ‘uopoesuEn € D101M
-12pUn SUILI)S SEOE] SWIRIO JNSME] AL, .
- -oeoynjo ..
NGNS 1ISOMIIOL T B O] isf1p ut R ;.
eoIpopy pue jendsoy 94eT] sk A1 -
paj(ea Jendsor pag-(L uolji [8$ ue pling o]
guem £a1opy “paroofar sem 1efond PrRMPE O

<.

v

YoM u Burjoatt) LAY SUILS U pIUY Fun
-uepd au) 250)3q [eaoidde poott Jo 21D
oM pie Kueduiod uoHONISIOD S, LNLAI
pue suiga)g Jeog paiy suy K1podv)

-re ey — WRISAS YU DDA posiy

2517 ‘QJrAsatief — jendsoy ssylout Fuiajoa
“uy WIBNIS 3O O soFof|r pusmuj o |,

. ~poda saui | -ng atj) 0} Fupiod
208 IEPUDJIP PILWIEN L JOU 51 3¢ SLILIOLLL
raBeopyD) u| ysop Buipel) jediptunu sy
Jea] U0 JOAIP Fuyduuew ¢ 51 PIY plat

*gog syy pue Ja[jondwod LHuno oo Pl
10} B SB PAAIAS YOI PIES SIDINOS apILul |

-] "YPA(] *J SBIIOLLY, §1 UCLLILYD Piroq Juiu
-wreyd sontjoe) YL, RUaB0) SPIBO( {12408 U0
24108 OUM SPUOLJ Qe WNEgId)Iy] pue JHADT]
“fawioys 03eoiD) & pue PIoq Fauued somyo
8] 9]) JO JRULIEL[D D014 DU} U] DA P TR
-u{ pleog U 0} §21) PAFY||L S NGO

'G66] UTIBIUEQ B S W PALLY XO,] 193 J01dI
~1p Swideuewy SUILIG JROg] DUIOJ UM SUE6
-pyus 3t Uy vosdwior], Anug [, A0 WISUOD
~SIAR UaL) 0 apiu-doy & seam O [edIuLd0) Jou

LiR

‘reontjod st oauFipad umo s uadungf eavidde

- Kyoje[n@as ainoas day plnom uonuasulupe

JISWILLRA0S 1B)S STOUl{]] O] 311 8 WL
sjeraIyyo feitdsoy proy uadumyy sadoq)u

£.InSmB| Ay, yead sup Apres Sunoows e ui Kued
_~IL02 UOTINNSUOD AL AN O uadpng ] £q pains
‘esaud sem jepdsoy ot Gooford mait st o}

S .,_uo_
01d Jg}j) UO PABIOM OS]E JINS B UL potuey

: ‘fuediwiod HONONNSHOD L) JAIAL|M DSOISIP
Jou pip poday saurp-ung (], Jeaosdde poou
1JO 2)BPHIHRD §)} UOM jendsoy oty pue pany

sBM §IIPD)S Juaf] spafosd uoppe pardsor

30 Ad O pres puog uonpur o1 zg posodoud

B U0 $00q 3L} SIIEDIS Jeag] aa1d 01 pepdsoy
2y pafn *£121008 [EDIPIIN DIEIS stouL] !

ot

‘39 3231)Q gunerado- Jouja JouLoy & “uNdISP(

'sod1e1j2 HONANLIOD Lo SIUDUNDIPUL [LIDPD)
d.mﬁ_..:m,.wm_:n: U33q aAey ueyp pue udnspry

(ogL tefy] 31005y AVLY RO O} IRIAPE e
UASPL) PREHOCE HBNOKG SO PP o)
PIOMPOINUL SEAY 0TI dudenen oo v
QAL | FO0OT W AYOL] SOUIINO Jnssey
HOOM S RRIURTIESNTERTINR IR |
AQ UDNLIALIDPUN D 0} US| TSDLDS D10
SONE PHODIS Y TUOL D) SUIEY RPN
[2op prny ISt SO RUITI HOLINE Oy L5,
opquxey s) O 2001 - poxy) ¢ pasud siou
-4 i sAup isul podepns S1o)s a1, 0N
X2 S J0 HoRnoads o paeag pey AN i
oym spuednad pop o) AU patuns
Jnsmu| ol Jo SMIN syynuiepd paes ow
) Funuasaidar SAMEL PIp st TinswEp )
1O JUDLLLLIOD O) PP fritdsog | prisp.{ jo
Jpenaq uo duipedds “siat(] SURTUUTAITTERRS
spje duutd WINDE JoU PIP SIS IR
BUINRITE
JUAMNSTED M) HIAD IO ) TRSITEIRUIEN
ULIOGUES JEpuEY] HEisojods s iz
oL Aowome ' $ ol ORISR RARITIN]
e _spnuegd o &g pap padanad pinos stou
SISO 1ISIC| WOHION D) O] 10,3 11
"G} DU UL PIYL] HNSAE] DL IS 10t
AUDIXD U QOIS LD 1 GAROL]E oA )
IOHIALAY DPIP 0} BLnfr) Dy Loy sfep (u sy
201§ 5, ADMIONE "7} DU, IIOTE SISt
ysod ey poudisas oyas paeog duueyd s
-Rf DU JO UULLIELD DDIA IS DL} T
JIER)S PUE UIEGIJI] TUIT ]| TSHIES
JED] STURPUIJOP SE SO JINS L] oy |
S IORLSI
(RSO AV UURHIHO Y] T) WAL P
-Kag o g spnomgd pue pansiasoi
P AU O ey o S
L goase] Aoy
ay

TRUNET
w1 papoador pu saun
K4 PAUIZGO STy DAL

e
RULS
ESIRBITTRIIAN

{ oot ] proceiing g

SIIDI)G IDDY]



	Agenda

	Tab A

	Tab 1

	Tab 2

	Tab 3

	Tab 4

	Tab 5

	Tab 6

	Tab 7

	Tab 8

	Tab 9

	Tab 10

	Tab 11

	Tab 12

	Tab 13

	Tab 14

	Tab 15

	Tab 16

	Tab 17

	Tab 18

	Tab 19

	Tab 20

	Tab 21

	Tab 22

	Tab 23

	Tab 24

	Tab 25

	Tab 26

	Tab 27


	TABLE OF CONTENTS: 


